
     
 

All public meetings and events sponsored or conducted by the County of Marin are held in accessible sites. Requests for 
accommodations may be requested by calling (415) 473-4381 (voice) (415) 473-3232 (TTY) at least four work days in 
advance of the event. Copies of documents are available in alternative formats, upon written request. 

Contact the County’s Waste Management Division, at (415) 473-6647 for more information 
 

 
 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 
Board of Directors Meeting 

May 24, 2018 
Central Marin Police Authority 

250 Doherty Drive, Larkspur, CA 
9:00 – 10:30 AM 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
Call to Order. 
 

1. Open Time for Public Comment 
 

Minutes 
 

2. JPA Board Meeting Minutes from January 25, 2018 (Action) 
3. JPA Executive Committee Meeting Minutes from April 26, 2018 (Action) 

 
Consent Agenda 

 
4. Appointment to the Southern Marin Cities and Towns Seat on the Local Task Force (Action) 
5. Appointment to the Southern Marin Cities and Towns Seat of the Executive Committee (Action) 
6. Receive and File Marin Household Haz Waste Program Fiscal Year 2016/17 Report (Action) 

Regular Agenda 
 
7. Presentation by R3 Consulting on Material Flow and Capacity Analysis Project (Information) 
8. Report on Activities from the JPA Local Task Force (Information) 
9. Update LTF Procedures to Reflect New Attendance Policy and Length of Terms (Action) 
10. Fiscal Year 18-19 Budget (Action) 
11. Delegate Signature Authority to the Executive Director for Contracts Exceeding $50,000 (Action) 
12. Elect FY 18-19 Board Chair and Vice Chair (Action) 
13. Appoint Two Member Subcommittee to Assist with the Disaster Debris Plan (Action) 
14. Appoint Two Member Subcommittee to Assist with the Zero Waste Plan Project (Action) 
15. Adjourn 
 
• Agendas & staff reports also available at:  http://zerowastemarin.org/Agenda 
 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\AGENDA\18-05-24.doc 5/18/2018 12:43 PM 

The public parking lot in front of 
the CMPA is small, but there is 

ample parking at Piper Park, 
which is adjacent to the building. 

 

http://zerowastemarin.org/Agenda


1 
 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/446-7373 

 
 
 
Belvedere 
   
 
Corte Madera 
   
 
County of Marin 
   
 
Fairfax 
   
 
Larkspur 
   
 
Mill Valley 
   
 
Novato 
   
 
Ross 
 
 
San Anselmo 
  
 
San Rafael 
  
 
Sausalito 
 
 
Tiburon 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Date: May 24, 2018 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re: Open Time for Public Comment 
 
The public is welcome to address the Board of Directors at this time on 
matters not on the agenda that are within its jurisdiction. Please be 
advised that pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2, the Board 
is not permitted to discuss or take action on any matter not on the 
agenda unless it determines that an emergency exists, or that there is a 
need to take immediate action which arose following posting of the 
agenda.  
 
Recommendation 
Receive public comment.  Information Only. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

f:\waste\jpa\jpa agenda items\jpa 180524\item 1 - open time for public comment.doc 
 



2 
DRAFT 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Thursday, January 25, 2018 
Central Marin Police Authority 
250 Doherty Drive, Larkspur 

9:00 – 9:30 AM 
 

MINUTES 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
Cristine Alilovich, San Rafael 
Regan Candelario, Novato 
Todd Cusimano, Corte Madera 
Greg Chanis, Tiburon 
Joe Chinn, Ross 
David Donery, San Anselmo 
Jim McCann, Mill Valley 
Dan Schwarz, Larkspur 
Garrett Toy, Fairfax 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT 
Dan Eilerman, County of Marin 
Craig Middleton, Belvedere  
Adam Politzer, Sausalito 
 

OTHERS PRESENT 
Kathy Wall, Marin Sanitary Service 
Michael Frank, MGSA 
Celia Furber, Recology 
Garen Kazanjian, Recology 
John Maher, Maher Accounting 
Fred Stemmler, Recology 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Steve Devine 
Ernest Klock 
Casey Poldino 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Call to Order 
 
1. Open Time for Public Comment  
No public comment was tendered.  
 
2. Introduce Ernest Klock new Executive Director 
Mr. Devine introduced Mr. Klock, who expressed enthusiasm to be working with the JPA 
Board and helping implement the zero waste mission.  Mr. Klock’s experience includes 
over seventeen years with the County of Marin in the management and execution of many 
infrastructure projects such as the Cal Park Hill Tunnel. He was recently promoted to 
Assistant Director of the Department of Public Works. Members introduced themselves to 
Mr. Klock. Information item only, no action taken.  
 

Minutes 
 

3. JPA Board Meeting Minutes from May 25, 2017 (Action) 
 
Motion: Mr. Chanis made a motion to approve the May 25, 2017 JPA Board meeting 
minutes. Second: by Mr. Donery. Vote: Unanimous.  
 



 

 
 

Consent Agenda 
 
4. Solid Waste Legislation (Information) 
 
5. Receive and File Audit and Financial Statement for Year Ending June 30, 2106 (Action) 
 
6. Delegate Signature Authority to the Executive Director to Procure up to $15,000 of 

Graphics and Sign Development Services for the Zero Waste Schools Program Using 
Already Budgeted Funds (Action) 

 
7. Reallocate $15,000 Already Budgeted for School Assemblies to a Farm to School 

Project (Action) 
 
No Public comment was tendered. 
 
Motion: Mr. McCann moved to approve the Consent Agenda, Items 5, 6 and 7.  Second: by 
Mr. Chinn. Vote: Unanimous.  
 

Regular Agenda 
 
 
8. Recology Sonoma Marin Welcome and Presentation (Information) 
Fred Stemmler, General Manager of Recology Sonoma Marin, provided the Board with a 
presentation on Recology Sonoma Marin taking over certain solid waste collection 
franchises in Marin County including ones with the Bolinas Public Utilities District, the 
County of Marin for portions of West Marin, the Novato Sanitary District and the Stinson 
Beach Water District.  Mr. Stemmler made a particular note of Recology aggressively 
addressing potential safety concerns related to equipment and the company’s treating 
customer service as a priority.  Mr. Stemmler also noted that Recology took over the 
operations just before the Christmas holiday, which is the heaviest time of year for waste 
generation, and that the company is working through the inherent challenges and missteps 
that can occur in a transition this large.  Mr. Stemmler also addressed a question about the 
“National Sword” issue and the challenge of marketing recyclables in light of China’s 
crackdown on lower quality recyclables. 
 
9. Report of Activities from the JPA Local Task Force (Information)  
There were no representatives from the Local Task Force (LTF).  Staff did make note that 
the LTF met six times during 2017 and that at least two people have expressed interest in 
the vacant Southern Marin Seat.  Staff also noted that the City of San Rafael is recruiting 
for a vacancy for their representative. 
 
10. Update from Staff on Recent and Ongoing Activities 
Mr. Devine provided a summary of activities at the Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) 
Facility, Recology Sonoma Marin’s recent acquisition of four collection franchises in Marin, 
neighboring Bay Area communities seeing significant increases in solid waste rates, Zero 
Waste Marin’s low cost impact on residential rates and budget allocation for HHW services, 
the County’s upcoming Material Flow & Capacity Analysis Project which is currently 



 

underway, updates regarding China’s National Sword, promoting rechargeable batteries 
through outreach, administering the State Used Oil Grant, updates on the Zero Waste 
Schools Program, the upcoming litter “Trash Summit,” Christmas tree advertisements, and 
the Shop Smart Waste Less campaign through online advertising, streaming radio ads, 
newspaper ads, Golden Gate Bus Transit ads, and street banners. 

 
11. Appoint Budget Subcommittee and Approve a FY 18-19 Budget Development Process 

and Schedule 
Staff provided an overview of the proposed budget development process and schedule as 
outlined in the Staff Report.  Staff also noted that in recent years the Budget Subcommittee 
has been comprised of two Executive Committee appointees – generally the Chair and 
Vice Chair, and/or an appointee from the County.  The Board noted that last year’s 
Subcommittee consisted of Chair Toy and County representative Eilerman.  The Board 
discussed keeping these same appointments.   
 
Motion: Mr. Cusimano moved to appoint Mr. Toy and Mr. Eilerman to the Budget 
Subcommittee and approve the Budget Process and Schedule as proposed. Second: by 
Mr. Candelario. Vote: Unanimous.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\MINUTES\18-01-25.doc 
5/18/2018 12:44 PM 

 



3 
 DRAFT 

 

f:\waste\jpa\excom\minutes\2018\draft minutes 18-04-24.doc 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 
  Executive Committee 

Thursday, April 26, 2018 
Central Marin Police Authority 
250 Doherty Drive, Larkspur 

9:00 – 10:00 AM 
 

MINUTES 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT  
Cristine Alilovich, City of San Rafael 
Regan Candelario, City of Novato 
Adam Politzer, City of Sausalito 
Dan Eilerman, County of Marin  
Garrett Toy, Town of Fairfax 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT   
None 

OTHERS PRESENT 
Jim Iavarone, Mill Valley Refuse  
John Maher, Maher Accountancy 
Chris Reilly, Marin County OES 
Garth Schultz, R3 Consulting Group 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Steve Devine 
Ernest Klock 
Casey Poldino 
Judith Silver 
 

Consent Calendar 
 

1. Executive Committee Meeting Notes from April 27, 2017 
 Information item only. No action taken.  

 
2. Receive and File Audit and Financial Statement for Year Ending June 30, 2017 

 
3. Receive and File Five Year Regional Agency Integrated Waste Management Plan 

Review Report 
 

Motion: by Mr. Candelario made a motion to approve Items 2 and 3 of the Consent 
Calendar. Second: by Mr. Eilerman. Vote: Unanimous.  
 
Regular Agenda 

 
4. Open Time for Public Comment 

No public comment was tendered.  
 
5. Report From the JPA Local Task Force 

While there was no report from any Local Task Force Members, Mr. Devine shared 
that at the April 4th JPA Local Task Force Meeting, the LTF elected a new Chair, Dee 
Johnson, representing Novato Sanitary District, and a new Vice Chair, Renee 
Goddard, representing the Ross Valley Cities. Also, there is a new member 
representing the City of San Rafael, Alice Cochran. Lastly, at the JPA Board’s next 



 

f:\waste\jpa\excom\minutes\2018\draft minutes 18-04-24.doc 

meeting on May 24th, the JPA Board will consider an appointment to the vacant 
Southern Marin LTF Seat. Information item only. No action taken.  

 
6. Presentation by R3 Consulting on the Material Flow and Capacity Analysis Project 

Mr. Devine gave a brief overview and review of this Board authorized project, and 
introduced Garth Schultz from R3 Consulting who gave a presentation. A similar 
presentation will be provided by R3 Consulting to the full Board at its May 24, 2018, 
Meeting. Information item only. No action taken.    

 
7. Proposed FY 18/19 Budget and Assessment Schedule 

Mr. Devine presented the proposed FY 18/19 Budget and Assessment Schedule. He 
explained how the JPA assessments translate into a percentage of the monthly 
charge for a typical residential account. Haulers reported last year that the 
assessments translated into less than 4% of the rate seen by a typical residential 
customer. He explained how the JPA Budget is organized into three funds: 1. The 
Zero Waste Fund, 2. The State Reporting/Requirements Fund, and 3. The Household 
Hazardous Waste Fund. 
 
Mr. Devine shared information on two new significant proposed projects in the draft 
FY 18/19 Budget:  1). Conducting a new Zero Waste Plan, in light of Marin stalling 
out at ~70% diversion well short of both the 80% diversion goal for 2012 and zero 
waste by 2025.  And, 2). Preparation of a Disaster Debris Plan.  To minimize the cost 
impact of these two one-time projects, it is proposed to pay for them though a one-
year suspension of the $350,000 zero waste grant program. 
 
He shared how labor is a significant portion of expenditures in the Budget. He shared 
some highlights of ongoing activities in the three fund centers, including the 
Construction & Demolition Program, the home composting program, Member Agency 
and public outreach support, the Zero Waste Schools Program. He provided 
information regarding the States Requirements Reporting Programs and the HHW 
programs.  
 
Mr. Devine reviewed the requested action of the Executive Committee which was to 
recommend the proposed FY 18/19 Budget be considered for adoption by the Full 
JPA Board at its upcoming May 24, 2018 meeting or provide specific direction to Staff 
on any desired changes. 
 
There was general discussion by the JPA Board on the budget and a request by 
Politzer to meet with staff to discuss some further questions.  Motion: Mr. Candelario 
to recommend the Draft FY 18/19 Budget be considered for adoption, as is, by the full 
JPA Board at its upcoming meeting on May 24.  Second: Eilerman. Ayes: Alilovich, 
Candelario, Eilerman and Toy.  Noes:  None.  Abstentions: Politzer. 



4 
 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/446-7373 

 
 
 
Belvedere 
   
 
Corte Madera 
   
 
County of Marin 
   
 
Fairfax 
   
 
Larkspur 
   
 
Mill Valley 
   
 
Novato 
   
 
Ross 
 
 
San Anselmo 
  
 
San Rafael 
  
 
Sausalito 
 
 
Tiburon 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Date: May 24, 2018 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re: Appointment to the Vacant Southern Marin Cities and Towns Seat 

on the Local Task Force 
 
Joan Irwin, a long-time Local Task Force Member representing the 
Southern Marin cities resigned from her position late last year to pursue 
other interests. The JPA agreement defines the Southern Marin cities as 
Sausalito, Tiburon, Belvedere, and Mill Valley. 
 
Following a several months long recruitment period, Molly de Vries, a 
local business owner in Mill Valley tendered a letter of interest (attached) 
and has attended a Local Task Force meeting.   
 
Ms. De Vries owns and operates Ambatalia, a textile business focusing 
on a non-disposable lifestyle.  
 
You are being asked to consider her appointment to the vacant Southern 
Marin cities seat on your Local Task Force. 
 
Recommendation: 
Adopt a Motion appointing Molly de Vries to the Southern Marin Local 
Task Force seat. 
 
Attachments: 
 
1. Molly de Vries letter of interest. 
2. Molly de Vries resume. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

f:\waste\jpa\jpa agenda items\jpa 180524\item 4 - appointment to so. marin ltf seat.doc
 













5 
MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

 
Belvedere 
 
 
Corte Madera 
 
 
County of Marin 
 
 
Fairfax 
 
 
Larkspur 
 
 
Mill Valley 
 
 
Novato 
 
 
Ross 
 
 
San Anselmo 
 
 
San Rafael 
 
 
Sausalito 
 
 
Tiburon 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Date:  May 24, 2018 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re: Appointment to the Southern Marin Cities and Towns Seat on the 

Executive Committee 
 
Section 7.4 of the Joint Powers Agreement specifies that the five 
Executive Committee Members shall serve two-year terms and may be 
reappointed.  Three of the Members are prescribed to be the 
representatives from the “large” Members: San Rafael, Novato and the 
County.  The remaining two members are from the: 
 
1. Southern Marin Cities (Sausalito, Tiburon, Belvedere, and Mill 

Valley).  This seat is currently held by Adam Politzer from Sausalito. 
 
2. Ross Valley Cities (Ross, San Anselmo, Fairfax, Larkspur, and Corte 

Madera).  This seat is currently held by Garrett Toy from Fairfax. 
 
These two appointments were made at your May 27, 2017 meeting.  
These Executive Committee appointments occur in the “odd years” – 
unless there is a trigger of some sort to revisit the matter for a City 
Manager change, retirement, etc. 
 
Pursuant to information provided to staff at the April 26, 2018 Executive 
Committee meeting – it is understood that to coordinate with other 
appointments made to local and regional assignments via the Marin 
Manager’s Association – there is a desire to appoint Greg Chanis 
(Tiburon) to the Southern Marin Seat.  
 
RECCOMENDATION 
1. Adopt a Motion appointing Greg Chanis as the Southern Marin Cities 

Board Member to the Executive Committee replacing Adam Politzer. 
 
 
 

f:\waste\jpa\jpa agenda items\jpa 180524\item 5 - southern marin board rep.doc 
5/18/2018 12:47 PM 



6 
MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

 
Belvedere 
 
 
Corte Madera 
   
 
County of Marin 
   
 
Fairfax 
  
 
Larkspur 
   
 
Mill Valley 
  
 
Novato 
   
 
Ross 
   
 
San Anselmo 
   
 
San Rafael 
   
 
Sausalito 
   
 
Tiburon 
   
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Date:  May 24, 2018 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re: Receive and File Marin Household Hazardous Waste Program 

Fiscal Year 2016/17 Report 
 
The JPA funds Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) and small business 
(Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generators) services for Marin 
(except for Novato) via a contract with the City of San Rafael Fire 
Department, which in turn contracts with the Marin Recycling & 
Resource Recovery Association for the operation of the HHW facility at 
565 Jacoby Street in San Rafael. The program also provides for several 
“Toxic Away Days” in the more remote, West Marin. 
 
The HHW program continues to be a very popular service and in FY 
16/17 the program collected over 1.6 million pounds of hazardous 
materials. 
 
This program is the single largest, tangible pollution prevention service in 
the County. 
 
The vast majority of materials received at the facility are either directed 
for recycling or fuel incineration. Over 60% of the material is recycled 
and another 25% is destined for fuel recovery. 
 
Recommendation: 
Adopt a Motion to receive and file attached report from the City of San 
Rafael Fire Department. 
 
Attachment: 
 
1. Marin Household Hazardous Waste Program – Fiscal Year 2016/17 

Report. 
 
 
 

f:\waste\jpa\jpa agenda items\jpa 180524\item 6 - sr fire hhw annual report.doc 
5/18/2018 12:48 PM 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Marin Household Hazardous Waste 
Program 

 
Fiscal Year 2016/17 

Report 



-1- 

 

Fiscal Year 2016/17 Summary   
 
The Marin Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) Program had another productive and 
successful year. The program ended FY 2016/17 significantly under budget and several 
one-time, special projects were accomplished.  
 
Notable special projects include the following purchases: 
 

• An air gun and sander;   
• Four new forklift tires and foam filling; 
• A sign to place above the front gate; 
• An iPad with case to process payments and avoid collecting cash from 

customers. 
 
Additionally, six pieces of concrete were cut to reinforce and protect the entrance gate, 
and a new fence was built to enclose the drum storage area.  

 
In FY 2016/17, the commodities recycling markets stabilized at what can be expected to 
be a “new normal” of low revenues for collection facilities.  This has impacted revenue 
collected from CRTs, miscellaneous electronic waste, cooking oil, motor oil, and anti-
freeze.    
 



-2- 

 

Separately, a successful West Marin Toxic Away Day temporary collection event was 
held in May 2017 in Point Reyes Station. The event turned out 51 participants and 
approximately 6,000 pounds of waste were collected. 
 
Personnel-wise, Courtney Scott left her position as Environmental Management 
Coordinator in September 2016.  San Rafael Deputy Fire Chief Bob Sinnott capably took 
on her responsibilities until a new Environmental Management Coordinator, David 
Catalinotto, joined the department in February 2017.   
 
 
HHW Program Overview    
 
The Marin HHW Program is a combination of HHW services provided at the Marin HHW 
Facility, at West Marin Toxic Away Days, and through the Pilot Household Universal 
Waste Pick-Up Program. Residents of Marin County, except Novato, may drop off their 
HHW at the facility or at the collection events for free, and residents of San Rafael may 
have their waste picked up from their house for a fee (the City of Fairfax discontinued its 
pick-up program in 2016). Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generator (CESQG) 
businesses may drop off their hazardous waste for a fee. 
 
The Marin HHW Facility offers a reuse area where like-new products are available for 
residents and businesses to take for free. The reuse area is open to the public during 
facility hours. Additionally, we offer reprocessed latex paint for a fee to the public and to 
local jurisdictions for the use of graffiti abatement, offered in white, beige, and gray. 
 
Household battery collection bins are conveniently located at fire stations and select 
businesses across Marin County. These bins are only for use by Marin County 
households and the batteries are then brought to the Marin HHW Facility and sent for 
recycling. This program is run separately from the JPA’s Bulb and Battery Program. 
 
The following table is a brief summary of the number of people who participated in the 
Marin HHW Program and the amount of waste that was collected in FY 2016/17. The 
HHW Program collected 1,618,347 pounds of hazardous waste overall, virtually 
unchanged from the FY 2015/16 total of 1,617,836 pounds.  
 
 

Program Type Pounds Collected Household 
Participants 

CESQG 
Participants 

Marin HHW Facility 1,611,997 24,884 461 
Pt. Reyes Toxic Away Day 5,871 51 N/A 
San Rafael Pick-Up Program 479 3 N/A 
Reuse Area 22,670 N/A 

 
 
  



-3- 

 

Budget 
 
The HHW Facility’s FY 2016/17 budget allocation was $1,474,291, an 8.7% increase 
from the FY 2015/16 budget of $1,320,255. The FY 2016/17 HHW facility budget 
included an additional $50,000 cushion to account for the weak market and $25,000 to 
replace expected revenue loss with the loss of oil grant money (FY 2015/16 was the final 
year for which oil grant money was allocated to the facility). Financially, the Marin HHW 
Program ended the year $49,177 under budget.  
 
Staff continues to search for new markets for selling waste and enhanced recycling 
opportunities despite the “new normal” of an unfriendly recycling market. The facility now 
sends all dry-cell batteries to Call2Recycle for recycling, which not only builds on a 
partnership that had started with rechargeable batteries but also saves the facility money 
on recycling of alkaline and other non-rechargeable batteries.  
 
Fortunately, rechargeable batteries, sharps, and thermostats are still collected at no 
charge. Additionally, the facility continues to sell reprocessed paint to customers for 
$4.65 per gallon and to receive money for its lead-acid batteries.  
 
This fiscal year, the Marin HHW Program recovered $110,031 in outside funding.   
 

Temporary HHW Collection Events 2016/2017 Expenses 
 

Expense Item       Expense 

  Labor Costs Subtotal $1,845.00 

  Disposal Costs Subtotal $4,046.00 

  Supply Purchase Costs Subtotal $1,888.00 

  GRAND TOTAL: $7,779.00 
 

  



-4- 

 

HHW Facility 2016/2017 Actual Results 

  Expense Item   Actual 

  Classified Personnel  $    402,196.50  
Vacation pay  $      34,754.72  
Group Life/Health Insurance (was 8128)  $      68,915.30  
Worker's Compensation  $      65,392.14  
Retirement  $      16,883.80  
Payroll Taxes  $      36,950.22  
PERSONNEL SUBTOTAL  $    625,092.68  

  Legal and Professional   $           551.00 
Travel & Conference  $        8,287.27  

Training Instruction & Medical Examinations   $           802.20  
Equipment Rental/Repair  $        6,178.32  
Contractual Services   $        2,595.00   
Waste Disposal Costs  $    387,945.60  
Advertising & Community Promotions   $           409.00  
Insurance & Surety Bonds  $      16,574.93  
Admin. Allocation  $      73,861.99  
Office Supplies  $      12,769.29  
Clothing & PPE Supplies  $      42,922.10  
Miscellaneous Supplies & Materials  $    117,308.97  
Maintenance Buildings & Improvements   $      10,610.00 
NON-PERSONNEL SUBTOTAL  $    680,815.67  

  Operating Ratio  $    137,084.10  
Rental/Land  $      92,152.92  
EXPENSES SUBTOTAL  $ 1,535,145.57  

  OUTSIDE FUNDING SOURCES: 
 BOP Grant Monies   $                 (0) 

E-Waste Monies  $   (12,670.74) 
Batteries Monies   $   (10,008.00) 
Paint Sale Monies   $     (1,217.01) 
CESQG Monies  $    (86,135.63) 
OUTSIDE FUNDING SUBTOTAL  $  (110,031.38) 

  GRAND TOTAL  $ 1,425,114.19  

  Approved Budget for FY 2016/17  $  1,474,290.79  
Under budget  $       49,176.80  



-5- 

 

Waste Analysis 
 
The following waste totals include the West Marin Toxic Away Days.   
 
The facility continues to save money by partnering with PaintCare, which pays the San 
Rafael Fire Department to take certain paint products from the facility for recycling.  The 
oil-based paint category only includes items on PaintCare’s accepted materials list; it 
does not include paint that has been bulked with other flammable liquids. Approximately 
one-third of the Marin HHW Facility’s annual waste (by weight) went to PaintCare, with 
paint-related materials such as thinners and resins that are not a part of PaintCare 
accounting for an additional 14.1% of HHW program waste.  
 
 

  
* = “Batteries” category includes household, rechargeable, and car batteries.  These are individually listed in 
the table on page 6. 
** = Quantities of other waste types are included in the table on page 6.  
  

  

Latex Paint, 
27.0%

E-Waste, 17.3%

Flammable and 
Poisonous, 

15.0%

Paint-Related 
Materials, 

14.1%

Oil-Based Paint, 
6.4%

Batteries*, 
6.2%

Motor Oil/Oil 
Products, 2.4%

Other Wastes**, 
11.6%

HHW Program Waste Type



-6- 

 

HHW Program Waste Totals by Type in Pounds 
 

Waste Type Pounds % of Total 
Latex Paint 437,210 27.0 
E-Waste 279,635 17.3 
Flammable and Poisonous 243,077 15.0 
Paint-Related Materials 228,450 14.1 
Oil-Based Paint 103,369 6.4 
Household Batteries 54,280 3.4 
Base 43,280 2.7 
Motor Oil/Oil Products 39,589 2.4 
Car Batteries 38,542 2.4 
Lamps 36,275 2.2 
Aerosol Cans 21,872 1.4 
Asbestos 21,480 1.3 
Acid 15,480 1.0 
Antifreeze 8,883 0.5 
Rechargeable Batteries 6,767 0.4 
Oxidizer 5,224 0.3 
Used Oil Filters 2,650 0.2 
PCB-containing 1,558 0.1 
Sharps 744 0.0 
Mercury-Containing Items (except 
Thermostats) 138 0.0 
Thermostats 40 0.0 
Unclassified 29,804 1.8 
FY 16/17 Total: 1,618,347  
FY 16/17 Monthly Average: 134,862  

 
 
 
 
  



-7- 

 

Destination Method 
 
Destination methods are based on the CalRecycle 303a reporting categories. The 
destination percentages are similar to those from prior years, with approximately 61% of 
the waste being recycled and only 1.5% being landfilled. Common waste items that are 
recycled are latex paint, e-waste, batteries, and motor oil. Most of the reused items were 
e-waste, household cleaners, pesticides, and paint products. 
 
There are two types of incineration: destructive and fuel. The goal of destructive 
incineration is to simply destroy the material. During fuel incineration, energy is 
recovered through the burning process and sometimes material will also be recovered. 
The most common types of HHW used for fuel incineration are oil-based paint and 
flammable liquids, while poisons make up the majority of the waste sent for destructive 
incineration. 
 
Among household hazardous wastes, only acids and bases go through neutralization 
and treatment. During this process, the pH of the waste is chemically adjusted to remove 
the hazard. 
 
Just over 2,000 pounds of oxidizers were sent for stabilization, during which waste is 
brought to a solid or semi-solid state and is rendered non-hazardous. 
 
Nearly all the landfilled waste consisted of asbestos.  
 

 

Destructive 
Incineration

4.8%
Fuel 

Incineration
26.3%

Landfill
1.5%

Neutralization/ 
Treatment

3.4%

Recycled
60.8%

Reused
3.1%

Stabilization
0.1%

Destination Method for All Program Waste



-8- 

 

 Residential Participation    
 
Participants are sorted by jurisdiction by reviewing the mailing address on their 
identifying documentation. Residents from unincorporated communities adjacent to a city 
thus are likely to be counted as city residents; for example, residents of Tamalpais 
Valley are counted as residents of Mill Valley. To account for this, city populations are 
based on U.S. Census ZIP Code Tabulation Area (ZCTA) data. The data show that 
residents from all over the service area use the HHW facility.  
 

 

 * = City population based on ZIP Code Tabulation Area (ZCTA) data from U.S. Census Bureau  

Belvedere, 0.7%

Corte Madera, 
5.5%

Fairfax, 5.4%
Larkspur, 3.7%

Mill Valley, 
13.5%

Ross, 1.2%

San Anselmo, 
9.7%

San Rafael, 
39.4%

Sausalito, 3.8%
Tiburon, 3.9%

Unincorporated 
Marin County, 

13.0%

Residential Participation by Jurisdiction

0

50

100

150

200

250

Participants per 1,000 Residents*



-9- 

 

CESQG Participation  

 
Although businesses from all over the county bring their hazardous waste to the facility, 
roughly half are from a single jurisdiction: San Rafael.     
 
 

  
 
 
Looking Forward FY 2017/18  
 
The HHW Program never stop seeking innovative approaches for enhancing recycling 
and reuse opportunities. 
 
The Marin HHW Facility is partnering with Austin, Texas-based Smarter Sorting to 
increase reuse of products and save money on disposal fees.  Through the use of 
Smarter Sorting's patented scanner, we can find end-use markets for household 
products that otherwise may be incinerated or sent to a landfill.  
 
Our excellent and hard-working staff will continue our mission to provide a safe and 
convenient way for members of the public and small business to dispose of their 
hazardous waste.       
 

 

Belvedere, 
0.7%

Corte Madera, 
4.6%

Fairfax, 4.8% Larkspur, 
3.0%

Mill Valley, 
5.2%

Ross, 2.2%
San Anselmo, 

4.1%

San Rafael, 
50.3%

Sausalito, 5.9%

Tiburon, 3.5%

Unincorporated 
Marin County, 

15.8%

CESQG Participation by Jurisdiction



7 
MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

 
 
Belvedere 
 
 
Corte Madera 
 
 
County of Marin 
 
 
Fairfax 
 
 
Larkspur 
 
 
Mill Valley 
 
 
Novato 
 
 
Ross 
 
 
San Anselmo 
 
 
San Rafael 
 
 
Sausalito 
 
 
Tiburon 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Date:  May 24, 2018 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re: Presentation by R3 Consulting on Material Flow and Capacity 

Analysis Project 
 
Marin is required to report annually to the state on the capacity of 
landfills in Marin (Redwood Landfill in Novato) and organics capacity 
over a 15-year time horizon. Member Agencies of Zero Waste Marin, 
including Marin County and the eleven incorporated cities and towns are 
responsible for arranging for the collection, transfer, transport, and 
disposal or processing of garbage, organic material, and recyclables.  
To help assess long term disposal and organics capacity in Marin the 
JPA Board authorized a Material Flow and Capacity Analysis in the FY 
17-18 Budget. The most salient elements of the MFCA Study are 
included as a series of attachments to this Staff Report. R3 Consulting, 
the contractor selected to lead a team of industry experts to complete 
the Study will be providing an oral presentation and be available to 
answer questions. 
 
Recommendation 
Information item only.  Receive Material Flow and Capacity Analysis 
Presentation from R3 Consulting. 
 
Attachments: 
 
1. Summary of MFCA Project Letter from R3 Dated 04/12/18 
2. Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis Report Dated 04/02/18 
3. Remaining Landfill Capacity Projections Memo Dated 03/30/18 
4. DRS Tool and AB 901 Preparation Memo Dated 03/30/18 
5. Tonnage Scenario Tool Memo Dated 03/30/18 
6. Organics Processing Capacity and Landfill Capacity Infographic 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Agenda Items\JPA 180524\Item 7 - MFCA SR.doc 



 

www.r3cgi.com 

1512 Eureka Road, Suite 220, Roseville, CA 95661 
Tel: 916-782-7821 | Fax: 916-782-7824 

2600 Tenth Street, Suite 411, Berkeley, CA 94710 
Tel: 510-647-9674 

627 S. Highland Avenue, Suite 300, Los Angeles, CA 90036 
Tel: 323-559-7470   

 

 

April 12, 2018  

Ms. Judith Silver, Senior Planner 
Marin County Hazardous and Solid Waste JPA 
1600 Los Gamos Drive, Suite 210 
San Rafael, CA 94903 
 
Subject:  Summary of Material Flow and Capacity Analysis Project 

Dear Ms. Silver, 

Marin County Hazardous and Solid Waste Management Joint Powers Authority (Zero Waste Marin) 
engaged R3 Consulting Group, Inc. (R3) to lead a team of industry experts including R3, Integrated 
Waste Management Consulting, LLC; Cascadia Consulting Group; and Debra Kaufman Consulting 
(collectively, Project Team) to assist the agency improve regulatory compliance, preparedness, and long-
term planning for landfill and organics processing capacity county-wide. Significant changes in statewide 
requirements and an increased emphasis on the diversion of organics from landfill have led to a need for 
planning for organics infrastructure capacity, and for benchmarking organics diversion success over 
time. There are also several new regulations which affect diversion reporting, potentially changing the 
type of information that is available to Zero Waste Marin. 

The Material Flow and Capacity Analysis Project Report is composed of the following sections: 

 Organics Generation and Capacity Report 

 DRS Tool and AB 901 Preparedness Memorandum 

 Landfill Capacity Memorandum 

 Tonnage Scenario Tool Memorandum 

Each deliverable was designed to assist the agency report to the state and measure diversion over time, 
in alignment with the statewide requirements under several new regulations and to contemplate future 
capacity requirements for both organic materials and disposal.  

Background 
Marin County is required to report annually to the state on the landfill capacity and organics capacity 
over a 15-year time horizon. Member Agencies of Zero Waste Marin, including Marin County and the 11 
incorporated cities and towns within Marin County, are responsible for arranging for the collection, 
transfer, transport, and disposal or processing of garbage, organic material, and recyclables. Zero Waste 
Marin does not control flow of these materials, and has not contracted to provide for capacity for any of 
these materials at this time. 



Ms. Judith Silver 
April 12, 2018 
Page 2 of 6 
 

 

 

Sufficient disposal capacity for landfilled garbage exists over a 15-year time horizon, even with no 
diversion increases and if all disposal from Marin County is directed at Redwood Landfill (some of 
Marin’s garbage is landfilled at Potrero Hills landfill in Solano County, and other landfills throughout the 
region).  

However, capacity for processing organic materials (food waste, green material, landscape waste, wood 
waste, lumber, paper, cardboard, and biosolids/sludge/digestate) does not appear to be adequate, 
especially because we anticipate increased need for organics processing with increased program 
requirements from the State of California. Specifically, Senate Bill (SB) 1383 set ambitious targets for 
reduction of organics sent to landfill statewide, including (next page): 

 A 50% reduction in statewide disposal of organic waste from 2014 levels by 2020 

 A 75% reduction in statewide disposal of organic waste from 2014 levels by 2025 

 A 20% reduction in edible food currently disposed, for recovery and human consumption, by 
2025 

These statewide organic disposal reduction targets are anticipated to be passed on to local jurisdictions 
in the form of significant programmatic requirements, though the regulatory language is not yet 
finalized. More detail on the anticipated programmatic requirements can be found in the “Organics 
Generation and Capacity” report, which is attached to this letter.  

In order to assist Zero Waste Marin plan for organics processing capacity over the required 15-year 
planning horizon, the Project Team engaged in the following general activities:  

1) Developed a model characterizing organics disposal at landfill in 2014 and throughout a 15-
year time horizon from the current year (2014 – 2033). 

2) Provided a description of policies and programs that will be required, and those that are 
recommended by the Project Team to increase organics diversion. 

3) Developed a model describing infrastructure capacity, including existing, additional, and 
future capacity. 

4) Identified additional needs for organics processing infrastructure based on the models 
developed in 1) and 3), above. 

Generally, organics (commingled green material composed of food scraps and food-soiled paper) are 
collected from residents by haulers in curbside programs. From commercial businesses, haulers collect 
either food scraps or food scraps mixed with food soiled paper and other green material. The anaerobic 
digestion process that absorbs the Marin Sanitary Services’ “Food to Energy” Program’s source 
separated food scraps has no tolerance for food soiled paper, limiting the usefulness of this processing 
option.  EarthCare, the largest and only fully permitted compost facility in Marin County does accept 
compostable paper, however since it markets its finished soil as an organic product, there are severe 
limitations on potential contaminants including Biobags which can thwart commercial business 
participation.  

The  Organics Generation and Capacity Report contemplates many different organics diversion 
programs and many processing options including source reduction, composting, anaerobic digestion, 
biomass, and land application. For the purpose of our analysis, we have considered each of these 
possible avenues as being desirable, with the understanding that a goal of Zero Waste Marin is to divert 
as much organic materials as possible. 



Ms. Judith Silver 
April 12, 2018 
Page 3 of 6 
 

 

 

Findings 
Figure 1, next page, shows a summary of the waste disposal characterization developed by the Project 
Team.  

Figure 1: Disposal Waste Characterization for 2014 with Detailed Organic Materials 

Clean wood represents a significant portion of the un-diverted organic material, and faces challenges 
because of the weakness of the biomass market. 

Recyclable paper is best diverted to recycling markets, not organics processing options. Edible food is 
best diverted via food recovery (and SB 1383 goals are focused on edible food recovery for human 
consumption, not diversion generally). Therefore, these two material types are not included in the SB 
1383 organics infrastructure model, which is shown in Figure 2, next page.  

As shown in Figure 2, insufficient capacity exists within the county for processing organic material 
diverted in alignment with the statewide organics reduction goals. Processing capacity was determined 
by contacting the operators of the various processing facilities in Marin County, which include windrow 
composting, aerated static pile composting, and anaerobic digestion. The windrow composting facilities 
in Marin County accept green material but not food scraps. The aerated static pile composting facility 
(EarthCare) accepts green material with commingled food scraps and food-soiled paper. The anaerobic 
digester accepts food scraps only. 
  



Ms. Judith Silver 
April 12, 2018 
Page 4 of 6 
 

 

 

Figure 2: Organics Generation and Processing Capacity Under Achievement of SB 1383 Goals 
All Materials 

 

Figure 2 displays one possible scenario for organics tonnage change over time. The data used for this 
analysis (and the other two scenarios given in the “Organics Generation and Capacity” report) were both 
generated using a spreadsheet, which was provided to Zero Waste Marin staff and can be used by staff 
to input other data and display a number of other possible scenarios. These scenarios include the 
possibility that some organics currently processed in the county that originate in other counties, most 
notably Sonoma and Alameda, will, once new compost facilities in other locations come on line, cease to 
be delivered to Marin thereby opening up more capacity for Marin generated organic materials. This 
tool is described in more detail in the “Tonnage Scenario Tool” memorandum, attached to this letter.  

Finally, the Project Team engaged in an extensive effort to improve the spreadsheet used by Marin 
County for reporting to the state on disposal tonnages. The Project Team also summarized diversion and 
disposal data in a similar format for the years 2014 through 2017 by quarter, allowing Zero Waste Marin 
to produce customizable charts displaying disposal and diversion data by Member Agency or by hauler 
service area over time. 

Recommendations 
The Project Team recommends that Zero Waste Marin encourages local infrastructure expansion and 
development for organics processing. Additionally, Member Agencies are encouraged to secure organics 
processing capacity by pursuing one of the following options: 

 Requiring haulers to secure agreements that secure adequate capacity for organics processing, 
with specific terms and review for adequacy by each agency. Additionally, agreements should 
explicitly reserve the right of the jurisdiction to direct flow such that the jurisdiction can 
separately procure for processing capacity outside of the collection contract. 



Ms. Judith Silver 
April 12, 2018 
Page 5 of 6 
 

 

 

 Establishing flow control to organics processing facilities via contracts between facilities and the 
jurisdiction. 

 Request that Zero Waste Marin arrange for organics processing capacity on behalf of its 
Member Agencies. 

If capacity is not secured, given the significant increases in anticipated organics diversion, Member 
Agencies’ haulers may not be able to deliver organic material to local facilities, especially given that 
other entities may have contracts that secure processing capacity with facilities in Marin County.  

This may result in the need to ship organic material to a more distant processing facility. Transfer and 
transport to facilities that are not local to Marin could mean higher costs, and greater environmental 
and greenhouse gas emission impacts. 

Figure 3, below, is a map showing the locations of nearby organics processing facilities. 

Figure 3: Nearby Organics Processing Facilities 

 

Landfill Capacity 

Regarding landfill capacity, Member Agencies should being to consider transfer and transport out of 
County in anticipation of the exhaustion of landfill capacity. It should be noted that flows from outside 
the county and disasters (such as the recent Sonoma fire disaster) can affect the time horizon for 
exhaustion of capacity. Zero Waste Marin should consider the impacts of future disasters similar to the 



Ms. Judith Silver 
April 12, 2018 
Page 6 of 6 
 

 

 

Sonoma fires, and begin disaster debris planning exercises on a countywide basis. More information is 
presented in the memorandum entitled, “Landfill Capacity,” which is attached to this letter.  

Assembly Bill 901 Preparedness 

Regarding Assembly Bill 901 preparedness, Zero Waste Marin should anticipate changes to statewide 
reporting requirements resulting from AB 901 which may limit access to disposal and diversion data, and 
should consider requiring ongoing reporting from haulers and facilities. More information on this topic 
can be found in the attached memorandum entitled, “DRS Tool and AB 901 Preparedness.”  

 

* * * * 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to assist Zero Waste Marin in this very exciting and ground-breaking 
analysis. Should you have any questions regarding this Report, or need any additional information, 
please contact me by phone at (510) 292-0853 or by email at gschultz@r3cgi.com.  

Sincerely, 

R3 CONSULTING GROUP 

 

 

 

Garth Schultz | Principal 

 

Attachments 

 Organics Generation and Capacity Report 

 DRS Tool and AB 901 Preparedness Memorandum 

 Landfill Capacity Memorandum 

 Tonnage Scenario Tool Memorandum 

mailto:gschultz@r3cgi.com


 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                         
  

Report Submitted Digitally as PDF

CLIENT: 

Zero Waste Marin 
April 2, 2018 

FINAL REPORT 

Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis 



This page intentionally left blank. 
 



  
 

 

Table of 
Contents 

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT

TOC ‐ i 

Table of Contents 
Section 1  Executive Summary .................................................................. 1 

Methodology ........................................................................................................ 1 

Significant Findings and Recommendations ........................................................ 2 

Section 2   Background .............................................................................. 5 

Section 3  Model of Disposed Organics .................................................... 7 

Objective .............................................................................................................. 7 

Regulatory Context .............................................................................................. 7 

SB 1383 – Short‐Lived Climate Pollutants ....................................................... 7 

AB 876 – Organics Management Infrastructure Planning............................... 8 

Methodology ........................................................................................................ 9 

Findings .............................................................................................................. 11 

Recommendations ............................................................................................. 14 

Section 4   Policies and Programs to Increase Organics Diversion ........... 15 

Objective ............................................................................................................ 15 

Regulatory Context ............................................................................................ 15 

SB 1383 ‐ Short‐Lived Climate Pollutants ...................................................... 15 

AB 1826 – Mandatory Commercial Organics Recycling ................................ 16 

AB 1594 – Green Material Used as ADC is Disposal ...................................... 17 

AB 1219 – Expansion of Good Samaritan Law .............................................. 18 

SB 557 –  School Food Donations .................................................................. 19 

Methodology .................................................................................................... 19 

Findings ............................................................................................................. 19 

Recommendations ............................................................................................ 20 

Section 5  Existing Organics Processing Capacity .................................... 23 

Objective ............................................................................................................ 23 

Regulatory Context ............................................................................................ 23 

Methodology ...................................................................................................... 23 

Findings .............................................................................................................. 24 

Capacity Modeling: Permitted Versus Actual .................................................... 27 

Modeling Out‐of‐County and Non‐Franchised Tons .......................................... 27 

Recommendations ............................................................................................. 28 



 

  

Table of 
Contents 

 

  

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT 

TOC ‐ ii 

Section 6  Additional Organics Processing Capacity Needed .................. 29 

Objective ............................................................................................................ 29 

Regulatory Context ............................................................................................ 29 

Methodology ...................................................................................................... 30 

Findings .............................................................................................................. 31 

Recommendations ............................................................................................. 35 

Policy Options to Encourage Infrastructure Expansion and Development ........ 35 

Future Planning Efforts ...................................................................................... 35 
 

Appendices 
1  SB 1383 Timeline  

2  AB 876 First Year Analysis Findings and Recommendations 

3  Detailed Material Classifications and Definitions 

4  Detailed Model Methodology 

5  2014 Baseline Model Sector‐ and Material‐Specific Findings 
  



  
 

 

 

Section 1 

Executive 
Summary 

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT

Page 1 of 36 

1  Executive Summary 
The next few years present a significant paradigm shift in solid waste management in the State 
of  California  (State):  resource  recovery  has  been  identified  as  an  important  means  of 
greenhouse  gas  emission  reduction,  and  is  no  longer  considered  merely  a  resource 
conservation measure. This shift is illustrated in a number of new State laws with ambitious 
targets for organic waste reduction, and requirements on local jurisdictions and commercial 
businesses statewide.  

The Marin County Hazardous and Solid Waste Management Joint Powers Authority (JPA, also 
known  as  Zero Waste Marin)  represents Marin  County  and  the  11  incorporated  cities  and 
towns within Marin County (collectively, Member Agencies). Among other duties, Zero Waste 
Marin  reports  to  the  Department  of  Resources  Recycling  and  Recovery  (CalRecycle)  on 
compliance with State solid waste management and planning requirements.  

Zero Waste Marin engaged R3 Consulting Group, Inc. (R3) to lead a team of industry experts 
including R3, Integrated Waste Management Consulting, LLC; Cascadia Consulting Group; and 
Debra Kaufman Consulting (collectively, the Project Team) in assisting the agency to improve 
regulatory  compliance,  preparedness,  and  long‐term  planning  for  landfill  and  organics 
processing capacity county‐wide. The following Report presents the Project Team’s findings 
related to legislative and regulatory compliance and organics management planning over a 15‐
year time period in the County of Marin. 

Methodology 

In order to fully describe and assess organics infrastructure needs, as well as address regulatory 
requirements under SB 1383, the Project Team:  

1) Developed a model characterizing organics disposal at landfill in 2014 and throughout 
a 15‐year time horizon from the current year (2014 – 2033) (Section 3 of this Report). 

2) Provided a description of policies and programs that will be required, and those that 
are recommended by the Project Team to increase organics diversion (Section 4 of this 
Report). 

3) Developed a model describing  infrastructure capacity,  including existing, additional, 
and future capacity (Section 5 of this Report). 

4) Identified additional needs for organics processing infrastructure based on the models 
developed in 1) and 3), above (Section 6 of this Report). 

Each of these actions is further described below and organized into the following subsections: 

 Objective  

 Regulatory Context  

 Methodology 

 Findings 

 Recommendations 

The Project Team is aware that Marin Sanitary Service commissioned a study on SB 1383 and 
organics planning entitled “2017 Organic Waste Recycling Plan.”  



 

 

 

Section 1 

Executive 
Summary 

 

  

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT 

Page 2 of 36 

This Report was informed by the MSS Plan; however, this Report is more specifically tailored 
to the reporting responsibilities of the JPA.  The model of disposed organics found in Section 3 
is based on a 2014 waste characterization for Marin County, rather than the statewide waste 
characterization which was used in the MSS Plan. Section 4 of this Report provides policies and 
program recommendations for all service areas of Marin County, not just the MSS service area. 
Furthermore, the capacity estimates presented in Section 5 of this Report were developed in 
conversation with all the organics processing facilities in the County. 

It  should  also  be  noted  that  this  Report  contemplates  many  different  organics  diversion 
programs with various means of diverting organics from landfill, including source reduction, 
composting,  anaerobic  digestion,  biomass,  and  land  application.  For  the  purpose  of  our 
analysis, we have considered each of these possible avenues as being equally desirable, with 
the understanding that a goal of Zero Waste Marin is to divert as much organic materials as 
possible. 

Significant Findings and Recommendations 

Organics Processing Capacity 

The Project Team has found that: 

 Ambitious targets have been set for the reduction of organic waste disposal statewide. 
The  individual  Cities,  Towns,  County  and  Zero  Waste  Marin  will  be  required  to 
implement dramatic programmatic changes and ongoing organics processing planning 
as  a  part  of  the  statewide  effort  to  reduce  organics  sent  to  landfill.  For  more 
information, please see Section 4 of this report. 

 Marin County already had a robust suite of programs for organics diversion in 2014, 
the SB 1383 baseline year, which means that the targets set for 50% and 75% reduction 
from that baseline are more ambitious than for other counties which may have had 
weaker programs in 2014. 

 SB 1383 requires 20% recovery of edible food for human consumption by 2025 (on a 
statewide basis). This is an ambitious target that will require creative problem‐solving 
and innovative new programs.  

 Insufficient capacity exists within the County or within reasonable hauling distance for 
processing  organic  materials  under  all  scenarios  modeled,  including  “Business  as 
Usual,” “Achievement of SB 1383 Goals,” and “Increasing Diversion,” starting in 2018. 
Zero Waste Marin may be required to plan for organics infrastructure expansion over 
the required time span of 15 years. For more information, please see Section 6 of this 
Report. 

 It may be difficult to subscribe a significant number of commercial businesses that can 
separate  food  scraps  from  compostable  paper,  both  due  to  limitations  from  the 
hauler’s  perspective  (staff  to  solicit,  train,  and monitor  businesses  and  operational 
capacity to collect and deliver source separated food scraps) and because capacity for 
processing this material stream is limited. The only facility in Marin County that accepts 
commercial source‐separated food (Central Marin Sanitation Agency) does not accept 
food‐soiled paper and other materials that are not source‐separated food scraps, and 
the  one  in‐County  composting  facility  that  accepts  food  scraps  only  accepts  that 
material commingled with yard waste (EarthCare). For more information, please see 
Section 6 of this Report. 



  
 

 

 

Section 1 

Executive 
Summary 

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT

Page 3 of 36 

 Zero Waste Marin may  consider  additional  programs  to  target  wood  diversion,  as 
wood has been  identified as a significant portion of  the disposed organics  in Marin 
County.  Currently,  the  biomass  market  is  weak  and  facility  operators  often  have 
difficulty finding outlets for wood. Support for these markets should also be pursued 
in tandem with programs targeting wood diversion, and should be considered as an 
area for further study.  

 Zero Waste Marin should consider undertaking a study on alternative “end uses” of 
biosolids/sludge outside of landfilling or use as Alternative Daily Cover at all sources of 
sludge  in  the County, and especially at  the anaerobic digester used  for  food scraps 
processing. For more information, please see Section 4 of this Report. 

 Zero Waste Marin may  also  consider working with  Redwood  Landfill  on  diversion‐
friendly pricing and sorting programs to assist in the diversion of organics delivered to 
that facility. 

 Member  Agencies  should  anticipate  the  potential  future  need  to  secure  organics 
processing capacity by: 

o Including the requirement that haulers secure agreements with commercial 
food scraps processors in collections agreements. 

o Reserving  the  right of  the  jurisdiction  to direct material  flow  such  that  the 
jurisdiction  can  procure  for  processing  capacity  outside  of  the  collection 
contract if needed. 

o Establishing  flow  control  agreements  to  encourage  future  infrastructure 
expansion and development.  

More information about potential policies to encourage infrastructure expansion and 
development can be found in Section 6 of this Report. 

 Zero Waste Marin  can  support  expansion  and  development  of  organics  processing 
infrastructure by means which are described more fully in Section 6 of this Report. 

Other Market Forces 

The Project Team has found that: 

 Though outside the scope of this Report, Zero Waste Marin should consider the effects 
of the “National Sword,” which is a ban on importing recyclable materials in China that 
exceed a certain level of contamination. The full effects of the “National Sword” are 
not well‐known, but recycling export markets are already showing signs of weakening. 
Zero Waste Marin should consider additional study on this topic.  

  



 

 

 

Section 1 

Executive 
Summary 

 

  

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT 

Page 4 of 36 

This page intentionally left blank.



  
 

 

 

Section 2 

Background 

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT

Page 5 of 36 

2   Background 
Recent  state  legislation  reflects  an  increasing  emphasis  on  diverting  organic material  from 
landfill. Key provisions of Senate Bill (SB) 1383 go into effect in 2022, with a target of a 50% 
statewide reduction of organic waste  from the 2014  level by 2020 and a 75% reduction by 
2025,  along with  a  goal  to  recover  for  human  consumption  no  less  than  20% of  currently 
disposed  edible  food.  Assembly  Bill  (AB)  1826  will  require  businesses  and  multi‐family 
dwellings with 5+ units that generate four (4) cubic yards of solid waste per week or more to 
receive organic waste collection service in 2019 (and may lower the threshold to 2 cubic yards 
of solid waste per week in 2020, to be determined by CalRecycle). AB 1594 will prohibit green 
material used as alternative daily cover (ADC) from qualifying as diversion credit beginning in 
2020. 

Marin  County  is  fortunate  to  be  a  frontrunner  in  organics  diversion,  with  ambitious  and 
successful  organics  diversion  programs  in  place  which  are  fostered  by  forward‐thinking 
haulers, public‐private partnerships, and social and political support for zero waste goals. For 
example,  Marin  Sanitary  Service  (MSS)  and  Central  Marin  Sanitation  Agency  (CMSA) 
cooperated  to establish an anaerobic digestion program  for  food scraps  (the F2E Program) 
beginning  in  2014.  Redwood  Landfill  is  host  to  Waste  Management’s  EarthCare  Compost 
Facility, a large‐volume processing facility permitted to accept food scraps and green material. 
Approximately 37% of the organics inbound to this facility are from Marin County; 100% of the 
food scraps inbound to CMSA are from Marin County. 

Moreover, many  of  the  programmatic  elements  that would  normally  be  recommended  to 
increase organics diversion are already in place in Marin County. These elements include: 

 Nearly universal roll‐out of food scraps collection commingled with green material in 
the residential sector. 

 Aggressive implementation of AB 1826 requirements. 

 The application of biosolids as ADC at landfill. 

 Co‐digestion of food scraps with biosolids at an anaerobic digester.  

 Lower tipping fees for green material at the landfill and transfer station in the County. 

Even given the existing diversion programs, Zero Waste Marin is aware of the stringent and 
extensive requirements for organics diversion under State law that are anticipated to come 
into effect on a rolling basis through 2022, and beyond. This legislation has in large part been 
motivated  by  the  State  of  California’s  climate  action  goals,  which  have  been  aggressively 
supported by State legislation under SB 1383.  
  



 

 

 

Section 2 

Background  

 

  

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT 

Page 6 of 36 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 



  
 

 

 

Section 3 

Model of 
Disposed 
Organics 

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT

Page 7 of 36 

3  Model of Disposed Organics 

Objective 

SB  1383  sets  statewide  targets  for  reduced  landfilling  of  organic materials  based  on  2014 
organic waste  disposal  levels.  The Project  Team estimated  the  tons  of  organic waste  from 
Marin County that were disposed in 2014, then calculated the organic waste tons that need to 
be diverted by 2020 and 2025 to comply with SB 1383. 

Regulatory Context 

SB 1383 – Short‐Lived Climate Pollutants 

The State of California passed SB 1383, Short‐Lived Climate Pollutants: Organic Waste Methane 
Emissions  Reductions,  in  September  2016.  Key  provisions  of  the  law  become  effective  on 
January 1, 2022. The State is currently in the process of developing draft regulatory language, 
which is anticipated to be finalized in summer 2018.  

Under  the  provisions  of  the  draft  regulatory  language  of  SB  1383,  the  State  has  set  the 
following diversion goals statewide: 

 A 50% reduction in the level of statewide disposal of organic waste from 2014 levels 
by the year 2020. 

 A 75% reduction in the level of statewide disposal of organic waste from 2014 levels 
by the year 2025. 

 A  20%  reduction  in  edible  food  currently  disposed,  for  recovery  and  human 
consumption, by the year 2025.  

These targets support the overarching goal of reducing methane emissions by 40% from 1990 
levels by 2020 under SB 32. The State recognizes that in order to achieve these goals between 
50 to 100 organic processing facilities will need to be built to handle and divert the organic 
waste identified in the legislation.  

Specific regulatory language was released by CalRecycle in October of 2017. The Project Team 
has  compiled  additional  information  about  anticipated  requirements  of  local  jurisdictions 
under SB 1383, which are described in more detail in the following pages. The timeline of the 
regulations is provided as Appendix 1 of this Report. 

Notably,  nothing  in  the  draft  regulations  or  written  in  any  presentations  by  CalRecycle 
describing  SB  1383  specifically  state  that  jurisdictions  will  be  required  to  reduce  organics 
generation  in alignment with  the statewide targets. The bill  text1 states, “It  is  intent of  the 
Legislature that the disposal reduction targets established pursuant to Section 39730.6 of the 
Health  and  Safety  Code  shall  serve  as  a  statewide  average  target  and  not  as  a  minimum 
requirement  for  each  jurisdiction.”  Therefore,  it  is  not  clear  that  Zero Waste Marin  or  its 
Member Agencies will be required to actually divert more organic materials in support of the 
statewide goals. However, it is also clearly stated that every jurisdiction will be required to plan 
for organics infrastructure under the statewide organics diversion targets and that jurisdictions 

                                                 
1   SB 1383 bill text is available at the following web page: 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201520160SB1383  



 

 

 

Section 3 

Model of 
Disposed 
Organics 

 

  

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT 

Page 8 of 36 

may be required to implement different types of programs depending upon their progress in 
meeting organic waste reduction goals (Section 42652.5. (a) (4) of SB 1383).  

SB 1383 draft regulations distributed by CalRecycle in October 2017 include a requirement for 
counties to (bold added for emphasis): 

Section xxxx99.1 (a)(1): Estimate, using CalRecycle tools or alternative methods, the 
amount of all organic waste in tons that will be disposed by the county and cities in 
2025 and every year thereafter for a 15‐year period. 

Section  xxxx99.1  (b)(2): Estimate  using  CalRecycle  tools  or  alternative methods  the 
amount of edible food that will be disposed by all of the large and medium regulated 
generators located in the county and its cities in 2025 and every year thereafter for a 
15‐year period. 

The  Project  Team’s  model  as  described  in  this  Report  (Methodology,  below)  utilized  an 
alternative method to the CalRecycle tools, as the tools described in the draft regulations are 
not yet available.  

The Project Team’s model includes disposed edible food. However, identification of large and 
medium generators of edible food is anticipated to be required on an annual basis beginning 
January 1, 2022 under CalRecycle’s draft regulations. It is not clear at this point in time whether 
disposed edible  food targets will need to be established via a different study. SB 1383 also 
contains infrastructure planning requirements which are discussed in more detail in Sections 
3, 5, and 6 of this Report. 

AB 876 – Organics Management Infrastructure Planning  

AB 876 was enacted  to address  long‐term planning  for organics  infrastructure by  requiring 
counties and regional agencies to report the following information to CalRecycle on an annual 
basis:2 

1) An estimate of the amount of organic waste in cubic yards that will be disposed by the 
County or region over a 15‐year period.  

2) An estimate of the additional organic waste recycling facility capacity in cubic yards 
that will be needed to process the amount of organic waste pursuant to paragraph (1) 
above. 

3) Areas identified by the County or regional agency as locations for new or expanded 
organic  waste  recycling  facilities  capable  of  safely  meeting  the  additional  organic 
waste recycling facility capacity need identified pursuant to paragraph (2). 

The first reporting cycle for AB 876 was in 2017 (for the 2016 reporting year) via the Electronic 
Annual Report process submitted by jurisdictions, including Zero Waste Marin, to CalRecycle. 
The Project Team anticipates, based on information made publicly available by CalRecycle (see 
Appendix 2), that the guidance provided to counties and regional agencies will change in the 
next reporting year to increase consistency in approach and the usefulness of the information 
gathered by  the  state.  It  appears  that  the  State  intends  to use  information  collected  from 
counties and regional agencies in longer‐term planning statewide, and to inform the SB 1383 
rulemaking process.  

                                                 
2   Text of requirement is taken directly from bill text as found on the following web page: 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201520160AB876  



  
 

 

 

Section 3 

Model of 
Disposed 
Organics 

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT

Page 9 of 36 

It should also be noted that the SB 1383 draft regulations distributed by CalRecycle in October 
2017 contain  specific  requirements  for planning by counties, which are anticipated  to  take 
effect on January 1, 2022. Until that point in time, requirements for reporting under AB 876 
are anticipated to adjust such that by 2022, reporting on organics capacity under AB 876 will 
likely be fully aligned with SB 1383’s requirements.  

Methodology 

To estimate  the  tons  of  organic waste Marin County  needs  to  divert  by  2020  and 2025  in 
alignment with the requirements set by SB 1383, the Project Team followed the steps outlined 
below:  

1) Allocated 2014  reported disposal  tons  for  the County  to  five  generator  sectors 
(name them here).  

2) Modeled  disposal  composition  for  each  of  the  sectors  using  data  from  other 
communities  that have similar organics  service offerings and similar generation 
behavior,  as  well  as  waste  characterizations  undertaken  in  Marin  County 
communities.  

3) Calculated a 2014 baseline organic disposal by applying the modeled compositions 
to the tons by sector to estimate the quantity of organics disposed in 2014. 

4) Developed disposal projections for 2020, 2025, and 2033 and calculated the tons 
that correspond to a 50% and 75% reduction in organics disposal from the 2014 
baseline. 

The  Project  Team  modeled  organics  disposal  using  reasonable  assumptions  and  the  best 
available  data  sources,  including  local  waste  characterizations  and  reports.  We  identified 
material  categories  on  the  basis  of  information  distributed  by  CalRecycle  as  well  as 
professional judgment. Materials were identified as recoverable or non‐recoverable based on 
the material definitions and recoverability classifications established  in the 2014 CalRecycle 
composition studies. See Appendix 3 for detailed material definitions and classifications.  

We modeled disposal composition for nine recoverable organics material types: edible food, 
inedible  food,  compostable  paper,  yard  waste,  clean  wood,  other  compostable  material, 
recyclable paper, ADC (green material), and sludge. 

We also modeled disposal  composition  for  five other material  types:  remainder/composite 
paper – other, remainder/composite organic, textiles, carpet, and other materials.  

Significant assumptions include: 

 Remainder/Composite  Organic,  Remainder/Composite  Paper  –  Other,  Carpet,3  and 
Textile  material  categories  were  not  included  in  the  model  of  organic  tons,  as 
insufficient data exists  to  characterize  the proportion of organics  in  these material 
categories. Tonnages under the 2014 disposal baseline for these materials are: 

o Remainder/Composite Organic: 16,450 tons 

                                                 
3   The carpet stewardship program is intended to be strengthened via a bill that passed in 2017. AB 

1158 (Chu) – Carpet Recycling  is anticipated to  increase carpet recycling by 50% in two years by 
requiring a carpet stewardship plan to achieve a 24% recycling rate for post consumer carpet by 
January 1, 2020; the bill would authorize CalRecycle to set future recycling benchmarks.  



 

 

 

Section 3 

Model of 
Disposed 
Organics 

 

  

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT 

Page 10 of 36 

o Remainder/Composite Paper – Other: 4,620 tons 

o Carpet: 3,520 tons 

o Textile: 4,920 tons 

 Recyclable paper categories (including Other Miscellaneous Paper ‐ Other, Uncoated 
Corrugated  Cardboard,  Newspaper,  Magazines  and  Catalogs,  White  Ledger  Paper, 
Remainder/Composite  Paper  ‐  Rigid  Food & Beverage Cartons, Other Office  Paper, 
Paper Bags, Phone Books and Directories) were modeled as a part of the 2014 baseline. 
However, these material categories are not readily compostable and would be best 
diverted  from  landfill  through  recycling  programs.  Recyclable  material  processing 
capacity was not modeled as a part of this project, but is a subject area that Zero Waste 
Marin should consider analyzing as a part of a separate review. Tonnages under the 
2014 baseline are: 

o Recyclable paper categories: 10,810 tons 

 Due to AB 1594, beginning  in 2020, green material used as ADC will be required to 
count as disposal; therefore, we modeled the 930 tons of green material used as ADC 
in 2014 as a part of the 2014 baseline organics tons.  

 Based on the explanation of AB 1594 in Section 4, below, we excluded sludge used as 
ADC from the 2014 baseline tons; sludge disposed  is  included  in the 2014 baseline. 
Tonnages in 2014 are: 

o Sludge used as ADC: 3,844 tons 

o Sludge disposed: 2,960 tons 

The Project Team reviewed the 2017 Marin Sanitary Services County Organic Waste Recycling 
Plan prepared independently to assess SB 1383 targets. These targets were calculated on the 
basis of the proportion of organic waste to landfill statewide in 2014; thus the targets which 
were calculated in that report are higher than the targets calculated by the Project Team and 
described above. 

In addition to calculating SB 1383 targets, the Project Team modeled actual organics diversion 
and calculated the organics “capture” rate for 2014, 2016, 2020, 2025, and 2033 to establish 
planning‐level organics diversion estimates for Marin County. The reasons for selecting these 
modeling years are: 

 2014 is the baseline year for calculating the 50% and 75% statewide organics diversion 
targets under SB 1383. 

 2016 is the most recent available year of data for projecting accurate diversion and 
disposal. 

 2020 is the goal year of 50% statewide organics disposal reduction under SB 1383. 

 2025 is the goal year of 75% statewide organics disposal reduction under SB 1383. 

 2033 is the 15‐year planning horizon required under SB 1383. 

A detailed methodology is provided as Appendix 4 to this Report. 



  
 

 

 

Section 3 

Model of 
Disposed 
Organics 

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT

Page 11 of 36 

Findings 

The total recoverable organics baseline, including recyclable paper (which is not expected to 
be composted), was calculated at 72,000 tons. This results in the following targets: 

 36,100  tons  of  additional  organics  diverted  from  landfill  by  2020  (50%  of  2014 
baseline) 

 54,100  tons  of  additional  organics  diverted  from  landfill  by  2025  (75%  of  2014 
baseline) 

Of the 72,000 tons in the 2014 disposal baseline, edible food tons were modeled at 10,000 
tons,  and  inedible  food  at  14,500  tons.  More  detail  on  the  various  material  categories 
modeled, the sectors (commercial, single family, multifamily, self‐haul) for which each of these 
material types were modeled, and the model results can be found in Appendix 5.  

The material categories in our model that are considered “Recoverable Organics” are:  

 Edible Food 

 Inedible Food 

 Compostable Paper 

 Yard Waste 

 Clean Wood 

 Other Compostable 

 Recyclable Paper 

 ADC (green material) 

 Sludge (disposed) 

The material categories in our model that are considered “Other Disposal, Non‐Organic” are: 

 Remainder/Composite Paper ‐ Other 

 Remainder/Composite Organic 

 Textiles 

 Carpet 

Figure A, next page, shows the total proportion of 2014 baseline disposal tons accounted for 
by the main modeled categories for the County as a whole, as well as which material categories 
fall under “Recoverable Organics” and “Other Disposal, Non‐Organic”. 
  



 

 

 

Section 3 

Model of 
Disposed 
Organics 

 

  

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT 

Page 12 of 36 

Figure A: Material Categories Modeled Under 2014 Disposal Baseline 

The  basis  of  these  figures  is  a  complex  sector‐specific  analysis  described  further  in  the 
Methodology section, above. The sector‐specific results are displayed as Table 1, below. 

Table 1: 2014 Sector‐Specific Tons of Compostable Organics and Recyclable Paper 

Generator 
Compostable 
Organics Tons 

Compostable 
Organics % 

Recyclable 
Paper Tons 

Recyclable 
Paper % 

Single Family  18,000  29%  2,700  25% 

Multi‐family  6,600  11%  1,800  17% 

Commercial  15,000  25%  3,200  30% 

Self‐haul  17,600  29%  2,500  23% 

Other Disposal  4,100  7%  600  5% 

Total  61,300  100%  10,800  100% 

More detail with sector‐specific findings is provided as Appendix 5 to this Report. 

The Project Team was also able to model the current recovery of organics Countywide. For the 
2014  baseline,  approximately  37,700  tons  of  organics  were  diverted  from  landfill,  and 
approximately 72,100 additional tons of organics were disposed at landfill; another 105,800 
tons of non‐organic material was disposed at landfill as well. This translates into a 34% organics 
capture rate. 



  
 

 

 

Section 3 

Model of 
Disposed 
Organics 

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT

Page 13 of 36 

The Project Team modeled current recovery, recoverable organics, and disposal of all other 
materials for the 2014 baseline, and used the 2016 tonnages to project 2020, 2025, and 2033 
figures using the methodology described in the next section of this Report.  

Our findings are displayed as Table 2 and Figure B, below. 

Table 2: Projection of Organic Material Diverted and Disposed if SB 1383 Targets are Met 

Recoverable Organics 
2014  2020  2025  2033 

109,800  143,000  145,400  149,200 

Disposed  72,100  54,200  37,600  40,100 

Diverted from Disposal  ‐  36,100  54,100  54,100 

Food for Consumption  ‐  1,400  2,000  2,000 

Currently Recovered  37,700  52,800  53,600  55,000 

Mixed Organics  36,500  50,800  51,600  53,000 

Food to Energy  1,200  2,000  2,000  2,100 

Other Materials  105,800  134,400  136,800  140,800 

Total  215,600  277,400  282,200  290,100 

Organics Capture Rate  34%  62%  74%  73% 

 

Figure B: Projection of Organic Material Diverted and Disposed if SB 1383 Targets are Met 

As  noted  previously,  Marin  County  already  had  a  robust  suite  of  programs  for  organics 
diversion  in  2014, which means  that  the  targets  set  for  50% and 75%  reduction  from  that 
baseline are more ambitious than for other counties which may have had weaker programs in 
2014. That said, it is not anticipated that the State will require every reporting jurisdiction to 



 

 

 

Section 3 

Model of 
Disposed 
Organics 

 

  

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT 

Page 14 of 36 

meet the 50% and 75% reduction requirements, which is a benefit to Marin County as organics 
in the County is not the statewide “low hanging fruit.” 

Recommendations 

The  Project  Team  recommends  that  Zero  Waste  Marin  utilize  the  detailed  waste 
characterization of disposed waste that is provided in this report to: 

 Estimate needed organics capacity for AB 876 planning purposes and as a part of future 
Electronic Annual Reports. 

 Benchmark  progress  made  toward  the  statewide  2014  targets  of  50%  and  75% 
reduction in disposed organics. CalRecycle may request more detailed 2014 disposal 
baselines from jurisdictions as a part of the Electronic Annual Report in future years. 

Zero Waste Marin should be aware of and plan for additional effort in the 2017 reporting year 
Electronic Annual Report  (due August 1, 2018) related to changes  in AB 876 guidelines and 
reporting  requirements  by  CalRecycle.  While  the  Project  Team  believes  the  information 
gathered by Zero Waste Marin from its facilities is sufficient to meet reporting requirements 
and inform infrastructure planning efforts, without knowing exactly what CalRecycle will ask 
for in the 2017 reporting year,  it  is not possible to predict whether additional effort will be 
required.  



  
 

 

 

Section 4 

Policies and 
Programs to 
Increase 
Organics 
Diversion 

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT

Page 15 of 36 

4   Policies and Programs to Increase 
Organics Diversion 

Objective 

To identify policy drivers and local zero waste programs that Zero Waste Marin must consider 
in order to develop programs that increase diversion of organics from landfill. 

Regulatory Context 

SB 1383 ‐ Short‐Lived Climate Pollutants 

Based on information collected by the Project Team on the draft regulations, local jurisdictions 
may be required to implement the following tasks and responsibilities under SB 1383:  

 Secure  organic  waste  capacity  at  accessible  facilities  (contractual  agreements, 
discussion of rate increases, necessary RFPs, etc.).4 

 Impose  diversion  requirements  and  associated  penalties  on  generators  (beginning 
around January 1, 2024).5 

 Establish  communication  with  all  generators  by  February  1,  2022  and  within  six 
months of contact, follow‐up if non‐compliant.6  

 Adopt an  inspection and enforcement plan with specific  requirements  for outreach 
frequency and targets.7 

 Charge and  collect  fees  to  recover  costs  incurred  through  the  implementation and 
enforcement of the new requirements.8 

 Mandatory subscription to organic waste collection services for organics generators.9 

 Develop  a  method  for  addressing  contamination  and  reducing  its  presence  in  the 
organic waste stream.10 

 Include details  on  purchasing  and  procurement  of  end‐use organic waste  products 
internally and/or as a requirement on generators.11 

                                                 
4   CalRecycle SB 1383 Workshop Presentation February 2017, page 4. 
5   SB 1383 Proposed Regulation Text October 24, 2017, page 16. 
6   SB 1383 Proposed Regulation Text October 24, 2017, page 9. 
7   SB 1383 Proposed Regulation Text October 24, 2017, page 16. 
8   CalRecycle SB 1383 Workshop Presentation February 2017, page 7. 
9   SB 1383 Proposed Regulation Text October 24, 2017, page 6. 
10   SB 1383 Proposed Regulation Text October 24, 2017, page 7. 
11   CalRecycle SB 1383 Workshop Presentation February 2017, page 15. 



 

 

 

Section 4 

Policies and 
Programs to 

Increase 
Organics 
Diversion 

 

  

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT 

Page 16 of 36 

 Provide  generators  with  consistent 
collection  containers  and  signage  in 
alignment with CalRecycle criteria. 12 

 Provide  consistently  labeled  organic 
waste  containers  adjacent  to  public 
refuse bins. 13 

 Keep an inventory of all food recovery 
organizations that can be engaged.14 

 Consult with the Local Task Force.15 

 Engage disadvantaged communities in 
siting  new  organics  processing 
infrastructure.16 

SB  1383  also  contains  infrastructure  planning 
requirements  which  are  discussed  in  more 
detail in Sections 3, 5, and 6 of this Report. 

AB 1826 – Mandatory Commercial Organics Recycling 

Signed by Governor Brown in 2014, AB 1826 requires commercial businesses and multi‐family 
properties17  to  implement organics  recycling programs  for  the diversion of organic waste18 
from landfills.  

Under AB 1826, local jurisdictions are required to implement an organics recycling program 
designed specifically  to divert commercial organic waste. AB 1826  implementation  includes 
the following four local jurisdiction requirements: 

 Identify  Covered  Generators  –  Identify  commercial  businesses  and  multi‐family 
properties (collectively, “covered generators”) that must comply with the regulations 
of AB 1826. 

 Organics Recycling Service – Ensure that organics recycling services are available to all 
covered generators. 

 Education  and Outreach  –  Conduct  education  and  outreach  to  covered  generators 
about the State law and how to comply. 

 Compliance Monitoring – Identify covered generators that are not in compliance and 
inform them of their requirements and how they can comply. 

                                                 
12   SB 1383 Proposed Regulation Text October 24, 2017, page 7. 
13   SB 1383 Proposed Regulation Text October 24, 2017, page 7. 
14   SB 1383 Proposed Regulation Text October 24, 2017, page 9. 
15   SB 1383 Informal Rulemaking Presentation October 30 and November 2, 2017, page 76. 
16   SB 1383 Proposed Regulation Text October 24, 2017Text, page 15. 
17   For the purposes of AB 1826 compliance, a “multi‐family property” is defined as a multi‐family 

dwelling that consists of five or more units. Multi‐family dwellings that consist of four units or 
fewer are exempt from all provisions of the law. 

18   The definition of organic waste under AB 1826 is food waste, green material, landscape and 
pruning waste, nonhazardous wood waste, and food‐soiled paper waste that is mixed in with food 
waste. Multi‐family properties are not required to have a food waste diversion program. 

Who is a “generator”? 

Any entity that generates any amount 
of  organic  waste  is  considered  a 
“generator”  under  SB  1383.  This 
includes, but is not limited to: 

 Residents (both single‐family 
and multi‐family) 

 Businesses 

 Schools 

 Government agencies 

 Institutions 



  
 

 

 

Section 4 

Policies and 
Programs to 
Increase 
Organics 
Diversion 

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT

Page 17 of 36 

AB 1826 also requires jurisdictions to report to CalRecycle on the availability, or lack thereof, 
of sufficient organic waste processing infrastructure and markets, and the extent to which the 
jurisdiction has taken steps to remove barriers to siting and expanding organic waste recycling 
facilities. These questions are compatible and similar to the additional questions included in 
the yearly report to CalRecycle now required under AB 876, which is described above. 

AB 1594 – Green Material Used as ADC is Disposal 

AB 1594 prohibits the use of green material used as alternative daily cover (ADC) for diversion 
credit. Currently, franchised organic material delivered by haulers in Marin County to Redwood 
Landfill  is  largely green material commingled with food scraps, which is composted and not 
used as ADC. However, some non‐franchised material delivered to Redwood by residents and 
businesses in Marin County is not commingled, and is chipped and used as ADC. Moreover, 
non‐franchised green material delivered to other landfills and declared as originating in Marin 
County may also be chipped and used as ADC, which contributes to the total of 565 tons of 
green material used as ADC and attributed to Marin County in 2016.19 

As of January 1, 2020, green material used as ADC will need to be reported as disposal, and 
will begin to contribute to the pounds per person per day diversion rate equivalent, which is 
used by the State to assess AB 939 compliance. Under the law, “green material” includes: 20 

 Plant material 

 Green material 

 Untreated wood wastes 

 Paper products 

 Natural fiber products 

 Sludge 

Notably,  and  importantly,  the  definition  of  “green  material”  under  this  law  quite  clearly 
excludes a number of material categories that might  include some organics. These material 
categories are anticipated to continue to be considered “diverted” and will not contribute to 
disposal  tonnages,  even  after  2020.  Categories  that  include  organic  material  and  are 
specifically excluded under the definition include:  

 Overs from composting 

 C&D fines left over after processing 

 Treated wood 

 Manure and plant waste from food processing 

Another  organic  material  type  currently  used  as  ADC  is  sludge/biosolids,  which  is  also 
anticipated to continue to be excluded from the “disposal” tons allocated to jurisdictions. As 

                                                 
19   The report is available on the CalRecycle website as Alternative Daily Cover (ADC) by Jurisdiction 

of Origin and Material Type, at the following web address: 
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/lgcentral/Reports/DRS/Origin/ADCMatlType.aspx  

20   The  definition  of  “green  material”  under  AB  1594  is  intended  to  align  with  the  definition  of 
“processed green material,” as described on the CalRecycle website at the following web address: 
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/lgcentral/basics/ADCGreen/default.htm. It is specifically stated that, 
“The term does not  include materials  left over from the composting process, materials  left over 
after the material recovery process (commonly referred to as “fines”), or processed construction 
and demolition waste materials.”  



 

 

 

Section 4 

Policies and 
Programs to 

Increase 
Organics 
Diversion 

 

  

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT 

Page 18 of 36 

such, sludge, green material overs, and C&D fines used as ADC have been excluded from the 
2014 SB 1383 baseline calculated by the Project Team and described in more detail in Section 
3 of this Report. 

It  should  be  noted  that  sludge/biosolids make  up  a  significant  portion  of  the ADC used  at 
Redwood, especially during the rainy season when Bay Area municipalities have a hard time 
accessing  land  application  sites.  Biosolids  are  clearly  included  in  the  definition  of  organics 
under SB 1383, and release methane once landfilled. It is less clear whether biosolids used as 
ADC were contemplated under SB 1383.  

Regardless,  the  Project  Team  recommends  that  Zero  Waste  Marin  consider  alternative 
management practices to help divert biosolids from the landfill, including both biosolids that 
are landfilled, and biosolids used as ADC. This would require a comprehensive planning effort 
which should be undertaken soon, such that Zero Waste Marin is able to consider alternative 
sludge diversion options.  

If not diverted from landfill, biosolids that are generated through the anaerobic digestion of 
food scraps will continue to contribute to Zero Waste Marin disposal tons as described by SB 
1383 (note that biosolids will likely continue to be a Class II Special Waste eligible for a Disposal 
Modification through the Electronic Annual Report process). As such, the appropriate diversion 
of biosolids from landfill should be considered, particularly at the anaerobic digester used for 
food scraps.  

AB 1594 has the potential to affect the County in the following ways: 

 Moderately  increasing disposal as measured under AB 939, as the amount of green 
material used as ADC is low. 

 Increasing  organic  waste  material  feedstock  to  local  organic  waste  facilities 
(anticipated regardless of the effects of AB 1594 within Marin County). 

 If use of green material as ADC is restricted, AB 1594 may result in increased customer 
rates  for delivery of green material  for composting rather  than ADC (composting  is 
more expensive than use of material as ADC).  

AB 1219 – Expansion of Good Samaritan Law 

AB 1219 strengthens and expands a 1977 California law that protects food donors from legal 
liability  in  order  to  encourage  food  donations.  Currently  many  businesses,  retailers,  and 
restaurants are either not aware of laws which protect food donors, or are confused by them. 
Under  this  law,  protection  is  expanded  to  persons  and  gleaners  who  donate  food.  
Furthermore,  the  bill  requires  health  inspectors  to  promote  food  donation  and  educate 
restaurants and grocery stores about donation liability protections.  

The bill states in section 114435, "In implementing this article, enforcement officers (usually 
County  health  inspectors)  shall  promote  the  recovery  of  food  fit  for  human  consumption 
during  their  normal,  routine  inspections.  Promotion  shall  include,  but  not  be  limited  to, 
newsletters,  bulletins,  and  handouts  that  inform  retail  food  facility  operators  about  the 
protections from civil and criminal liability when donating food." 

We understand  that  Zero Waste Marin  provides  the  County  health  department  a  relevant 
summary for health inspectors to use when inspecting facilities such as groceries, caterers and 
restaurants to promote food donation and provide information on the protection from liability.   
  



  
 

 

 

Section 4 

Policies and 
Programs to 
Increase 
Organics 
Diversion 

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT

Page 19 of 36 

SB 557 – School Food Donations 

This bill allows public school cafeterias to donate unopened prepackaged food, uncut produce 
like apples, and milk kept at appropriate temperature to food banks or charitable non‐profits, 
and makes surplus  food available to students during meal  time through share tables  in  the 
cafeteria. Zero Waste Marin should consider providing a relevant summary of food donation 
law to identified large‐ and medium‐size generators of edible food waste, including schools, in 
order to assist  in  implementation of edible food recovery efforts. Zero Waste Marin should 
also consider encouraging the schools that it works with, or that its contractor(s) works with 
on zero waste initiatives, to establish share tables and donate surplus food. 

Methodology 

In  addition  to  attending  stakeholder  workshops,  the  Project  Team  analyzed  the  draft 
regulations and the bill text in order to determine anticipated policy and program needs under 
SB 1383.  

Findings 

There are five franchised haulers in Marin County: 

1) Marin  Sanitary  Service  (MSS),  the  hauler  for  San  Rafael,  Ross,  San  Anselmo,  Las 
Gallinas Sanitary District, Fairfax, Larkspur, and some parts of Unincorporated Marin 
County. MSS also owns and operates the only transfer station in the County. The MSS 
transfer station has pre‐processing equipment used to clean and grind food scraps for 
transfer to the Central Marin Sanitation Agency anaerobic digester, where the food 
scraps are used to generate energy. MSS has approximately 192 customers subscribed 
to this program.  

2) Mill  Valley  Refuse  Service  (MVRS),  the  hauler  for  Belvedere, Mill  Valley,  Tiburon, 
Corte Madera, and parts of Unincorporated Marin County. MVRS collects some source‐
separated  food  and  delivers  it  to  the MSS  transfer  station  for  anaerobic  digestion. 
MVRS has approximately six customers subscribed to this program.  

3) Bay Cities Refuse Service (BCRS), the hauler for Sausalito and parts of Unincorporated 
Marin County.  

4) Tamalpais Community Services District (Tam CSD), the municipal hauler for Tamalpais 
Valley in Unincorporated Marin County. 

5) Recology Sonoma Marin (formerly Redwood Empire Disposal, Shoreline Disposal, and 
Novato Disposal), the hauler for Novato and parts of Unincorporated Marin County.  

These  haulers  have  varying  levels  of  education,  outreach,  customer  subscription,  and 
participation  in  organics  collection  programs.  The  Project  Team  did  not  have  access  to 
subscription data for the haulers, which would assist in gauging infiltration of the commercial 
organics  program.  However,  Marin  County  does  have  information  on  the  diversion 
performance of each of the haulers by tonnage. High‐performing diversion programs generally 
divert between 20‐40% of total material collected as organics (with an additional 20‐40% of 
material  collected being  diverted  as  recycling). We  consider  any  franchised  diversion  at  or 
above 50% to be high‐performing.  

All  of  the  franchised  haulers  in  Marin  County  are  either  close  to  the  50%  threshold,  or 
exceeding  it;  therefore, we would  consider Marin  County  to  be  a  high  diversion‐achieving 
County.  



 

 

 

Section 4 

Policies and 
Programs to 

Increase 
Organics 
Diversion 

 

  

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT 

Page 20 of 36 

Recommendations 

The Project Team recommends that Zero Waste Marin consider additional programs to target 
organic waste diversion  in supporting  the State’s ambitious  targets set under SB 1383, and 
other requirements which may be imposed by CalRecycle starting on January 1, 2022. Potential 
programs and policies include: 

 Offer  residential  collection  programs  that  include  all  organic  waste material  types 
(including  food  waste).  This  program  already  exists  in  nearly  every  residential 
collection service area in the County, with the exception of Stinson and Bolinas. 

 Increase participation  in  residential organics programs, especially  for  food,  through 
ongoing promotion of the value and ease of participation. Almost all residential food 
scraps collection programs have room for improved participation, as some households 
consider putting food waste into their organics cart to have an “ick factor”.   

 Discuss with member agencies whether  in  future  collection  contracts  they want  to 
require the hauler to allow commercial customers to use clear bags to contain organic 
waste  (bags  that  will  be  sorted  out  at  processing  facilities)  and  allow  residential 
customers to use compostable bags. Both of these strategies have helped to increase 
participation in other jurisdictions and are included in certain collection contracts.  

 Promote food waste reduction efforts to residential customers. Consider partnering 
with the EPA’s “Food Too Good to Waste” program for residential outreach on food 
waste reduction.  

 Offer additional organics containers to residential customers at a reduced cost.  

 Offer organics collection to commercial customers at a cost incentive. This program is 
in place in every commercial collection program in Marin County, although we were 
unable to confirm that commercial organics collection is offered to customers serviced 
by Recology in Unincorporated Marin County.  

 Expand technical assistance and outreach programs to multi‐family and commercial 
customers  to  increase  subscription and decrease  contamination, with  the  target of 
subscribing additional customers to the commercial organics collection programs for 
composting or  anaerobic digestion.  Engage haulers  in providing  indoor  composting 
pails and containers as well as clear, multi‐lingual signage for use by customers. 

 Use available means to require Redwood Landfill to cease using green material as ADC 
starting in 2020, or earlier if feasible.  

 Undertake a study on alternative “end uses” of biosolids/sludge outside of landfilling 
or use as ADC, especially at the anaerobic digester used for food scraps processing.  

 Encourage EarthCare to  install a “bag breaker” and/or other equipment to  increase 
effectiveness of pre‐processing organic waste at the composting facility.  

 Encourage  Member  Agencies  to  require  haulers  to  provide  washing  service  for 
organics carts used to collect food scraps.  

 Recovery  of  organics  from material  collected  as  garbage  via  “Wet MRF,”  Organics 
Extruder (OREX) press, or another technology for composting or anaerobic digestion. 

 Encourage  the  development  of  additional  composting  processing  facilities  for 
commercial organics, such as Covered Aerated Static Pile composting, to ensure that 
a broader range of commercial organics can be composted than can be handled via 
anaerobic digestion. 



  
 

 

 

Section 4 

Policies and 
Programs to 
Increase 
Organics 
Diversion 

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT

Page 21 of 36 

 Restrict the use of processed green material as ADC (see section on AB 1594, above). 

 Consider adopting an ordinance prohibiting disposal of specified organics such as clean 
green material at landfill, such as that passed by StopWaste. 

 Develop local end‐uses for compost and mulch and ensure that new and renovated 
landscapes of a certain size are using the required amount of compost and mulch via 
the  state Water  Efficient  Landscape Ordinance  requirements  (WELO).  Promote  the 
compost and mulch requirements contained within the WELO.  

 Promote the use of compost and mulch to County and member agency landscaping 
staff  and  contractors  for  its  role  in  water  conservation,  improved  soil  quality  and 
reduced need  for  fertilizer  and pesticides.    Promote  sources  to  obtain  high  quality 
compost and mulch.  

 Continue  to  implement  CALGreen  building  code  requirements  by  directing  C&D 
materials that may have clean wood waste to processing rather than disposal.  

 The model developed by the Project Team and described in Section 3 of this Report 
shows a significant amount of clean wood being landfilled (at 9% of total disposal, or 
15,800 tons), which may include C&D wood and pallets disposed at landfill. The Project 
Team  recommends  that  Zero  Waste  Marin  consider  targeting  this  material  for 
diversion  programs.  Finding  markets  for  clean  wood  is  a  significant  challenge  in 
diversion programs, which may be considered a target for future diversion program 
efforts. 

o The Project Team recommends targeting Redwood Landfill in particular, which 
has  a  higher  tipping  fee  for  C&D processing  than  for  landfill  disposal.  Zero 
Waste Marin could leverage through the Solid Waste Facility Permit process 
regulated by County Environmental Health, or via another avenue to impose 
changes to the pricing structure.  

o Staff may consider the possibility of supporting the pricing at Redwood landfill 
for targeted material types such as mixed C&D, yard waste, and clean, source‐
separated  wood.  Such  a  program  would  have  the  potential  of  directly 
adjusting rates for targeted materials; however, the program would present a 
large uncertainty in actual budget needed year‐to‐year as well as significant 
overhead required to audit Redwood’s “actual” prices for targeted material 
types. 

o Currently,  the  biomass  market  is  weak  and  facility  operators  often  have 
difficulty finding outlets for wood. Support for these markets should also be 
pursued  in  tandem with programs targeting wood diversion, and should be 
considered as an area for further study. 

 Begin to plan for SB 1383 edible food recovery requirements, including considering the 
hauler’s  potential  role  in  assisting  in  edible  food  recovery  as  a  part  of  future 
procurement processes.21 

                                                 
21   Los Angeles commercial  franchise agreements  require haulers  to utilize and  fund  food  recovery 

organizations to collect edible food and educate residents and customers on edible food recovery. 
More information is available on page 22 of the staff report entitled, “Authority to Award Contracts 
for  the  Zero Waste  LA  Exclusive  Franchise  System  for  Commercial  and Multifamily  Solid Waste 
Collection and Handling,” found at web address below: 

http://boe.lacity.org/docs/dpw/agendas/2016/201609/20160926/bos/20160926_ag_br_bos_bca_1.pdf#page=22   



 

 

 

Section 4 

Policies and 
Programs to 

Increase 
Organics 
Diversion 

 

  

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT 

Page 22 of 36 

 Encourage the beneficial use of compost and mulch in public agencies and by residents 
of the County.22 

                                                 
22   CalRecycle recently released an “Organics Toolbox” with helpful links and tips, located at the 

following web address: http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Organics/RoadMap08/ToolBox.htm 



  
 

 

 

Section 5 

Existing 
Organics 
Processing 
Capacity 

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT

Page 23 of 36 

5  Existing Organics Processing Capacity 

Objective 

To assess existing organics processing capacity in Marin County. 

Regulatory Context 

AB 876 and SB 1383 both require an assessment of existing organics processing capacity to be 
completed by the County (or, in the case of AB 876, the county or regional agency). The draft 
regulations proposed by CalRecycle for SB 1338 are provided below. 

Section xxxx99.1 Planning by Cities and Counties 

(a) Commencing  January  1,  2022,  every  county,  in  coordination  with  the  Cities  and 
Regional Agencies in the county, shall annually: 

2) Identify existing available infrastructure capacity, that is verifiably available for all 
organic waste, including paper and wood generated in the county.  

(A) Use  the  Department’s  database  or  equivalent  methods  to  identify 
potentially available capacity. 

(B) To verify this available capacity, using one of the following methods:  

1) Consult with nearby counties to determine whether they are also 
counting this same identified available capacity as available. 

2) Contact facilities to determine if capacity is available pursuant to 
(b)(2).  

3) Use  alternative  methods  to  demonstrate  verifiable  available 
capacity.  

As  stated  in  our  recommendations  for  AB  876,  we  anticipate  that  the  requirements  for 
assessing remaining organics capacity under AB 876 will be similar to the requirements under 
SB 1383, which will begin on January 1, 2022. For this reason, we have primarily oriented our 
analysis  toward  the  SB  1383  draft  regulations,  rather  than  the  current  AB  876  reporting 
requirements, as the AB 876 requirements are anticipated to change.  

Methodology 

In order  to  estimate  existing  organics  processing  capacity  in  the County,  the  Project  Team 
asked the organics processing facility representatives the following questions: 

1) How much material are you receiving now?  

2) Do you accept material from anyone/anywhere else? 

3) Are you at capacity with what you are receiving already? 

4) If not, how much more (in gallons or cubic yards) could you take?  

5) Are  you planning  for  an  expansion of  your  capacity  at  any  time  in  the  near  or 
intermediate future? 



 

 

 

Section 5 

Existing 
Organics 

Processing 
Capacity 

 

  

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT 

Page 24 of 36 

In addition, we also reviewed the Solid Waste Information System23 for permitted capacity. We 
calculated  permitted  capacity  using  a  conversion  factor  of  0.18  tons  per  cubic  yard,  and 
assuming 260 operating days per year.  

Findings  

There are four composting facilities in Marin County: 

1) Waste Management "Earth Care" Compost 

2) West Marin Compost 

3) Bolinas Resource Recovery 

4) Pt. Reyes Compost Co. 

There is one out‐of‐County facility that receives organics generated in Marin, the West Contra 
Costa Sanitary Landfill Organic Material Processing Facility (WCCSL OMPF) in Richmond, which 
is used by Bay Cities Refuse and by Recology Sonoma Marin  (for some communities and  in 
some cases). 

There is also one anaerobic digestion processing facility, owned and operated by CMSA, which 
accepts  source‐separated  food  scraps  not  commingled with  paper  or  any  other materials. 
These facilities are further described in Table 3 (next page).   
  

                                                 
23   The Solid Waste Information System is an online tool maintained by CalRecycle, which can be 

found at the following web address: 
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/SWFacilities/Directory/Search.aspx  



  
 

 

 

Section 5 

Existing 
Organics 
Processing 
Capacity 

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT

Page 25 of 36 

Table 3: Organics Processing Facility Summary 

Facility  County  Accepted Materials 
Approximate 

Current Processing 
Volume (tons) 

Permitted tons 
per year  

Waste Management 
"Earth Care" Compost 

Marin 

Green material, 
landscaping and food 
scraps with food‐
soiled paper 

121,000  133,640 

West Marin Compost  Marin  Green material  2,500  52,000 

Bolinas Resource 
Recovery 

Marin  Green material  750  5,664 

Pt. Reyes Compost Co.  Marin  Green material  500  566 

WCCSL OMPF 
Contra 
Costa 

Green material, food 
scraps with food‐
soiled paper 

Unknown  413,910* 

Central Marin 
Sanitation Agency 

Marin  Food scraps only  2,200  2,600 

* West Contra Costa is modeled at permitted capacity, not according to throughput currently allowed under permit, 

which is lower than permitted capacity. 

The  franchised  organic materials  that  are  not  delivered  to  CMSA,  the WCCSL OMPF,  or  to 
biomass conversion are delivered to the Waste Management EarthCare Composting Facility, 
which  is  located  at  the  Redwood  Landfill  site.  Recology  and MVRS  deliver  residential  and 
commercial  organics  directly  to  EarthCare;  the  remaining  franchised  organic  material  is 
transferred through the MSS transfer station to EarthCare.  

Members  of  the  public  can  deliver  green material  and wood  to  the MSS  transfer  station, 
Redwood  Landfill,  West  Marin  Compost  and  Bolinas  Resource  Recovery  (communities  of 
Bolinas and Stinson only). Green material delivered by the public: 

 To the MSS transfer station are commingled with franchised material and transferred 
to EarthCare. 

 To Redwood Landfill are ground and  incorporated as compost feedstock or used as 
Alternative Daily Cover (ADC). 

 To West Marin Compost and Bolinas Resource Recovery are processed and then sold 
to the public as compost. 

EarthCare  is a  large‐volume composting facility  in Novato permitted to accept 514 tons per 
day (which is 133,500 tons per year at 260 operating days per year). The facility’s throughput 
is  reported  to  Marin  County  via  DRS  reports.  In  2016,  EarthCare  accepted  approximately 
121,000 tons of organic material (next page): 



 

 

 

Section 5 

Existing 
Organics 

Processing 
Capacity 

 

  

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT 

Page 26 of 36 

 About 44,000 tons reported originated in Marin County. Of that  figure, 19,000 tons 
were delivered by MSS to WM Earth Care. We project that the 2017 tonnages will be 
approximately 50,000 tons, with 22,000 tons originating from the MSS transfer station.  

 About 10,000 tons reported originated in Petaluma, in Sonoma County. We have used 
the  default  assumption  that  these  tonnages  will  not  change  over  the  modeled 
timespan of 15 years,  reflecting  the  type of planning we suggest  is appropriate  for 
facilities serving multiple jurisdictions. With each agency assuming no change in the 
other agencies’ use of the facility, the planning models do not conflict with each other. 
In the Tonnage Scenario Tool (described in the R3 report entitled, “Tonnage Scenario 
Tool and AB 876 Infrastructure Planning Tool”), Zero Waste Marin staff will have the 
opportunity to adjust this assumption in order to model other possible scenarios. 

 About 33,000 tons reported originated from the Sonoma County Waste Management 
Agency. We  have  assumed  that  these  tonnages will  not  change  over  the modeled 
timespan of 15 years, under the rationale described above. 

 About  32,000  tons  reported  originated  from  the  Davis  Street  Transfer  Station  in 
Alameda  County.  In  2017,  we  project  that  this  tonnage  will  have  increased  to 
approximately 57,000  tons. We have assumed  that  these  tonnages will not  change 
over the modeled timespan of 15 years, under the rationale described above. 

WM  Earth  Care  reported  to  Zero Waste Marin  that  they  are  not  accepting  any  additional 
organic material at the facility at this time. The operator has also expressed that it plans to 
seek a permit to expand its operations by 250 tons per day.  This future expansion of permitted 
capacity is added at “year 10” of the model. 

West Marin Compost is a medium‐volume composting facility located in Nicasio and permitted 
to accept 200 tons per day of green material and dairy manure, this equates to 52,000 tons 
per year at 260 operating days per year. West Marin reported processing 14,000 cubic yards 
of dairy manure and plant debris from the public in 2017, which at a conversion of 0.18 tons 
per cubic yard is the equivalent of approximately 2,500 tons per year.  The operator estimated 
that 20% of their total material was franchised organic material. That material originates in the 
Unincorporated County communities of Stinson and Bolinas. Total capacity and throughput are 
calculated at approximately 3,200 tons. The operator reported to Zero Waste Marin that they 
are not accepting any additional material at this time.  

Bolinas Resource Recovery is a small composting operation that was started in 1997 to offer 
the Bolinas and Stinson Beach communities green material composting. Located in Bolinas, it 
is permitted to accept 120 cubic yards per day of green material only, which R3 estimates to 
be the equivalent of approximately 6,000 tons per year. This facility was accepting material 
delivered  by  the  franchised  hauler  (now  Recology)  from  the  communities  of  Stinson  and 
Bolinas.  Beginning  in  mid‐2017,  residential  material  from  Stinson  began  to  be  routed  to 
EarthCare. The Bolinas facility reports accepting the equivalent of approximately 250 tons of 
franchised material and about 500 tons of self‐haul material from the public. We have modeled 
650 tons of composting throughput over the modeled timespan of 15 years. While there may 
be  capacity  for  processing  additional  material,  the  facility  only  accepts  material  from  the 
communities of Stinson and Bolinas. 

Pt. Reyes Compost Company  is a small composting operation permitted to accept up to 12 
cubic yards per day. We have assumed that this facility does not have capacity to accept any 
additional material, and have therefore disregarded the current throughput of this facility.  



  
 

 

 

Section 5 

Existing 
Organics 
Processing 
Capacity 

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT

Page 27 of 36 

WCCSL OMPF  is  a  large‐volume  composting  facility  in  Contra  Costa  County which  accepts 
approximately 4,000 tons of mixed organics  (green material and  food scraps) originating  in 
Marin County (hauled by BCR, and Recology operating  in Novato). We understand that this 
facility does not have additional capacity to accept new material at this time, but have assumed 
for the purposes of the capacity model that the facility continues to accept the 4,000 tons of 
throughput from Marin County over the modeled timespan of 15 years.  

CMSA  is a medium‐volume anaerobic digester  in San Rafael near  the MSS  transfer  station, 
currently accepting approximately 2,200 tons per year of source‐separated, processed food 
waste from the MSS transfer station. The public‐private partnership began in 2013. The food 
waste,  sourced  from  the MSS  and MVRS  service  areas,  is  preprocessed  at MSS.  CMSA has 
reported to Zero Waste Marin that they are not at capacity and would be receptive to more 
material  if  the  quality meets  their  standards.  The  exact  amount  they  could  absorb will  be 
determined through a Master Plan update that is currently underway for the CMSA.  

Capacity Modeling: Permitted Versus Actual 

Permitted capacity is not actual capacity. We understand, based on CalRecycle’s review of the 
2017  submittals  by  counties  and  regional  agencies  (Appendix  2)  for  AB  876,  that  despite 
instructions to utilize the facility database available online (FacIT), the methods generally used 
by  counties  and  regional  agencies  to  calculate  organics  capacity  were  not  adequate.  This 
conclusion  is  further  supported  by  the  fact  that  most  facilities  included  in  this  analysis 
communicated  to  Zero Waste Marin  that  they  did  not  have  capacity  to  accept  additional 
material,  although  they  were  frequently  operating  at  significantly  below  their  permitted 
throughput. For example, EarthCare’s permitted throughput is 133,500 tons per year. While 
they accepted approximately 121,000 tons in 2016, Waste Management stated in 2018 that 
they were unable to accept additional material. Moreover, organics processing facilities are 
permitted on the basis of throughput per day. It is reasonable to assume that a facility would 
not accept 100% of its permitted throughput on each operating day of the year.  

For these reasons, the Project Team has modeled existing organics processing capacity on the 
basis of operator  statements about current and  future capacity availability, and not on the 
basis of actual permitted capacity. 

Modeling Out‐of‐County and Non‐Franchised Tons 

Capacity modeling  is  further  complicated  by  the  need  to  understand  and  correctly  model 
tonnages  that  originate  from  outside  of  the  franchised  system  (and  therefore  are  not 
necessarily reported to the county, and certainly not on a continuous basis), and outside of the 
County (tons for which the contractual relationships may not be clear, and planning for which 
is  challenging).  In  fact,  the  inbound  tonnages  to  the  EarthCare  facility  from  Alameda  and 
Sonoma Counties (at 32,000 and 43,000 tons, respectively) are significantly greater than the 
total amount of material originating from within Marin County (44,000 tons) that is processed 
by all other facilities (at approximately 10,000 total Marin tons processed by all facilities that 
are not EarthCare).  

Waste Management has recently opened a composting facility in Alameda County at Altamont 
Landfill.  Given  the  very  large  portion  of  the  material  inbound  to  EarthCare  is  transferred 
through Davis Street transfer station in Alameda County, that there is a possibility that some 
or all of that material will be redirected over time away from EarthCare and to the Altamont 
site.  

Finally, we understand that Sonoma County is undertaking a procurement process for organics 
processing capacity. There is a possibility that this procurement process may result in the siting 



 

 

 

Section 5 

Existing 
Organics 

Processing 
Capacity 

 

  

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT 

Page 28 of 36 

of an organics processing facility within reasonable hauling distance of Marin County, or, result 
in  the  redirection  of  material  originating  in  Sonoma  County  away  from  EarthCare.  Both 
scenarios may result in a significant shift in the processing capacity available to Marin County 
for  organics material;  therefore, we have  recommended  that  Zero Waste Marin  engage  in 
ongoing  conversation  with  Sonoma  County  as  well  as  the  facility  operators  within  Marin 
County in order to refine organics processing capacity estimates on an ongoing basis. This will 
also be required on an annual basis as part of the EAR. For the purposes of the capacity model, 
we have assumed that there is no change in out‐of‐County and non‐franchised ton throughput. 
We  have  also  assumed  a  “null”  scenario  of  no  additional  facility  capacity  (outside  of  the 
planned EarthCare expansion) and no additional infrastructure development. 

Regarding food scraps processing, as a part of the MSS 2017 Organic Waste Recycling Plan, 
MSS stated that  it would consider transferring food waste to an alternative facility  (such as 
East Bay Municipal Utility District) if CMSA is not able to accept additional material. This may 
come  at  increased  costs,  including  transfer  and  tipping  fees;  however,  MSS  does  have 
additional  capacity  to  pre‐process  food  scraps  at  its  transfer  station which  is  not  currently 
being utilized. It is possible that at the time that MSS requires additional capacity, candidate 
facilities  may  not  have  additional  capacity  available.  Because  of  the  range  of  possible 
outcomes, we have chosen not to model additional food scraps processing capacity outside of 
CMSA.  

Recommendations 

The Project Team recommends that Zero Waste Marin annually: 

 Engage in conversation with Sonoma County on infrastructure usage. 

 Request data from facility operators in Marin County.  

 Adjust organics processing capacity estimates. 



  
 

 

 

Section 6 

Additional 
Organics 
Processing 
Capacity 
Needed 

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT

Page 29 of 36 

6  Additional Organics Processing 
Capacity Needed 

Objective 

To determine the amount of additional organics processing capacity that is needed in Marin 
County. 

Regulatory Context  

SB 1383 draft regulations distributed by CalRecycle in October 2017 include a requirement for 
counties to (bold added for emphasis): 

Section xxxx99.1 (a)(3): Based on the amount that is projected for disposal in (1) and 
the  existing  capacity  identified  in  (2),  identify  the  amount  of  additional  organics 
recycling  capacity  that would  be  needed  to  ensure  that  the  regulated  generators’ 
organic waste is recycled. 

Section  xxxx99.1  (a)(4):  Identify  the  amount  of  existing  (existing  capacity  that  is 
additional  to  what  was  identified  in  (2)  above),  new  or  expanded  organic  waste 
recycling capacity that will be available to the county and its cities by 2025 and every 
year thereafter. 

SB  1383  draft  regulations  also  require  counties  to  plan  for  additional  capacity  if  need  is 
identified, per Section xxxx99.1 and starting on January 1, 2022: 

(e) Based on the capacity estimates required in (a) and (b), if a county or a city does not 
have access to adequate existing, new, or expanded facilities to meet the capacity need 
identified in (a)(4) and (b)(5), then the city or county lacking this access must: 

(1) Submit an  implementation schedule  to CalRecycle, within 60 days of  the 
Annual  Report  submitted  by  the  county  pursuant  to  section  (d),  that 
demonstrates how it will secure access to existing, new or expanded capacity 
by 2025 and annually thereafter for the organic materials and recovered edible 
food collected from within the jurisdiction. 

(2)  The  implementation  schedule  shall  include  timelines  and milestones  for 
planning efforts to identify and secure access to sufficient capacity, including 
but not limited to:  

(A)  Obtaining  funding,  if  applicable,  to  fund  organics  recycling  and 
edible food recovery infrastructure.  

(B)  Identifying  how  additional  capacity  will  be  secured,  e.g., 
designated areas that have appropriate zoning for additional facilities, 
information on the status of  identifying zones as potential areas for 
zoning facilities, etc. 



 

 

 

Section 6 

Additional 
Organics 

Processing 
Capacity 
Needed 

 

  

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT 

Page 30 of 36 

Methodology  

The Project Team modeled additional needed capacity for organics processing against existing 
capacity under a number of scenarios, including: 

 “Business as Usual” with no increase of organics diversion; 

 “Achievement of SB 1383 Goals,” described in Section 3 (including moderate increases 
of organics diversion and disposal based on population growth); 

 “Increasing Diversion” with diversion continuing to increase as it did from 2014‐2016.  

Although modeling  organics  capacity  is  helpful,  we  recognize  that  there  are  challenges  to 
matching the type of organics generated with a facility that is permitted and able to process 
this feedstock – this is specifically true for commercial source separated organics. The Food to 
Energy program accepts food scraps only, without commingled food‐soiled paper and other 
materials. Zero Waste Marin should consider the significant need for an outlet for commercial 
source separated organics that is commingled with food soiled paper and cardboard. 

In  order  to  fully  understand  the  challenges  in  securing  appropriate  capacity,  we  have 
separately modeled the flows of the following materials through Marin County under each of 
the three scenarios described above: 

 Commercial  “inedible”  source‐separated  food  scraps  (not  commingled  with  food‐
soiled paper, cardboard, or compostable plastics). 

 Green material including landscaping debris and not including food scraps. 

 Mixed  organics  including  landscaping  debris,  food  scraps,  food‐soiled  paper, 
cardboard,  and  compostable  plastics.  Increases  in  this  stream  are  modeled  by 
population  and  also  inedible  food  attributed  to  all  sectors  except  for  commercial 
(which is modeled separately and listed above). Projections of future tons are broken 
into  the  component  material  types  as  sufficient  data  exists  to  characterize  this 
material;  insufficient  data  exists  to  break  down  the  existing  and  historical  mixed 
organics stream in such detail. 

 Food‐soiled  paper  and  other  tons,  which  are  a  potentially  challenging  group  of 
materials to divert. 

 Sludge. 

Insufficient data exists to model chipped wood, although this is also a material type that may 
be  subject  to  alternative  options  for  processing  and  diversion.  Recyclable  paper  (food 
wrappings and pizza boxes that are not food‐soiled, for example) is another material stream 
which has alternative options for diversion, and may also exhibit “leakage” between diversion 
alternatives.24 While these details are important, they are difficult to model, and thus have not 
been accommodated in the current model. 

Edible food recovery of 20% of the baseline has been modeled as occurring separately from 
the diversion infrastructure and thus not included as “Needed Capacity.” 

                                                 
24   As discussed in Section 3 of this Report, recyclable paper categories were included in the 2014 

baseline. However, they are not included in the “capacity needed” estimates as they are more 
appropriately diverted through recycling programs. Recyclable material processing capacity was 
not modeled as a part of this project, but is a subject area that Zero Waste Marin should consider 
analyzing as a part of a separate review. 



  
 

 

 

Section 6 

Additional 
Organics 
Processing 
Capacity 
Needed 

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT

Page 31 of 36 

The MSS  2017  Organic Waste  Recycling  Plan  states  that  the  transfer  station  utilized  (and 
owned and operated) by the company has capacity to grind mixed organics at 20 tons per hour, 
and pre‐process commercial food waste at 20 tons per hour; and that they are permitted up 
to  140,400  tons  per  year  of  organics,  which  exceeds  the  anticipated  organics  generation 
countywide through 2033. While sufficient transfer capacity appears to exist, the Project Team 
recommends that Zero Waste Marin continue to plan for organics processing capacity with the 
understanding that MSS would still need to deliver  the material  to another  facility  for  final 
processing (either composting or anaerobic digestion). 

Findings 

The Project Team’s capacity model indicates that insufficient capacity exists to accommodate 
nearly any increase in organics diversion at this time. At year 10 of the model, assuming that 
100%  of  the  new  permitted  capacity  at  EarthCare  is  available  to  Marin  County,  there  is 
sufficient  capacity  for  processing  additional  tons  under  all  scenarios  except  for  “Increasing 
Diversion.” “Increasing Diversion” shows insufficient capacity for all years.  

Under the “Business As Usual” scenario, we accommodated very moderate increases in mixed 
organics  (as  defined  on  page  30  of  this  report),  diversion  by  population  (as  described  in 
Appendix  4,  Detailed  2014 Model Methodology),  and  the  additional  capacity modeled  for 
Bolinas. As shown in Figure C, below, our results indicate insufficient capacity for processing 
mixed organics.  

Figure C: Business As Usual Scenario, Moderate Increases in Mixed Organics by Population  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Under the “Achievement of SB 1383 Goals” scenario, we have assumed increases in organics 
materials types such that Marin County would achieve the statewide goals of organics tonnage 
reduction by 2020 and 2025. Our findings are displayed in more detail in Figure D, below. Food 
scraps diversion from the single family and multi‐family sectors are shown in Figure D; food 
scraps from the commercial sector only are separately displayed in Figure E.  



 

 

 

Section 6 

Additional 
Organics 

Processing 
Capacity 
Needed 

 

  

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT 

Page 32 of 36 

Franchised  mixed  organics  are  modeled  at  2016  levels  (with  moderate  increases  for 
population). Additional capture was modeled as separate material streams: Sludge diverted, 
Food Scraps as Commingled with other compostables, Food‐soiled Paper and Other Tons, and 
Green Material. Note that processing capacity is displayed as a total capacity for composting 
(not  as  total  capacity  for  organics  processing, which would  include  the  commercial‐source 
separated food scraps).  

For capacity, we have modeled “no additional capacity” for any material streams except for 
green  material.  As  we  saw  under  the  “Business  As  Usual”  scenario,  even  with  moderate 
increases  in  organics  diversion  by  population,  insufficient  capacity  exists.  However,  if  the 
EarthCare facility’s expansion is approved, and assuming that 100% of the additional capacity 
of EarthCare is available to Marin County, or if some or all organics from Sonoma or Alameda 
are diverted to other facilities, there is sufficient capacity for processing all additional tons. 

Please  note  that we  have  also  accommodated  this  scenario  in  the  landfill model, which  is 
described in the R3 report entitled, “Landfill Capacity Model.” 

Figure D: Processing Capacity versus Needed Capacity under Achievement of SB 1383 Goals 
All Materials Except Commercial Inedible Food 

 

 
  



  
 

 

 

Section 6 

Additional 
Organics 
Processing 
Capacity 
Needed 

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT

Page 33 of 36 

Figure E: Processing Capacity versus Needed Capacity under Achievement of SB 1383 Goals 
Commercial Inedible Food Only 

 

Note  that  Figure  E  includes  only  inedible  food  calculated  by  the  Project  Team  as  being 
generated by the commercial sector. The remainder of the  inedible food (generated by the 
single family and multi‐family sectors) is modeled in Figure D as “Food Scraps as Commingled.” 
In reality, the commercial food scraps will likely be collected commingled with yard trimmings 
in some cases, and it is not expected that 100% of the commercial food scraps will be collected 
as source‐separated feedstock for anaerobic digestion.  

Approximately  12%  of  the  recoverable  organic  material  in  the  Project  Team’s  model  is 
compostable “food‐soiled” paper, and an additional 3% of the recoverable organic material is 
other compostable paper and similar materials. This material  is not accepted for anaerobic 
digestion, which may make it challenging to subscribe commercial businesses that are unable 
to  separate  food‐soiled  paper  from  food  scraps.  This  “dirtier”  commercial  organics  waste 
stream may be better handled by compost processing. Ideally, both processing solutions would 
be available to handle Marin’s organic stream; however, EarthCare does not currently accept 
commercial  source‐separated  organics.  We  have  included  the  food‐soiled  paper  and 
compostable material streams separately in Figure D, previous page. 

Under the “Increasing Diversion” scenario, we have maintained capacity assumptions and the 
modeled  organics  materials  types,  but  modeled  increases  according  to  the  increase  seen 
between 2014 and 2016 in organics diversion. This can be seen as a “Best Case Scenario,” and 
is unlikely to occur. The increase in diversion between 2014 and 2016 is likely due to additional 
programs being implemented which resulted in great increases in diversion over that period. 
We chose to model this scenario to represent the very highest increases in diversion that may 
be seen in Marin County. 

Our  findings  are  displayed  in  more  detail  in  Figure  F,  on  the  following  page,  showing  all 
materials except for commercial source‐separated food scraps, which are modeled separately 
in Figure G.  
  



 

 

 

Section 6 

Additional 
Organics 

Processing 
Capacity 
Needed 

 

  

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT 

Page 34 of 36 

Figure F: Processing Capacity versus Needed Capacity under Increasing Diversion Scenario 
All Materials Except Commercial Inedible Food 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure G: Processing Capacity versus Needed Capacity under Achievement of SB 1383 Goals 
Commercial Inedible Food Only 

  



  
 

 

 

Section 6 

Additional 
Organics 
Processing 
Capacity 
Needed 

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT

Page 35 of 36 

Recommendations 

Policy Options to Encourage Infrastructure Expansion and Development 

Possible policy alternatives that can be considered by Zero Waste Marin include: 

 Recommend to Member Agencies that collection service contracts explicitly require 
the  hauler  to  have  an  agreement with  a  commercial  food  scraps  processor.  These 
agreements should also explicitly  reserve the right of  the  jurisdiction to direct  flow 
such that the jurisdiction can separately procure for processing capacity outside of the 
collection contract, if it so chooses. 

 Recommend that Member Agencies consider establishing flow control agreements to 
support  future  infrastructure expansion and development. Such agreements should 
be  designed  without  a  minimum  guarantee  and  could  be  established  via  a 
procurement process.  

 Support the expansion of permitted capacity at EarthCare, and any other composting 
facilities that are able to expand. 25 

 Procure for organic material processing capacity as a JPA. Two solid waste JPAs known 
to the Project Team have procured for processing capacity: 

o Sonoma County Waste Management Agency, which controls organic material 
flow due to ownership of an organics processing facility that recently closed. 

o South  Bayside Waste Management  Agency,  which  owns  a  transfer  station 
used by its Member Agencies to transfer material including organics. 

 Support infrastructure via competitive grant process. 

 Fund, own, and contract for the operations of an organics processing facility for the 
use  of  Marin  County  residents  via  the  issuance  of  bonds  or  another  funding 
mechanism. If Zero Waste Marin chooses to pursue this option, the JPA would have 
more  direct  control  over  the  desired  outcome  (additional  capacity),  but  would  be 
exposed to potential liability and significant overhead for management of the facility. 
For these reasons, the Project Team does not recommend this alternative. 

Future Planning Efforts 

The Project  Team  recommends  that  Zero Waste Marin encourage  its Member Agencies  to 
consider individual needs for organics processing capacity by engaging in ongoing conversation 
with their haulers. Contractual relationships between  individual Member Agencies, haulers, 
and disposal/processing facilities were not evaluated on an individual basis as a part of this 
analysis.  

Zero Waste Marin should anticipate that if insufficient capacity is anticipated to be available 
over the planning horizon (which it is), Zero Waste Marin may be required to submit a schedule 
with steps necessary to acquire needed capacity to CalRecycle. This may require an intensive 
planning effort, which this Report may help inform, but does not represent.  

                                                 
25   West Marin Compost, one of the smaller composting facilities in Marin County, was established by 

a coalition comprised by Marin County Conservation District, the County Board of Supervisors, and 
the U.S. Department of Agriculture, and remains a case study in the use of compost for 
greenhouse gas emission reduction. 



 

 

 

Section 6 

Additional 
Organics 

Processing 
Capacity 
Needed 

 

  

Zero Waste Marin | Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis | FINAL REPORT 

Page 36 of 36 

Other elements that may be considered by Zero Waste Marin as a part of this planning effort 
include (as summarized and interpreted based on CalRecycle’s guidance provided as Appendix 
2 to this Report): 

1) Conduct outreach with citizens in the form of community meetings and surveys in order 
to solicit input on the benefits and impacts of facilities. 

2) Conduct a formalized process of consultation with the Local Enforcement Agencies (LEA) 
to gather information on planned expansions or new facilities and provide an opportunity 
to seek input and collaboration. 

3) Collaborate with  haulers  and owners  of  existing  facilities  to  gather  information  about 
impacts on existing facilities, as well as any plans by private industry to expand or build 
new infrastructure.  

Regarding items 2 and 3 above, as a part of the process of compiling this Report, Zero 
Waste Marin staff has already begun conversations with facilities and County staff; staff 
is  also  involved  in  ongoing  discussions  on  accepted materials  at  the  existing  organics 
processing facilities, which is an  important part of planning for organics  infrastructure. 
The Project Team recommends that the process should be repeated on a yearly basis, and 
could  also  include  ongoing  conversation  with  Sonoma  County  Waste  Management 
Agency on anticipated infrastructure in Sonoma County and jurisdiction representatives 
in Alameda County for capacity updates at the Altamont Compost Facility. 



 

www.r3cgi.com 

1512 Eureka Road, Suite 220, Roseville, CA 95661 
Tel: 916-782-7821  |  Fax: 916-782-7824 

2600 Tenth Street, Suite 424, Berkeley, CA 94710 
Tel: 510-647-9674 

627 S. Highland Avenue, Suite 300, Los Angeles, CA 90036 
Tel: 323-559-7470   

 

 

Introduction  
This memo presents R3 Consulting Group’s (R3) assessment and findings regarding projections of long-
term disposal capacity at Redwood Landfill (Redwood). R3 reviewed the 2012 Environmental Science 
Associates (ESA) projections to verify their accuracy and updated these landfill capacity projections 
based on accrued disposal since 2012, as well as other changes in conditions.  

The updated modeling results indicate that the County has sufficient remaining landfill capacity for at 
least the next 15 years. Table 1 below displays a summary of the updated disposal capacity scenario 
modeling results, and scenario descriptions. 

Table 1: Summary of Redwood Landfill Capacity Projections 

Scenario Landfill Capacity Depletion Date Years of Remaining Capacity 

Zero Waste Achievement 2050 32 

SB 1383 Achievement 2044 26 

Business As Usual 2040 22 

Worst Case Scenario #1 2034 16 

Worst Case Scenario #2 2030 12 

Worst Case Scenario #3 2024 6 

Scenario Descriptions: 

 Zero Waste Achievement: Achievement of 94% waste diversion by 2025. 

 SB 1383 Achievement: Achievement of 50% reduction from 2014 baseline in organic waste sent 
to landfill by 2020, and achievement of 75% reduction by 2025. 

 Business As Usual: No diversion increases and continue existing material flow. 

 Worst Case Scenario #1: No diversion increases and all of Marin’s disposal is directed to 
Redwood; 

 Worst Case Scenario #2: Redwood receives its maximum annual disposal, year after year. 

 Worst Case Scenario #3: Remaining capacity is estimated with a more conservative density 
factor and Redwood receives its maximum annual disposal, year after year. 

To:  Judith Silver, Senior Planner, Zero Waste Marin 

From:  Emily Ginsburg, Senior Project Analyst, R3 Consulting Group 

Date: March 30, 2018 

Subject:  Remaining Landfill Capacity Projections 



Ms. Judith Silver 
March 30, 2018 
Page 2 of 7 
 

 

 

Zero Waste Achievement represents an aspirational diversion scenario. Based on Marin’s disposal 
trends in recent years (i.e. ~73% diversion reported in the last 5 years), and the increased difficulty in 
reducing materials sent to landfill with each additional ton diverted towards zero waste, this scenario is 
unlikely to occur by the 2025 goal date. The SB 1383 Achievement scenario is provided as a benchmark 
for comparison with organic generation estimates which are described more fully in the R3 report, 
“Organics Generation and Capacity Analysis.” 

Worst Case Scenarios represent more conservative estimates for strategic planning purposes. While 
more likely to occur than the Zero Waste Achievement scenario, R3 finds it unlikely that in the future 
that all Marin disposal (including self-haul) would be delivered to Redwood. Furthermore, DRS data from 
1995 onward shows that Redwood has yet to hit its annual maximum permitted disposal capacity in one 
year.  

To provide a middle ground between Zero Waste Achievement and Worst Case Scenarios, R3 has 
developed a Business As Usual scenario in which existing material flow continues with no diversion 
increase. This scenario represents a more realistic projection for disposal for landfill capacity planning. 
Figure A, below, displays all modeled scenarios. 
 

Figure A: Redwood Landfill Capacity Projections to 15-Year Planning Horizon 
  

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

 7,000,000

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

2029

2030

2031

2032

2033
Re

dw
oo

d 
La

nd
fil

l C
ap

ac
ity

 (t
on

s)
 

Year 

Zero Waste SB 1383
Business As Usual Worst Case Scenario #1
Worst Case Scenario #2 Worst Case Scenario #3

Sonoma Fire Disaster Debris 



Ms. Judith Silver 
March 30, 2018 
Page 3 of 7 
 

 

 

Review of Marin County Landfill Capacity Model 

R3 reviewed ESA’s disposal capacity spreadsheet titled “Disposed Waste Projections for Marin County 
and Remaining Capacity Calculations for Redwood Landfill.” The model is used to determine the need 
for additional disposal capacity for Marin County, and particularly whether such a need will arise within 
a 15-year period. Our review findings are detailed in Attachment 1, and summarized as follows: 

 ESA’s modeling assumptions are reasonable and projections of landfill capacity useful given the 
conditions and context existing at the time of its making; 

 The calculation of population in the intervening years between 5-year increments provided by 
population growth projections is linear. Use of a logarithmic function would improve the model 
by providing a more accurate projection, which R3 incorporated as part of the update;  

 The number of operating days per year at Redwood Landfill was entered as 312 by ESA; R3’s 
review of the facility permit shows 311 operating days are allowed (closed Sundays, Christmas 
Day, and New Year’s Day), and this change has been incorporated into the update;  

 There is a minor formula error in the Projected Remaining Capacity, which subtracted a few 
months of disposal capacity (due to the timing of the capacity survey that year) when it should 
have been added to estimate January 1st, 2011. This had a minimal impact on projects, and the 
formula has been corrected for use in the update; and 

The model presents a “Zero Waste Achievement” as the main disposal scenario for 
consideration. While modeling zero waste is helpful to planning efforts, R3 cautions against 
looking to an aspirational level of diversion as the primary scenario for landfill capacity 
projections and recommends using ESA’s “Worst Case Scenarios” or R3’s “Business As Usual” 
scenario as more conservative estimates. 

Model Update Incorporating 2017 Conditions 

R3 updated key facts and figures to renew ESA’s projections, and made changes to the model to 
improve projection accuracy and reflect current conditions. Please see Attachment 2, R3 Updated 
Disposed Waste Projections. Key factors and data sources utilized in this update include the following: 

 Disposal Reporting System (DRS) landfilled tons for Zero Waste Marin from 2011 through 2016; 

 DRS Disposal at Redwood Landfill reported by waste origin from 2011 through 2016; 

 CalRecycle calculated PPD and Diversion Rates for Zero Waste Marin from 2011 through 2016; 

 Redwood Landfill report of current remaining solid waste disposal capacity; 

 Current density factor (i.e., airspace utilization factor or compaction ratio) reported by Redwood 
Landfill; 

 2014 Redwood Landfill Solid Waste Facility Permit and 2017 Emergency Waiver for Sonoma fires 
disaster debris (approval of temporary increase to accept an additional 3,000 TPD); and 

 Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) and Department of Finance population growth 
projections. 

2016 is the new base year for this update. Data for 2017 is limited due to a time lag in reporting disposal 
tonnage, and as such this year becomes the start of the new projections. 
  



Ms. Judith Silver 
March 30, 2018 
Page 4 of 7 
 

 

 

Modeling changes and assumptions R3 made in order to update the model are summarized below: 

 The reported density factor reported by Redwood Landfill in 2017 is 0.95, a decrease from the 
previously reported density factor of 0.99 in 2011; 

 R3 used ABAG data for all the population figures in Column C, as ABAG is expected to have the 
most accurate local projections; ESA’s model used data from the California Department of 
Finance, Demographic Research Unit (Report E-2) as the base year (2010) population figure and 
ABAG growth rates to model changes in population; 

 ABAG’s projections of Marin County population growth are higher (e.g., rate of population 
change is 2.1% for the year 2025 in its most recent projections, compared to 1.3% in 2025 as 
previously projected and used in the 2012 modeling), and population growth in Sonoma County 
lower (3.5% vs 5.5% in 2025);  

 R3 used a logarithmic function to more accurately project population figures between the 5-year 
interval figures provided by ABAG; 

 Redwood Landfill is open 311 days per year, per its facility permit; 

 Projections beyond 2033 continue to assume 2.0% growth for Marin County, and Out-of-County 
growth has been updated to assume 3.5% growth based on ABAG’s updated projections for 
Sonoma County; 

 Marin County’s Out-of-County Disposal projections are based on a new three-year average 
(2014-2016) of 42% of its waste, an increase over the 2008 – 2010 average of 32%; 

 Non-Marin County disposed waste at Redwood now represents 94% of Sonoma, a decrease 
from 97% in the previous projections;  

 There is a noted drop in Non-Marin disposed waste at Redwood, a change of ~100,000 tons 
from 2010 to 2011. This large decrease in the tonnage accepted at Redwood occurred 
subsequent to ESA’s submittal of its landfill capacity projections (i.e., in 2010, Redwood 
reported the acceptance of 292,949 total disposal tons, and in subsequent years, accepted an 
average of approximately 194,000 tons). ESA’s projections use 2010 as the base year, and as a 
result, scenarios project less capacity than Redwood Landfill experienced. However, the 2018 
acceptance of Sonoma disaster debris effectively negates this gain in landfill capacity;  

 The Zero Waste Achievement scenario assumes Zero Waste Marin reaches its goal of 94% 
diversion by 2025. However, it should be noted that the plateau in diversion rate, and decrease 
in diversion in 2016, as seen in the historic data indicates that this projection is now more 
aggressive than it appeared in 2012, and should be considered highly aspirational; and 

 SB 1383 organics diversion is estimated using 50% and 75% capture rates applied to estimates of 
organic waste in Marin County 2014 single family, multi-family, and commercial disposal, 2014 
Marin County self-haul disposal at Redwood Landfill, and sludge. For the purposes of this 
analysis, all franchised disposal is considered to be delivered to Redwood Landfill, which is not 
fully in alignment with current conditions.  

  



Ms. Judith Silver 
March 30, 2018 
Page 5 of 7 
 

 

 

Disaster Debris from Sonoma Fires 

On November 28th, 2017, Redwood Landfill was granted an Emergency Waiver to accept Sonoma fire 
disaster debris. This waiver allows the facility to accept up to 3,000 TPD of waste for disposal in excess of 
their permitted 1,390 TPD, and pending the receipt and approval of the engineering consultant 
evaluation results regarding fill sequencing, effective December 5, 2017, Redwood Landfill may accept 
up to 5,000 TPD of waste for disposal in excess of their permitted 1,390 TPD so long as the permitted 
traffic volume of 662 total daily vehicles is not exceeded. The effective date of the waiver is November 
28, 2017 through March 28, 2018; emergency waivers can only be approved for 120 days and may be 
extended if deemed necessary by the Local Solid Waste Enforcement Agency. 

R3 conservatively estimates that disaster debris from the Sonoma fires will amount to 50% of the 
approved 3,000 increase in TPD (3,000 TPD x 50% received x 311 annual days of operation = 468,000 
tons of disaster debris), and in the model this is incorporated as one year of increased disposal in 2018. 
This is equivalent to approximately two years of capacity at Redwood, and R3 recommends that Zero 
Waste Marin consider the impacts of future disasters on landfill capacity. 

Marin County Landfill Capacity Model Walk-Through 

The following is a column-by-column description of the spreadsheet: 

 Column B shows the base year for the projections, 2016.  The table provides projections through 
2033.  Extended projections beyond 2033 are shown below the table. 

 Column C uses information from ABAG to provide population figures for 2010 and the following 
5-year intervals. Population growth in the intervening years is also based on ABAG projections 
(ABAG Projections, 2013).   

 Column D displays the 5-year increments of population growth rates. See the ABAG Pop tab in 
the spreadsheet for source data. 

 Column E shows estimated waste generation for the 2016 base year and future years 
(generation is the sum of all waste disposed plus diverted). The 2016 figure is back-calculated 
from the diversion rate reported to CalRecycle for 2016 and the reported disposal figure for that 
year.  See the calculations in the Waste Gen Calcs tab in the spreadsheet.  Projections are based 
on the projected population growth rate, as described above. 

 Column F shows 2016 base year disposed waste, as reported to CalRecycle.  Disposed waste 
projections are based on population growth rate, as described above. 

Zero Waste Achievement  

 Column G provides projections of the County’s diversion rate, expressed as a percentage of 
generated waste. The 2016 figure is calculated by CalRecycle using pounds per person per day 
(PPD) to estimate a “diversion rate equivalent.” Projections are based on achievement of the 
JPA’s long-term goal as expressed in the JPA’s Feasibility Study: 94% by 2025. Diversion is 
assumed to level out at 94% after 2025. 

 Columns H and I use the diversion rate projections in Column G and the waste generation 
projections in Column E to estimate future amounts diverted and disposed, respectively. 

 Column J provides the year-to-year cumulative total of waste disposed, based on the disposed 
amounts in Column I. 

 Columns K and L show the projected waste disposed out-of-County and in-County (at Redwood 
Landfill) respectively. The amount disposed out-of-County is set at 42% of the total disposed, 
based on the average for Marin for the years 2014 – 2016, as shown in the Disposal 1995 – 2016 
tab in the spreadsheet.   



Ms. Judith Silver 
March 30, 2018 
Page 6 of 7 
 

 

 

 Column M provides the year-to-year cumulative total for projected disposal at Redwood from 
within Marin County.  

 Column N shows ABAG’s projections of Sonoma County population increase. 

 Column O provides base year and projected waste amounts disposed at Redwood Landfill from 
outside Marin County.  An analysis of waste coming to Redwood from outside the County in 
recent years indicates that about 94 percent was from Sonoma County (see the Disp at 
Redwood tab in the spreadsheet). Therefore, ABAG’s projections of Sonoma County population 
increase, shown in Column N, were used as a basis for projecting future increases in waste 
disposed at Redwood Landfill originating from outside Marin County. 

 Column P shows the projections for total amount of waste disposed at Redwood Landfill, 
combining Marin County and non-Marin County wastes.   

 Column Q provides the year-to-year cumulative total disposed at Redwood Landfill, based on 
Column P. 

 Column R provides our best estimate of the County’s remaining landfill capacity.  This column 
shows, for 2016, the estimated remaining capacity at Redwood Landfill, in tons, based on the 
landfill’s report of their 2017 capacity survey. Projections show the year-to-year decrease in 
capacity, assuming the disposed amounts in Column P. As shown, Redwood Landfill would still 
have about 3.2 million tons of capacity remaining in 2033. The projection of remaining capacity 
continues below the table, and shows that under this scenario, landfill capacity runs out in 2050.  
The projections after 2033 use increases in disposal based on user-defined population growth 
rates (the highlighted cells in Columns L and O). 

Worst Cast Scenarios 

 Columns T through Z provide several “worst-case” scenarios, which use different assumptions 
to test whether Redwood Landfill might run out of capacity within 15 years.  

 Column U shows remaining capacity based on the disposal amounts in Column T, which assumes 
no increase in the diversion rate above the 2016 level, and also assumes that all of Marin 
County’s solid waste would be disposed at Redwood Landfill, along with continued import of 
waste from outside the County. Under this scenario (Worst Case Scenario #1), there would be 
about 158,000 tons of capacity remaining at Redwood Landfill in 2033—an insufficient amount 
for the 350,000+ tons of annual disposal projected for the following year under this scenario, 
which shows that the landfill runs out of capacity in 2034. 

 Column W (Worst Case Scenario #2) shows remaining capacity assuming the maximum 
permitted annual rate of disposal (shown in Column V), assuming Redwood’s reported density 
factor of 0.95 tons per cubic yard. Column X also assumes the maximum permitted annual rate 
of disposal, and uses a density factor of 0.57 tons per cubic yard, which represents an average 
density for conventional landfills (Worst Case Scenario #3).1 Column W shows that, at the 
maximum permitted rate of disposal, the landfill runs out of capacity in 2030.  Column X shows 
the landfill runs out of capacity in 2024. 

 Columns Y and Z provide the opportunity for the user to conduct a sensitivity analysis to test 
different rates of disposal and their effects on remaining landfill capacity.  The highlighted user-
input field below the table indicates the percent of maximum permitted rate of disposal. 

                                                
1  In 2015, R3 conducted a survey to collect specific density factor information from approximately 40 landfills in 

California, resulting in an average of 0.57 ton/yd3. The factor depends on several different variables, such as 
compaction technology, moisture content, amount of time the material has been buried, and type of 
alternative daily cover.  



Ms. Judith Silver 
March 30, 2018 
Page 7 of 7 
 

 

 

Column Z provides remaining capacity, using the in-place density factor of 0.57 tons per cubic 
yard. 

Business As Usual 

Calculated separately from ESA’s Zero Waste Achievement and Worst Case Scenarios, to the right of the 
spreadsheet, R3 has projected a more moderate scenario of waste disposal.  

 Column AB shows the sum of Marin and non-Marin disposed waste, assuming no increase in 
diversion from current levels and disposal escalated at the same rate as population growth. It 
also maintains the current flow of materials by subtracting Marin’s out-of-County disposal.  

 Column AC shows the remaining capacity under the above scenario, with 1.8 million tons of 
landfill capacity remaining in 2033. 

SB 1383 Achievement 

SB 1383 achievement is calculated using Marin’s SB 1383 organics diversion targets: approximately 
28,000 tons of additional organic material diversion in 2020 and 42,000 tons in 2025.  

 Column AE shows business as usual disposal less the additional diversion of organic materials 
needed to meet SB 1383 goals; no additional diversion is modeled after goal achievement.  

 Column AF shows the remaining capacity. Under this scenario, the landfill runs out of capacity in 
2044. 

Other Considerations 
Waste Management (the owner and operator of Redwood Landfill) has no obligation to continue to 
accept disposal, construction and demolition debris (C&D), and recycling for transfer and processing. If 
the landfill ceases operation, it is possible that Marin County will be in the position of needing to quickly 
plan for future transfer capacity for disposal, C&D and recyclable materials. Transfer capacity and 
recycling processing capacity (including C&D) was not specifically analyzed as a part of this project; 
however, a 15-year planning horizon for transfer capacity should be a minimum, and longer-term 
planning is recommended.  

 



 

www.r3cgi.com 

1512 Eureka Road, Suite 220, Roseville, CA 95661 
Tel: 916-782-7821  |  Fax: 916-782-7824 

2600 Tenth Street, Suite 424, Berkeley, CA 94710 
Tel: 510-647-9674 

627 S. Highland Avenue, Suite 300, Los Angeles, CA 90036 
Tel: 323-559-7470   

 

 

Zero Waste Marin engaged R3 Consulting Group, Inc. (R3) to lead a team of industry experts including 
Integrated Waste Management Consulting, LLC, Cascadia Consulting Group, and Debra Kaufman 
Consulting (collectively, Project Team) to assist in improving the DRS spreadsheet used to report 
tonnages to the State, and to prepare for Assembly Bill (AB) 901. This memo presents the Project Team’s 
activities, findings, and recommendation regarding the DRS Tool and AB 901 Preparedness under Tasks 1 
and 2 of our scope for the Material Flow and Capacity Analysis. 

Background and Regulatory Context 
AB 901 is a revision of the reporting requirements in the California Integrated Waste Management Act 
of 1989, which regulates the disposal, management, and recycling of solid waste. The main revision 
made by AB 901 is to require disposal facilities to send reports directly to CalRecycle rather than to the 
counties in which they operate. Additionally, disposal, compost, and recycling tonnage information will 
now be submitted directly to CalRecycle and counties upon request. The revision also removes the 
requirement for counties to submit reporting information to CalRecycle, cities, and regional agencies 
upon request. 

The bill also requires exporters, brokers, and transporters of recyclables or compost to submit 
information to CalRecycle on the types, quantities, and destinations of materials that are disposed, sold, 
or transferred inside/outside of the state, and authorizes CalRecycle to provide that information on an 
aggregated basis to jurisdictions.  

As a County with a landfill in its jurisdiction, Marin County (County) has been responsible for reporting 
landfill disposal to CalRecycle under the Disposal Reporting System (DRS). The County has also been 
receiving detailed reports on diversion tonnage from franchised haulers, including recycling marketed by 
material category. AB 901 would therefore mean that the County will no longer receive reporting 
information directly, potentially complicating the annual assessment of the JPA fees and the evaluation 
of diversion program performance over time.  

AB 901 regulations have not been finalized, but we understand that the intention is to maintain 
transparent and complete access to reporting for jurisdictions. However, it is unclear whether 
information will be available in a timely manner to Zero Waste Marin, which is particularly relevant to 

To:  Judith Silver, Senior Planner, Zero Waste Marin 

From:  Rosemarie Radford, Senior Project Analyst, R3 Consulting Group 

Date: March 30, 2018 

Subject:  DRS Tool and AB 901 Preparedness 

Attachments: Attachment 1:  Reporting Ordinance Template 



Ms. Judith Silver 
March 30, 2018 
DRS Tool and AB 901 Preparedness 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 

 

the assessment of JPA fees. JPA fees are assessed each spring based on the submission of disposal data 
for the previous calendar year.  

Methodology 

The Project Team analyzed the draft regulations and the bill text, in addition to attending stakeholder 
workshops, in order to determine timeline and future regulatory changes under AB 901. 

Additionally, as a part of building a detailed understanding of the flow of organic material through the 
County to assist in projections of organics generation and capacity for processing organics (described in 
the report entitled, “Organics Flow and Capacity”), the Project Team assisted Marin County by 
conducting a comprehensive overhaul of the existing spreadsheet used for reporting disposal tonnages 
for Redwood Landfill to the State. The Project Team also summarized diversion and disposal data in a 
similar format for the years 2014 through 2017 by quarter, allowing Zero Waste Marin to produce 
customizable charts displaying disposal and diversion data over time. 

Findings 
Our understanding of the draft regulations for AB 901 has yielded the following:   

1) Marin County can expect that it will be responsible for DRS reporting from haulers and facilities 
to the State through the end of calendar year 2018.  

2) Reports sent to the State under AB 901 will differ from those provided from haulers to the 
County currently. Reports to the State will likely not include information about material recycled 
by category.  

3) Most of the reporting will be provided by facilities (the landfill and transfer station) directly to 
CalRecycle. 

4) In order to assess JPA fees, Zero Waste Marin needs disposal tonnage reported by all haulers 
and facilities. However, much of the additional data currently reported by the haulers to the 
County is valuable for planning purposes and to help the agency meet anticipated requests from 
CalRecycle under SB 1383 and other future regulations. 

Recommendation 

Zero Waste Marin should consider requiring haulers and facilities to continue to report the same 
information that the County has been receiving under the auspices of DRS, and consider policy options 
such as the following in order to ensure that hauler and facility reports continue to be received: 

1) An ordinance that requires reporting from the haulers and facilities under the powers granted to 
Zero Waste Marin under its JPA Agreement. Such an ordinance could be modeled on a similar 
ordinance passed by Alameda County Waste Management Authority (StopWaste) as Ordinance 
2009-01: An Ordinance Establishing Procedures and Reporting Requirements for the Collection 
of the Countywide Solid Waste Facility Fee.1 The Project Team has drafted the findings section 
and other key elements of an ordinance that could be used by Zero Waste Marin for such an 
ordinance. It is provided as Attachment 1 to this memorandum. 

                                                
1  Additional information is available on the StopWaste website, at the following web address: 

http://www.stopwaste.org/recycling/business/recycling-regulations-and-compliance/ordinance-2009-01  

http://www.stopwaste.org/recycling/business/recycling-regulations-and-compliance/ordinance-2009-01


Ms. Judith Silver 
March 30, 2018 
DRS Tool and AB 901 Preparedness 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 

 

2) A formalized letter agreement between all franchised haulers and facilities, and their franchisors 
(Member Agencies).  

Zero Waste Marin may also choose to do nothing, with the understanding that haulers and facilities are 
already in the habit of reporting to the County, though the content form and format of their reports 
under the AB 901 regulations may change. It is anticipated that the reports sent to the state by haulers 
and facilities will require less detail than what is currently reported to the County, and the information 
anticipated to be excluded via AB 901 is valuable for planning purposes. 

 



 

www.r3cgi.com 

1512 Eureka Road, Suite 220, Roseville, CA 95661 
Tel: 916-782-7821  |  Fax: 916-782-7824 

2600 Tenth Street, Suite 424, Berkeley, CA 94710 
Tel: 510-647-9674 

627 S. Highland Avenue, Suite 300, Los Angeles, CA 90036 
Tel: 323-559-7470   

 

 

Zero Waste Marin engaged R3 Consulting Group, Inc. (R3) to lead a team of industry experts including 
Integrated Waste Management Consulting, LLC, Cascadia Consulting Group, and Debra Kaufman 
Consulting (collectively, Project Team) to develop a Tonnage Scenario Tool to explore various organic 
flow scenarios in order to determine capacity requirements over the next 15 – 20 years as required by 
AB 876. This memo presents the Project Team’s actions to develop this Tonnage Scenario Tool.  

Background 
R3 completed the Organics Flow and Capacity Analysis, which presented our analysis of disposed 
organics in 2014 and organics processing capacity from 2016 to 2033. In Section 6 of the Report, we 
described three scenarios for organics generation. These three scenarios are: 

 “Business as Usual” with no increase of organics diversion 

 “Achievement of SB 1383 Goals” (including moderate increases of organics diversion and 
disposal according to population) 

 “Increasing Diversion” with diversion continuing to increase as it did from 2014-2016  

The three scenarios described above represent various adjustments to organics generation. Organics 
diversion and disposal tonnages increase by population under every scenario; the increase is moderate. 
We have provided JPA staff the calculations used to produce our results for these three models (in Excel 
format), with an additional data “input tab” that provides the flexibility to adjust modeled infrastructure 
capacity for the various material streams included in the model. The material streams are: 

 Commercial “inedible” source-separated food scraps (not commingled with food-soiled paper, 
cardboard, or compostable plastics). 

 Green material including landscaping debris and not including food scraps, food-soiled paper, 
cardboard, or compostable plastics. The majority of this material originates from the self-haul 
sector. Some of the material originates from residential routes in Stinson and Bolinas.  

 Mixed organics including landscaping debris, food scraps, food-soiled paper, cardboard, and 
compostable plastics. Increases in this stream are modeled by population and also inedible food 
attributed to all sectors except for commercial (which is modeled separately and listed above). 

To:  Judith Silver, Senior Planner, Zero Waste Marin 

From:  Rosemarie Radford, Senior Project Analyst, R3 Consulting Group 

Date: March 30, 2018 

Subject:  DRAFT Tonnage Scenario Tool and AB 876 Infrastructure Planning Tool 



Ms. Judith Silver 
March 30, 2018 
DRAFT Tonnage Scenario Tool and AB 876 Infrastructure Planning Tool 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 

Projections of future tons are broken into the component material types, because sufficient 
data exists to characterize this material; insufficient data exists to break down the existing and 
historical mixed organics stream in such detail.  

 Food-soiled paper, cardboard, and other tons,1 which are a potentially challenging group of 
materials to divert. 

 Sludge. 

It should be noted that two material streams included in the 2014 baseline year organics disposal 
characterization are not included in the scenario models. Those material streams are recyclable paper 
and disposed edible food, modeled as reduced by 20% by 2025. Recyclable paper is expected to be 
diverted by recycling and marketing as paper (not composted), and edible food is modeled as a 
reduction in disposed tons, and not an increase in needed organics processing capacity.  

Model Scenarios 
R3 has provided the following data inputs for the Organics Tonnage Scenario Tool: 

1. Petaluma tons per year (10,000 in 2016) 

2. Sonoma County Waste Management Agency tons per year (33,000 in 2016) 

3. Davis St. tons per year (32,000 in 2016) 

4. Additional compost facility opens (input tons per year as green material or mixed organics, 
including food scraps and food-soiled paper) 

5. CMSA expands capacity (according to demand, or in tons per year), or reduces capacity in 
tons per year 

6. West Marin Compost expands capacity (in tons per year), or reduces capacity (in tons per 
year) 

7. EarthCare expands capacity (in tons per year) 

                                                
1 The paper categories included are items made mostly of paper that could be composted, that do not fit into any 

of the other paper types. Paper may be combined with minor amounts of other materials such as wax or glues. 
Examples include pulp paper egg cartons, unused pulp paper plant pots, molded paper packing materials, 
some berry trays, some take‐out food containers, and dirty molded paper plates. Also, items made mostly of 
paper but combined with large amounts of other materials. These are items that do not fit into any other 
categories, are not generally compostable or recyclable, and are not food and beverage cartons. Examples 
include blueprints, sepia, onion skin, carbon paper, photographs, paper frozen juice cans, sheets of paper 
stick‐on labels, and paper mailing envelopes lined with bubble wrap or plastic. 



REDWOOD LANDFILL

Sufficient capacity exists under likely 
scenarios for a 15-year time horizon, 
even with projected population growth, 
no diversion increases, and if all 
disposal from Marin County is directed 
to Redwood Landfill.*

15
years
left...

*DID YOU KNOW? Not all of Marin County’s garbage 
ends up in Redwood Landfill—and not all of the 
garbage in Redwood Landfill originates in our county.

What should you know?

JPA is responsible for reporting 
to the state on whether 
sufficient capacity exists.

Member Agencies are 
responsible for arranging 
adequate garbage collection, 
transfer, transport, and disposal. 

For more information, 
visit Zero Waste Marin 
online at:

zerowastemarin.org

REFRESH
          your

local 
recycling
program

Stay tuned for 
updates

GROW 
         your

local
organics
program

See reverse 
side for details

What should you do?
Seek to arrange for 
transfer and transport 
out-of-County in 
anticipation of the 
exhaustion of the 
landfill capacity after 15 
years.

Remain alert. Flows 
from outside the County 
(such as the recent 
Sonoma fire disaster) 
can affect the time 
horizon for exhaustion 
of capacity.

Continue to reduce 
the volume of waste 
going to landfill.

Solano

Contra Costa

Alameda

Santa Clara

Marin

San 
Francisco

KB
Sonoma

C

E
F

D

G H

I

J

San 
Mateo

A

Local & Regional 
Landfills
A)  Redwood Landfill
B) Central Disposal Site
C) Ox Mountain
D) Newby Island
E)  Guadalupe
F)  Kirby Canyon
G) Vasco Road
H) Altamont
I)  Keller Canyon
J)   Potrero Hills
K)  Recology Hay Road



ORGANICS
Our green stream is about to grow...

SB 1383
a new State Law

Sets ambitious targets for 
reducing landfilled 
organics and related 
greenhouse gas emissions.

Statewide 
diversion 
requirements

Significant 
new program 
requirements

Benchmarks 
in 2020 and 
2025

2020 GOAL
50% Reduction 
in organics to landfill

+29,697 tons beyond 
current processing capacity

2025 GOALS
20% Recovery 
of edible food

75% Reduction 
in organics to landfill

+44,922 tons beyond 
current processing capacity

WANTED: Additional Organics Processing Capacity
Current local processing capacity is not sufficient to meet projected needs.

0

20 K

40 K

60 K

80 K

100 K

120 K

140 K

2017 2019 2021 2023 2025 2027 2029 2031 2033

T
o

n
s 

P
e

r 
Y

e
ar

Anticipated tons of 
organics requiring 
processing

Currently available 
local processing capacity*

...w/ proposed 
2026 EarthCare 
expansion

...w/out 
EarthCare 
expansion* EarthCare is permitted at 

     514 tons per day

ORGANICS: More than Just Green Waste

JPA is responsible 
for reporting to 
the state on 
whether sufficient 
capacity exists.

Member Agencies are responsible 
for arranging collection, transfer, 
transport, and processing for 
organics—usually through 
contracts with haulers. 

What should you know? What should you do?

SB 1383 defines the organic waste stream to include:

Encourage local 
infrastructure 
expansion and 
development 
with legislation 
and contracting.

Secure organics 
processing 
capacity with 
haulers, directly 
with processors, 
or with JPA.

Act soon! 
Inaction can 
result in limited 
or no access, if 
others secure 
local capacity 
first. This means 
higher costs for 
long-distance 
transport, and 
higher ghg 
impacts.

Food waste
kitchen scraps and 

post-consumer food

Green material
landscape and 
pruning waste 

Paper fibers
wet or soiled paper 

and cardboard

Textiles
clothing, fabric

and carpets

Woody material
wood waste 
and lumber

Biosolids
biosolids, sludge 

and digestate

Solano

Contra Costa

Alameda

Santa Clara

San
JoaquinMarin

San 
Francisco

Napa

A

B

D
EC
F

G
H

I
J

K

LM

N

O

A)  West Marin Compost
B)  Bolinas-Stinson Resource Recovery
C)  Central Marin Sanitation Agency 
D) WM EarthCare of Marin

Local & Regional 
Organics Processing 
Facilities
Local / Marin County

Regional / Bay Area
E)  WCCSLF Organic Materials Processing
F)  EBMUD Anaerobic Digester
G) City of Napa Material Diversion Facility
H) CCL Organics
I)  Potrero Hills Compost Facility
J)  Recology / Jepson Prairie Organics Composting
K)  Altamont Landfill and Resource Recovery
L)  Newby Island Compost Facility
M) Zero Waste to Energy Development Co AD
N) Forward Resource Recovery
O) South Valley Organic Composting Facility
P)  Z-Best Composting Facility



8 
MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

 
Belvedere 
 
 
Corte Madera 
 
 
County of Marin 
 
 
Fairfax 
 
 
Larkspur 
 
 
Mill Valley 
 
 
Novato 
 
 
Ross 
 
 
San Anselmo 
 
 
San Rafael 
 
 
Sausalito 
 
 
Tiburon 
  
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Date:  May 24, 2018 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re: Report on Activities from the JPA’s Local Task Force (LTF) 
 
In the current 17-18 Fiscal Year, your Local Task Force (LTF) advisory 
body will have met on August 2, 2017, October 4, 2017, December 6, 
2017, February 6, 2018 April 4, 2018 and May 2, 2018. Per the LTF 
Procedures, this item on the Agenda provides the opportunity for the 
advisory body to give updates to the Board.  At the LTF’s April 4, 2018 
meeting, the group elected Dee Johnson Chair and Renee Goddard 
Vice-Chair.  For reference, following is the LTF roster: 
 
Haulers/Facility Operators 
Marin Sanitary Service Patty Garbarino 
Bay Cities Refuse (Alternate) Greg Christie 
Mill Valley Refuse Jim Iavarone 
Redwood Landfill Ramin Khany 
Special Districts Franchising Solid Waste 
Novato Sanitary District Dee Johnson, LTF Chair 
Las Gallinas Sanitary District Russ Greenfield 
Las Gallinas Sanitary District (Alt) Judy Schriebman 
Environmental Organizations 
Sierra Club, Green Coalition David Haskell 
Sustainable Novato Delyn Kies 
NatureBridge Jennie Pardi 
Public Members 
County of Marin David Green 
San Rafael Alice Cochran 
Ross Valley Renee Goddard, Vice-Chair 
Novato Matt McCarron 
Southern Marin Appointment Pending 
 
Recommendation 
Receive update from Local Task Force. 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Agenda Items\JPA 180524\Item 8 - Update from LTF SR.doc 



9 
MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

 
Belvedere 
 
 
Corte Madera 
 
 
County of Marin 
 
 
Fairfax 
 
 
Larkspur 
 
 
Mill Valley 
 
 
Novato 
 
 
Ross 
 
 
San Anselmo 
 
 
San Rafael 
 
 
Sausalito 
 
 
Tiburon 
  
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Date:  May 24, 2018 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re: Update Local Task Force Procedures to Reflect New Attendance Policy 

and Length of Terms 
 
Your Local Task Force asked Staff to research and develop an updated policy 
to address attendance and membership on the LTF for consideration by the 
JPA Board.   
 
The Local Task Force has worked on this issue since late last year – and in 
April voted unanimously to bring forward, to your Board for consideration of 
adoption, the attached, revised “LTF Procedures” document – which contains a 
new policy on LTF attendance.  In short, the group was frustrated that on 
occasion the LTF was not able to make a quorum in part because certain 
members were chronically absent – and did not relinquish their seats to make 
them available to others in the community who might like to participate. 
 
The attached draft attendance policy (contained in Section 6 of the attached 
“LTF Procedures” document) provides the opportunity for most, but not all, of 
the current members who could be impacted by such a policy to ensure 
continued membership.  There is a six-month delay in the effective day of the 
policy which will provide certain members who have been long time, reliable 
participants to boost their attendance average to retain their seat.  That said, in 
all cases – there is also language which clarifies that anyone can reapply for a 
seat. 
 
In addition to addressing attendance, an additional provision reduces Terms 
from lifetime appointments to three years – which can provide the opportunity 
for other potentially well qualified stakeholders to participate more actively in 
the JPA.  That said, even without an LTF voting seat, the group has been very 
welcoming to all stakeholders and attendees at its meetings. 
  
Recommendation 
Adopt a Motion adopting the attached LTF Procedures – which includes a new 
attendance policy. 
 
Attachments; 
 
1. April 4, 2018 Local Task Force Staff Report. 
2. LTF Attendance Record and Explanation of Affected Members 
3. Proposed, Update LTF Procedures – Including New Attendance Policy 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Agenda Items\JPA 180524\Item 8 - Update from LTF SR.doc 





 

Local Task Force Member Attendance History 
and Relation to New Attendance Policy 

 
 

“Meetings Back at Time of Proposed 
New Policy Effective Date ->” 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10  11 12 13 14 15 

Representative Nov 
18 

Aug 
18 

May 
18 

Apr 
18 

Feb 
18 

Dec 
17 

Oct 
17 

Aug 
17 

Apr 
17 

Feb 
17 

 Jan 
17 

Oct 
16 

Aug 
16 

Mar 
16 

Jan 
16 

Quorum? tbd tbd Yes Yes No No Yes Yes Yes Yes  Yes No No Yes Yes 
Haulers/Facilities            
Garbarino (MSS) tbd tbd No Yes No No Yes Yes Yes No  No No No Yes No 
Iavarone (MVRS) (as of 1/17) tbd tbd Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes  No n/a n/a n/a n/a 
Khany (Redwood L.) tbd tbd Yes No No Yes Yes No Yes Yes  Yes Yes No No Yes 
Christie (BCRS) Alt tbd tbd No No No No No No Yes No  No No No No No 
Special Districts            
Greenfield (LGVSD) tbd tbd Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes  Yes Yes Yes No Yes 
Johnson (Nov. San.) tbd tbd Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes  Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
Schriebman (LGVSD) Alt tbd tbd No No No No No No Yes No  No No No No No 
Environmental Orgs            
Haskell (Sierra) tbd tbd No No No No No No No No  No No No No No 
Kies (Sustainable Novato) tbd tbd Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes  Yes No Yes Yes Yes 
Pardi (NatureBridge) tbd tbd Yes Yes No No Yes Yes No No  Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
Public Members            
Cochran (San Rafael) (as of 5/18) tbd tbd Yes n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a  n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 
Goddard (Ross Valley) tbd tbd Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes  Yes No Yes Yes No 
Green (County) tbd tbd Yes Yes No No No Yes Yes No  Yes Yes No Yes No 
Vacant (So Marin Recruiting) tbd tbd No No No No Yes Yes Yes Yes  No No Yes Yes Yes 
McCarron (Novato City) tbd tbd Yes Yes No No No Yes No No  No No Yes No Yes 

 
 
Current Members who would lose their LTF Seat with adoption of the new policy (but with the opportunity to reapply) regardless of 
attendance at the next two LTF Meetings: Haskell. 
 
Current Members who can preserve their LTF Seat if they attend at least one the two next meetings: Garbarino, Pardi, Green. 
 
Current Members who can preserve their LTF Seat only if they attend both of the next two LTF meetings: McCarron. 
 

f:\waste\jpa\jpa agenda items\jpa 180524\item 9 - attachment 2 - ltf member attendance log.doc 



MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT 

 JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY - AB939 LOCAL TASK FORCE 

PROCEDURES 

 

SECTION 1 – SUMMARY OF PURPOSES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

• Identify solid waste management issues of county-wide or regional concern 

• Make recommendations to the JPA Board regarding updates and maintenance of 

the County Integrated Waste Management Plan including the five-year review(s) 

as set forth in Public Resources Code Sections 41770 and 41822 

• Monitor and review proposed legislation related to integrated waste 

management. If determined appropriate, propose recommendations to the Joint 

Powers Authority Board regarding advocating for legislation that will assist the 

County in meeting its goals pursuant to the California Integrated Waste 

Management Act 

• Consider recommendations to the Joint Powers Authority Board regarding 

ordinances and/or minimum standards for possible adoption by local 

jurisdictions to assist in meeting the goals according to the California Integrated 

Waste Management Act and related legislation 

 

SECTION 2 – MEMBERSHIP 

 

The Marin County Hazardous and Solid Waste Management Joint Powers Authority 

Board has determined that the Local Task Force membership shall include at least two 

representatives of waste haulers, with two alternate members for those positions, three 

representatives of environmental organizations, two representatives of special districts 

involved in the regulation and disposal of waste, and five public representatives 

appointed by the member agencies serving on the Joint Powers Authority Executive 

Committee. 

 

Local Task Force members shall be appointed by the Joint Powers Authority Board of 

Directors, with the exception of the five public representatives which will be appointed 

by the respective member agency serving on the Joint Powers Authority Executive 

Committee. Local Task Force members shall serve a maximum of three years. After 

three years, members are free to reapply for a seat. For members seated at the time of 

adoption of this policy, the three year term limit shall commence upon policy adoption 

by the JPA Board. 

 

SECTION 3 – MEETINGS 

 

Local Task Force regular meetings will be held monthly on the first Wednesday of each 

month, with a schedule adopted by the LTF at its first meeting of each year, in the 

offices of the Marin County Department of Public Works or other available locations. All 

regular meetings shall comply with the noticing, agenda, and comment requirements of 



the Brown Act (Government Code §54950 et seq.). Special meetings may be called by 

the Chair or by a majority of the members, and held in accordance with the 

requirements of the Brown Act. 

 

SECTION 4 – QUORUM, VOTING, AND RULES OF ORDER 

 

A quorum for the transaction of business shall exist when a majority of the appointed 

members are present. When a quorum is present, action may be taken by the Local Task 

Force upon the affirmative vote of a majority of the members present, unless a greater 

voting requirement is prescribed by statute. Meetings of the Local Task Force shall be 

governed by Robert’s Rules of Order. 

 

SECTION 5 – ELECTION OF OFFICERS, TERM, AND DUTIES 

 

The officers of the Local Task Force shall be the Chair and Vice-Chair. Elections will be 

held at the first meeting of the calendar year and the Chair and Vice-Chair will assume 

responsibilities immediately. The term of the Chair and Vice-Chair shall be one year. 

 

If at any time the Chair vacates this position, the Vice-Chair shall assume the role of 

Chair for the remainder of the elected term and is authorized to appoint a new Vice-

Chair to serve the remainder of that elected term. 

 

CHAIR’S DUTIES 

1. Conduct meetings 

2. Make reports to the Joint Powers Authority Executive Committee and Board of 

Directors. 

3. Other duties as requested by Local Task Force membership 

 

VICE-CHAIR’S DUTIES 

1. Acting Chair in the absence of Chair 

2. Other duties as requested by Local Task Force membership 

 
SECTION 6 – ATTENDANCE 

 

To effectively carry out its role as an advisory body to the JPA Board it is necessary for 

the LTF to have consistent participation from the various stakeholder categories that 

comprise the LTF membership.  Accordingly, to make LTF seats available to the 

stakeholder community – when an LTF member is unable to participate in less than 50% 

of the most recent ten meetings, for whatever reason, that member shall vacate that 

seat and the JPA shall publicize the availability of the seat, for the seats it oversees (or 

notify the public appointing agency of the opportunity to appoint a new member for the 

five public agency appointed seats).  Members who leave the LTF for any reason are free 

to reapply for a seat.  This Section 6 becomes effective six months after adoption by the 

JPA Board. 



 
 
F:\Waste\JPA\LTF\LTF Procedures - Attendance Update.doc 



10 
 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/446-7373 

 
 
Belvedere 
   
 
Corte Madera 
   
 
County of Marin 
   
 
Fairfax 
   
 
Larkspur 
   
 
Mill Valley 
   
 
Novato 
   
 
Ross 
 
 
San Anselmo 
  
 
San Rafael 
  
 
Sausalito 
 
 
Tiburon 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Date: May 24, 2018 
 
To: JPA Board Members  
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re: FY 18/19 JPA Budget and Related Hauler/Facility Assessments 
 
Attached and described below are two Options (Option A and Option B) 
for the proposed Marin County Hazardous and Solid Waste 
Management Joint Powers Authority FY 18/19 budget and associated 
hauler/facility fee assessments. 
 
Option A – is the FY 18-19 Budget and associated Assessments as 
proposed, and recommended for approval, at the Executive Committee 
meeting on April 26, 2018.  In Option A, the Budget reflects a one-year 
suspension of the Zero Waste Grant Program and redirects those funds 
($350,000) for two, one-time projects:  1). Commissioning a new Zero 
Waste Plan and 2). Developing a Disaster Debris Plan for Marin.  
Implementing this Option is reflected in Resolution No. 2018-01-Option 
A. 
 
Option B – is a FY 18-19 Budget and associated Assessments which 
would continue funding the Zero Waste Grant Program and not fund a 
new Zero Waste Plan or Disaster Debris Plan at this time.  This Option is 
reflected in Resolution No. 2018-01-Option B. 
 
Please recall that the JPA is not funded by County, City or Town general 
funds or any sort of assessment on those Member Agencies.  The JPA 
is funded by lump-sum assessments on the franchised waste haulers in 
the County and the solid waste facilities (Redwood Landfill in Novato, 
Marin Resource Recovery Center, and Marin Sanitary Transfer Station).  
In turn, all these operators pass along these costs to their customers as 
they see fit.   
 
Both budget Options proposed herein reflect a 9.5% increase in total 
year over year total assessments.  However the Assessments levied on 
the haulers, with one small exception, are going down and so the rate 
impact that might be seen by a residential or commercial cart/bin 
customer would likely result in no increase or a reduction. 
 
 



10 
 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/446-7373 

 
 
Background – Option A 
 
All the Franchised Haulers will see reduced assessments based on this proposed 
budget (except for a $334 increase for Novato Disposal).  The Redwood Landfill and the 
Marin Resource Recovery Center will see increases as noted below.  This situation is 
due to the biennial tonnage allocation methodology specified in the 1996 JPA 
Agreement.   A variety of factors can explain shifting tonnages and include a strong 
economy (and so transfer stations and landfill tonnage are up all over the State as more 
people remodel, re-landscape, etc.) and the Sonoma fires.  
 
Assessments for the nine entities that pay JPA Assessments are noted in Column H of 
the first page of Attachment 2. The year over year Assessment changes are noted here: 
 
 

JPA Assessments       
  17-18 18-19 Change 
Bay Cities $88,832  $69,488  ($19,344) 
Marin Resource Recovery $680,066  $825,292  $145,226  
Marin Sanitary Service $613,211  $478,128  ($135,082) 
Marin Sanitary Transfer $47,746  $18,166  ($29,579) 
Mill Valley Refuse $317,638  $187,685  ($129,953) 
Recology Novato  $39,370  $39,705  $334  
Redwood Landfill $1,510,058  $2,017,869  $507,812  
Recology Sonoma Marin  $64,313  $56,392  ($7,920) 
Tamalpais CSD $22,829  $15,898  ($6,931) 
  $3,356,376  $3,708,623  $324,562  

 
 
What is the Magnitude of the JPA Revenue Requirement as it 
Translates to a Typical Customer? 
 
The JPA queries the haulers to obtain estimates of how the JPA Assessments translate 
into a percentage of the monthly charge for a typical residential account. Last year, the 
haulers reported that their JPA assessments translated into less than 4% of the rate 
seen by a typical residential customer:

 
 
 
 



 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/446-7373 

 
 

Hauler Average Overall 2016 
Residential Rate  

JPA 
Portion  

% of Total 
Monthly Bill 

Bay Cities Refuse $34.41 .68¢ 2% 
Marin Sanitary $35.09 .69¢ 2% 
Mill Valley Refuse  $36.18 .97¢ 2.7% 
Redwood Empire $26.56 .64¢ - .83¢ 3.1% 
Tamalpais CSD $41.54 .55¢ 1.3% 

 
Note – This data is currently being solicited for a 2017 update. 

 
Because of the Draft 2017 disposal tonnage distribution – and its associated decrease 
in Assessments for most of the haulers – the typical ratepayer would not see any 
increase in their “cart rate” attributable to this proposed budget. 

 
The JPA Budget is Organized into Three Funds: 
  
The three Funds used to organize the JPA’s finances are the Zero Waste Fund, the 
State Reporting Fund and the Household Hazardous Waste Fund. 
 
1. Zero Waste Fund 

(JPA Section 6.2)  Optional Member Participation 
Novato does not participate in this program. 

 
2. State Reporting and Requirements Fund 
 (JPA Section 6.1) All Members Participate 
 
3. Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) Fund 

(JPA Section 6.2)  Optional Member Participation 
Novato does not participate in this program, as it operates its own household 
hazardous waste collection program. 

 
The year-over-year changes in the proposed FY 18-19 budget along with a general 
discussion of activities in each of the three programs are summarized below: 
 

Fund Center FY17/18  
Expense Budget 

FY 18/19 Proposed 
Expense Budget 

1. Zero Waste  $        1,183,275 $             1,074,382 
2. State Reporting  $        483,683 $                620,373 
3. Hazardous Waste $     2,199,115 $             2,389,878 

 $     3,866,073 $             4,084,733             
 
 



 

4 
 

What is Being Proposed for FY 18-19 that is Significantly Different 
from Last Year? 
 
The biggest operational difference being proposed, year over year is to conduct two 
important projects: a new Zero Waste Plan & preparation of a Disaster Debris Plan with 
funding “provided by” the temporary suspension of the Zero Waste Grant Program. 
 
1). New Zero Waste Plan ($200,000) 
 
This agency adopted a Zero Waste Resolution in 2006 – with a goal of 80% landfill 
diversion by 2012 and a zero waste goal for 2025.  For the most recent 2016 State 
reporting year – Marin reported a diversion rate of 70% -- down from the more recent 
average of 74% to 75%.  There is no indication to suggest that without significant 
additional actions that Marin will meet either the 80% goal or the zero waste goal.  Staff 
suggests that in the intervening seven years since the JPA adopted a Zero Waste Tool 
Kit in 2011, there are new best management practices and lessons learned that can 
inform new approaches to zero waste. 
 
It is expected that this Project would be implemented via an RFP process to identify a 
multi-disciplinary project team to oversee the effort and would necessitate a Board 
Subcommittee be appointed to participate in project oversight.  Many stakeholders will 
want to participate in this Project including your Local Task Force. 
 



 

5 
 

2) Disaster Debris Management Plan ($150,000) 
 
Marin does not currently have a Disaster Debris Management Plan.  A plan can serve 
multiple functions – but two critical ones are:   
 
1) With advanced planning, disaster debris can be handled more thoughtfully, resulting 

in less material needing to be landfilled.  As noted in the following information from 
the California Office of Emergency Services, “debris management costs, on 
average, total 45% of the cost of a disaster” – and that debris "robs” local landfills of 
expensive space that could otherwise be available for routine municipal solid waste 
disposal.  For more information, see here: http://www.caloes.ca.gov/cal-oes-
divisions/recovery/disaster-mitigation-technical-support/technical-assistance/debris-
management. 
 

2) A Plan can facilitate FEMA reimbursement and even provide for a reimbursement 
incentive for having taken the initiative of having prepared a Plan in advance of a 
disaster. For more information from FEMA on Disaster Debris Plans see here: 
https://www.fema.gov/media-library-data/1435583120468-
5f159dfe61d4cea48d22a67980a42786/PAAPDebrisManagementPlanJobAidv2FINA
L062515508.pdf. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
How Can the Costs and Resources Necessary for These Two Projects 
be Managed and Provided? 
 
To offset the costs for these two one-time projects it is proposed to suspend, for one 
year, the Zero Waste Grant Program.  This would allow for the rededication of the 
$350,000 used for the Zero Waste Grant Program – and instead reallocate those funds 

http://www.caloes.ca.gov/cal-oes-divisions/recovery/disaster-mitigation-technical-support/technical-assistance/debris-management
http://www.caloes.ca.gov/cal-oes-divisions/recovery/disaster-mitigation-technical-support/technical-assistance/debris-management
http://www.caloes.ca.gov/cal-oes-divisions/recovery/disaster-mitigation-technical-support/technical-assistance/debris-management
https://www.fema.gov/media-library-data/1435583120468-5f159dfe61d4cea48d22a67980a42786/PAAPDebrisManagementPlanJobAidv2FINAL062515508.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/media-library-data/1435583120468-5f159dfe61d4cea48d22a67980a42786/PAAPDebrisManagementPlanJobAidv2FINAL062515508.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/media-library-data/1435583120468-5f159dfe61d4cea48d22a67980a42786/PAAPDebrisManagementPlanJobAidv2FINAL062515508.pdf


 

6 
 

at $200,000 for the Zero Waste Plan and $150,000 for the Disaster Debris Plan 
development. 
 
The Zero Waste Grant Program is approximately 10% of the agency’s discretionary 
budget – but is by far, the largest single expenditure item.  In terms of “significant 
programs” or expenses – there is nothing else that could be suspended or eliminated 
that would not drastically reduce the ability of the agency to deliver on its corps 
functions of providing for household hazardous waste services, performing required 
solid waste reporting activities and conducting certain waste reduction activities 
(including the essential schools program which will largely be in maintenance – not 
expansion mode). 
 
While the Zero Waste Grant Program has had some success – and has been well 
utilized by a few jurisdictions – for the majority of the eligible communities it has been a 
struggle to make good use of the funding because City and Town staff simply does not 
exist to be able to effectively implement waste reduction activities.   
 
 
Labor is a Significant Portion of Expenditures.  Are There Any 
Changes? 
 
Currently the JPA oversees fourteen professional service contracts to help carry out its 
programs and activities as a way to minimize staff costs.  That said, there are limits to a 
“virtual agency” and the JPA is at capacity in its ability to provide services without 
additional staff.  Because of the understood desire to control costs – particularly around 
labor – no additional permanent staff is proposed in this budget. 
 
There is approximately $12,000 in added labor costs spread among the three funds 
attributable to COLA allocations and recent class specification study results.  There are 
also savings reflected in newer staff that might be at a lower step in the pay scale. 
 
There is one significant proposed change related to labor and that is budgeting for a six-
month “Contingent Fill” position (~ $88,000 fully burdened).  This would be utilized only 
upon request from the Executive Director to the Board Chair to provide for the 
temporary backfill of a regularly budgeted position in case of a long-term vacancy due to 
HR matters such as a retirement, long term medical leave, etc.  This proposal would not 
add any “permanent staff” but would provide the ability to backfill a critical staff position 
(for up to six months) if needed.  The fully burdened cost for this position is spread 
evenly among the three funds.  Because the JPA is small (~ four program staff) the long 
term absence of even one staff person can have a severe impact on the ability to deliver 
expected services.  Contrast this with Stopwaste.org in Alameda County – which offers 
a broader range of services – but has a staff of approximately 40. 
 
 
 



 

7 
 

What are Some Highlights of Ongoing Activities in the Three Fund 
Centers? 
 

 
 
 
1. ZERO WASTE PROGRAMS 
 
Ongoing and proposed Zero Waste activities account for 26% of proposed JPA 
expenditures and include: 
 
• The proposed new Zero Waste Plan as outlined above. 
 
• The Construction and Demolition Program would continue at $15,000 to help 

educate and support Member Agencies’ building inspectors and the public with 
implementation of Construction & Demolition Programs as required by Cal Green 
and to help Marin reach its zero waste goals. 

 
• The Home Composting Program provides training to the community promoting 

waste reduction, water conservation, and the greenhouse gas benefits of home 
composting. 

 
• Member Agency & Public Support 

remains constant in the budget and 
allows the JPA to respond to community 
and Member requests for reusable tote 
bags, attendance at fairs and festivals, 
supplying the public with requested 
brochures, kitchen compost pails, and to 
assist with education and outreach.  



 

8 
 

 

 
• The Public Education component of this budget remains stable and provides for 

direct outreach to Marin citizens through various media sources including television, 
Internet, in-person “Green Teas,” presentations to businesses, business groups, 
HOAs and farmers markets and updates to 
www.zerowastemarin.org. 

 
• The Zero Waste Schools Program budget remains 

constant and will provide for maintenance of seventeen 
schools and addition of four.  There is currently a waiting 
list of twenty schools interested in joining the program. 

 
The contingency account for the Zero Waste Fund is set at 
10%. 
 
 

          
 
 

http://www.zerowastemarin.org/


 

9 
 

2. STATE REPORTING/REQUIREMENTS PROGRAMS 
 
Proposed Administration Program expenditures for FY 18/19 account for 15% of JPA 
expenditures.   
 
• Primary activities in this fund center are to conduct disposal tracking 

and reporting required by a variety of State laws. 
• This year, the JPA completed, with assistance from your Local Task 

Force, the State required “Five Year Update” to Integrated Waste 
Management Plan documents. 

 
There is one significant “new activity” proposed in this fund center: 
 
• Develop a Disaster Debris Plan for Marin County.  As noted above and in light of the 

Sonoma County fires, the JPA should consider how best to plan for dealing with 
significant debris from disasters such as floods, earthquake, firestorm, etc.  
Advanced planning – and planning on a countywide basis - can improve disaster 
response times, reduce costs and identify shortfalls in current planning. The 
intention of this Plan would be to: 

 
o Reduce the need for disaster debris to be landfill from disaster(s) 
o Develop a FEMA and CalOES approved plan to prepare for various disasters 

and would include a determination of FEMA Public Assistance eligibility 
requirements 

o Evaluate applicable environmental rules, including federal, state, and local 
requirements, including responsibilities of the City’s franchise hauler 

o Forecast debris amounts and types and determine a methodology to identify 
disaster-related debris and differentiate disaster-related debris from unrelated 
commercial and residential waste streams 

o Inventory debris management capacity by listing locations of all types of debris 
management facilities, including evaluating options related to recycling, 
composting, and disposal of debris 

o Facilitate approval of the Plan through FEMA, CalOES, and any other relevant 
agency. 

 
The contingency account for the Administration Fund is set at 10% of expenditures. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

10 
 

3. HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE (HHW) PROGRAMS 
 
The proposed HHW Program expenditures for FY 18/19 account for 59% of total JPA 
expenditures.   
 
The program collects, and diverts from landfill, over 1.5 million pounds of material each 
year.  The JPA retains HHW services for the community via a contract with the City of 
San Rafael Fire Department which in turn contracts with Marin Resource Recovery 
Association (MRRA).  The Fire Department also conducts “Toxic Away Days” for remote 
areas of West Marin.   MRRA operates the HHW facility at 565 Jacoby Street in San 
Rafael.  Novato’s hazardous waste services are provided by the Novato Sanitary 
District. 
 
Items of note and continued operation in this Fund include: 
 
• To provide the essential HHW drop-off service, 

the JPA contracts with the City of San Rafael 
Fire Department and its subcontractor MRRA. 
The proposed budget (Attachment 2) for FY 
18/19 of $1,798,703 reflects a 6.7% year over 
year increase comprised of a CPI increase and 
the creation of a HHW Associate staff position at 
MRRA.  It should be noted that as the waste 
stream continues to evolve, it is generally 
becoming more hazardous and more toxic.  For 
example, increased use of lithium batteries is a 
huge hazard that needs to be managed and 
requires additional attention.  For example, last 
year, the Shoreway Environmental Center 
(Materials Recovery Facility) in San Carlos had a fire from a lithium battery, 
improperly deposited in a recycling cart that caught fire and caused over $6 million in 
damage. 

 
• The popular Bulb and Battery Drop-off program budget is proposed at $160,000 

which is an increase of $25,000 – necessitated by volume.  This program has been 
very successful at coordinating the pickup of used fluorescent bulbs and batteries 
dropped off at local hardware and convenience stores.  The majority of the cost 
covers waste processing fees.  
 

• The proposed budget includes $20,000 to assess battery handling practices within 
the county in order to identify possible efficiencies and program savings. 
 

• The JPA will continue administration of Marin’s Oil 
Payment Program and will continue to operate this 
successful program with State block grant funds. Staff 



 

11 
 

expects approximately the same grant award from CalRecycle of $85,000 as was 
received in FY 17/18.  This program includes a significant Spanish language 
outreach component. Used oil outreach includes promotion of other zero waste 
programs and dissemination of general zero waste information relevant to Marin 
residents.  

 
• The JPA funds the Sharps Collection Program operated by the County’s 

Environmental Health Division.  Environmental Health has requested an increase of 
$2,500 for a total of $81,000 to operate 21 sharps (needles and lancets) sites in the 
County.  This program is important for numerous reasons, but in particular it helps 
protect our partners in solid waste collection and processing. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The contingency account for the HHW Fund Center is set at 10% of expenditures.  
 
Background – Option B 
 
Option B is the same as Option A in “all the details” in terms of line item expenses in all 
three Fund Centers – accept for the difference in preserving the $350,000 Zero Waste 
Grant Program (and not pursuing a new Zero Waste Plan or Disaster Debris Plan, at 
this time).   Presenting this Option was a last minute addition to the Agenda Package 
and so the Agenda does not include an item to review and approve a Zero Waste Grant 
application process and funding allocation.  If the Board selects Option B – Staff would 
be expecting to request scheduling a JPA Board meeting on July 26, 2018 to present a 
proposed Zero Waste Grant program for Board approval. 
 
In either Option A or Option B – the total revenue requirement for the Agency remains 
the same.   One “devil in the details” difference between the two Options is that in 
Option B – the $150,000 that would be utilized in the State Reporting/Requirements 
Fund would need to shift back to the Zero Waste Fund.  The next impact on the 
Assessments levied to the haulers and facilities is a reduction of ~ $11,000 for Novato 
Disposal and a few hundred to a few thousand dollars for the others. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt a Motion adopting a Fiscal Year 18/19 Budget as described in Option A or Option 
B herein and directing and authorizing the Board Chair to execute the corresponding 
Proposed Resolution No. 2018-01-Option A or Proposed Resolution No. 2018-01-
Option B. 
 



 

12 
 

Attachments: 
 
1. City of San Rafael Fire Proposed HHW Budget 
 
2. FY 18-19 Budget Option A – Suspending Zero Waste Grant Program for One Year 

to Fund New Zero Waste Plan and a Disaster Debris Plan 
 

3. Resolution 2018-01-Option A 
 
4. FY 18-19 Budget Option B – Preserving Zero Waste Grant Program and Not 

Commissioning a New Zero Waste Plan or Disaster Debris Plan  
 

5. Resolution 2018-01-Option B 
 
 
 

f:\waste\jpa\jpa agenda items\jpa 180524\item 10 - fy 18-19 jpa budget sr.doc 
5/18/2018 12:56 PM 

 



sdevine
Text Box
Item 10.  Attachment 1.





Item 10. Attachment 2.

A B C D E F G H

2017 DRAFT DISPOSAL (tons) TOTAL
 FY 17/18

Zero Waste State Reporting HHW Total
MSW Haulers MSW & Debris Self-Haul TONS Assessments

Bay Cities Refuse 7,523 N/A 7,523 $88,832 $20,244 $10,560 $38,684 $69,488 

Marin Sanitary Service (MSS) 51,766 N/A 51,766 $613,211 $139,292 $72,663 $266,173 $478,128 

Mill Valley Refuse 20,320 N/A 20,320 $317,638 $54,678 $28,523 $104,484 $187,685 

Recology Novato Disposal 28,286 N/A 28,286 $39,370 $0 $39,705 $0 $39,705 

Recology Sonoma Marin 6,105 N/A 6,105 $64,313 $16,429 $8,570 $31,393 $56,392 
Tam. CSD 1,721 N/A 1,721 $22,829 $4,631 $2,416 $8,850 $15,898 

Total Franchised Haulers 115,722 N/A 115,722 $1,146,192 $235,274 $162,438 $449,584 $847,296 

Landfills
Redwood N/A 218,470 218,470 $1,510,058 $587,861 $306,665 $1,123,343 $2,017,869 

Redwood Landfill N/A 218,470 218,470 $1,510,058 $587,861 $306,665 $1,123,343 $2,017,869 

Transfer Stations
Marin Resource Recovery Center 89,352 89,352 $680,066 $240,431 $125,424 $459,438 $825,292 
Marin Sanitary Services Transfer Station 1,967 1,967 $47,746 $5,292 $2,761 $10,113 $18,166 
Total Transfer Stations 91,319 91,319 $727,812 $245,723 $128,184 $469,551 $843,459 

TOTALS 115,722 309,789 425,510 $3,384,061 $1,068,858 $597,288 $2,042,478 $3,708,623 

JPA Hauler, Landfill & Transfer Station Assessments

FY 18/19

FY 2018-19

1 5/17/2018 4:12 PM



Item 10. Attachment 2.

Expenses 1,074,382$      620,373$           2,392,414$      4,087,169$      
Contingency 107,438$         62,037$             239,241$         408,717$         
Rev Requirement 1,181,820$      682,411$           2,631,656$      4,495,886$      

Interest 1,000$             500$                  2,000$             3,500$             
State Oil Payment 85,000$           85,000$           
Assessments 1,068,858$      597,288$           2,042,478$      3,708,623$      
Carry Over 111,962$         84,623$             502,178$         698,763$         
Revenue 1,181,820$      682,411$           2,631,656$      4,495,886$      

Proposed FY 18/19 Budget

Zero Waste 
Fund

State Reporting 
Fund

HHW Fund All Funds Total

2 5/17/2018 4:12 PM



Item 10. Attachment 2.

17/18 17/18 18/19
APPROVED TOTAL EST BUDGET

BUDGET EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT NAME OBJECT REQUEST VARIANCE NARRATIVE

302,975$      302,975$          Salaries and Wages 511110 $325,632 $22,657 Contract staff wages and benefits.

2,000$          2,000$              Legal Expense 522545 $2,000 $0 JPA legal counsel. 
 $       15,000 15,000$            Construction & Demoltion Debris 522510 $15,000 $0 Contract support related to C& D Program outreach to Member Agencies.

29,750$        29,750$            Member Agency & Community Support 522510 & 
522310

$29,750 $0 City & Town requests for support backyard composting workshops, xmas 
trees recycling promotion, ZeroWasteMarin response to requests 
(brochures, compost pails, fairs & festivals), targeted outreach related to 
AB 341 and AB 1826 compliance.

7,500$          7,500$              State, Regional and Local "Wasteshed" Partnerships 522210 $12,000 $4,500 California Product Stewardship Council, Californian's Against Waste, Marin 
Builder's Association, Business Chambers, BayRoc, NCRA, etc.  Suport 
for Extended Producer Responsibility and reduced packaging.

10,000$        10,000$            Professional Development & Individual Memberships 523210 $10,000 $0 Training, conferences & professional memberships. 

 $       15,000 15,000$            School Assemblies & Farm to School Program 522510 $15,000 $0 Contract support related to School Assemblies + Farm to School.

 $     230,000 230,000$          Zero Waste School Program 522510 & 
522310

$230,000 $0 Strategic Energy Innovation plus infrastructure (bins, H20 stations, etc.). 
Includes cost of speed-up.

181,000$      181,000$          Outreach Campaign 522510 $181,000 $0 Recycling Guide updates, ZeroWasteMarin.org improvements, bus 
shelters, banners, cooordination of outreach collateral with haulers, tips to 
Member Agencies on waste prevention, social media and cable TV ads.

19,000$        19,000$            Hazwaste, Zero Waste Awareness Evaluation 522510 $19,000 $0 Public awareness survey

21,050$        21,050$            Special Project 522510 $0 ($21,050) Support and evaluation of kitchen food scraps in Fairfax.

350,000$      335,000$          Zero Waste Grant Program ($350,000) $150,000 moved to Admin Fund for Disaster Debris Management Plan

-$              -$                  Truck 522310 $35,000 $35,000 Transportation of recycling bins, bags, and other items

-$              -$                  Zero Waste Strategic Plan Update 522510 $200,000 $200,000 Refine tools and strategies to maximize resource management, conserve 
landfill and meet the JPA zero waste goals. 

$1,183,275 $1,168,275 Zero Waste Fund Expense Totals $1,074,382 ($108,893)

17/18 17/18 18/19
APPROVED TOTAL EST REVENUE REVENUE

BUDGET REVENUE ACCOUNT NAME SOURCE REQUEST NARRATIVE

$1,000 $1,000 Interest 441115 $1,000 Interest
$1,026,160 $1,026,160 Solid Waste Management 461510 $1,068,858 Hauler, Landfill, Transfer Station Assessments

$248,941 $253,077 Carry-Over N/A $111,962 Carry-over from prior fiscal year (contingency + unspent)
$1,276,101 $1,280,237 Total Revenue $1,181,820

GENERAL CONTINGENCIES
#REF! Contingency Account 900010 $107,438

Contingency Target = 10% 10%

ZERO WASTE FUND
FY 18/19 (80238601) EXPENSE BUDGET

FY 18/19 (80238601) REVENUE BUDGET

3 5/17/2018 4:12 PM



Item 10. Attachment 2.

17/18 17/18 18/19
APPROVED TOTAL EST BUDGET

BUDGET EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT NAME OBJECT REQUEST VARIANCE NARRATIVE

$363,292 $363,292 Salaries and Wages 511110 $393,982 $30,690 Contract staff wages and benefits.

$7,500 $7,500 Legal Expense 522545 $10,000 $2,500 JPA legal counsel. COI Policy update.
$13,500 $13,500 Outside Acctg & Audit Fees 522585 $17,000 $3,500 Financial Audit + Submittal of GCC & FTR to 

State on behalf of the JPA.
$18,000 $18,000 Insurance 521610 $18,000 $0 Insurance.

$1,000 $1,000 Equipment Repair & Maintenance 521810 $1,000 $0
$16,941 $16,941 Rent 522910 $16,941 $0 Office space

$1,500 $1,500 Training/Professional Development 523210 $1,500 $0 Training specific to AB 901 (Disposal Reporting).
$600 $600 Mileage & Routine Travel 523445 $600 $0 Routine travel.  Same as previous three years.

$5,500 $5,500 Supplies & Reproduction 522410 $5,500 $0 Same as previous three years.
$5,850 $5,850 County Financial Service 522585 $5,850 $0 Pro-rate County Department of Finance's Cost 

Plan.
$50,000 $50,000 Resource Flow Mapping & Capacity 

Analysis
522510 ($50,000) 15 year disposal, organics and recycling flow & 

capacity analysis.
-$           -$                Disaster Debris Management Plan 522510 $150,000 $150,000 Design of a FEMA and CalOES approved Disaster 

Debris Management Plan to prepare for various 
disaster debris management situations (e.g. fire, 
earthquake, flood, etc.) and reduce forecastable 
derbis from being landfilled.

$483,683 $483,683 Admin Fund Operations Total $620,373 $136,690 Reflects $150,000 from ZW Program Fund.

17/18 17/18 18/19
APPROVED TOTAL EST REVENUE REVENUE

BUDGET REVENUE ACCOUNT NAME SOURCE REQUEST NARRATIVE

$1,500 $1,500 Interest 441115 $500 Interest
$378,390 $378,390 Solid Waste Management 461510 $597,288 Hauler, Landfill, Transfer Station Assessments
$145,184 $188,416 Carry-Over N/A $84,623

$525,074 $568,306 Total Revenue $682,411

GENERAL CONTINGENCIES
$84,623 Contingency Account 900010 $62,037

Contingency Target = 10% 10%

FY 18/19 (80218601) REVENUE BUDGET

STATE REPORTING & REQUIRED
FY 18/19 (80218601) EXPENSE BUDGET

4 5/17/2018 4:12 PM



Item 10. Attachment 2.

17/18 17/18 18/19
APPROVED TOTAL EST BUDGET

BUDGET EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT NAME OBJECT REQUEST VARIANCE NARRATIVE

$162,187 $162,187 Salaries and Wages 511110 $208,961 $46,774 Contract staff wages and benefits. 
$161,923 $161,923 HHW Facility Oversight 522510 $166,619 $4,696 San Rafael FD HHW facility oversight + West Marin HHW events. 

$33,739 $33,739 Novato HHW Pass Through 522310 $36,175 $2,436 Novato HHW fee reimbursement.
$2,500 $2,500 Legal Services 522545 $2,575 $75 Legal counsel on Haz Waste contracts and grant agreements 

including Bulb and Battery and Marina programs. 
$135,000 $135,000 Bulb and Battery Program 522510 $160,000 $25,000 Fluorescent bulbs and batteries hazwaste collection. 

$1,523,266 $1,523,266 HHW Facility Operations 522510 $1,632,084 $108,818 CPI-U increase + $64,644 for an HHW Associate staff position. 

$78,500 $78,500 Sharps & Needles Program 522310 $81,000 $2,500 Support for the Sharps and Needles Program via Environmental 
Health Services.

$20,000 $20,000 Rechargable Battery Promotion 522510 $0 ($20,000)
Battery Program Assessment 522510 $20,000 $20,000 Conduct audit of battery recycling in Marin.

$2,117,115 $2,117,115 Operational Budget Subtotal $2,307,414 $190,299

Oil Payment Program 
$82,000 $82,000 Oil Payment Program - Cycle 9

41PWPOPP9 $85,000 $3,000
Countywide used oil motor promotion, marina bilge pad pick ups, 
storm drain medallions, CCC site certifications, bi-lingual 
outreach.

$82,000 $82,000 Oil Payment Program Subtotal $85,000

$2,199,115 $2,199,115 HHW Fund Total Expenses Total $2,392,414 $193,299

17/18 17/18 18/19

APPROVED TOTAL EST REVENUE REVENUE

BUDGET REVENUE ACCOUNT NAME SOURCE REQUEST NARRATIVE

$2,000 $400 Interest 441115 $2,000 Interest
$85,000 $82,000 Other Aid: State 451970 $85,000 CalRecycle Funds for Used Oil Payment Program

$1,979,511 $1,979,511 Solid Waste Management 461510 $2,042,478 Hauler, Landfill, Transfer Station Assessments
$644,128 $639,382 Carry-Over N/A $502,178 Carry-over from prior fiscal year (contingency + unspent)

$2,710,639 $2,701,293 Total Revenue $2,631,656

GENERAL CONTINGENCIES
$502,178 Contingency Account 900010 $239,241

Contingency Target = 10% 10%

FY 18/19 (80228601) EXPENSE BUDGET
HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE FUND

FY 18/19 (80228601) REVENUE BUDGET

5 5/17/2018 4:12 PM



Item 10.  Attachment 3 

Page 1 of 2 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Agenda Items\JPA 180524\Item 10 - Attachment 3 - FY 18-19 Budget Resolution Option A.doc 

 
MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT  

JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-01-OPTION A 
 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING ASSESSMENTS FOR 
INTERGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT PLANNING  

AND IMPLEMENTATION OF PROGRAMS FOR FY 2018/19 
 
 WHEREAS, the Marin County Hazardous and Solid Waste Management Joint 
Powers Authority (Authority) was established to prepare, adopt, and administer 
hazardous and solid waste plans; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority may impose assessments based on the types and 
amounts of solid waste for costs, among other things, related to the preparation and 
adoption of a Regional Integrated Waste Management Plan (AB 939); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority established the assessments at its regular meeting on 
May 24, 2018; and 
 
 WHEREAS, these assessments are set and imposed for FY 2018/19 only; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Novato is not participating in the Authority’s household 
hazardous waste collection program or zero waste programs; the City, in conjunction 
with the Novato Sanitary District, will offer its own household hazardous waste collection 
program and zero waste programs; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following assessments are 
imposed for FY 2018/19 and shall be collected from the organization specified herein; 
 
 

Redwood Landfill $2,017,869.13  
Marin Resource Recovery Center $825,292.45  
Marin Sanitary Transfer Station $18,166.11  
Bay Cities Refuse $69,488.25  
Marin Sanitary Service $478,128.01  
Mill Valley Refuse $187,684.93  
Novato Disposal $39,704.54  
Recology Sonoma Marin $56,392.26  
Tamalpais Community Service District $15,897.66  
TOTAL $3,708,623.34  

 
 

 
 

 



Item 10.  Attachment 3 

Page 2 of 2 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Agenda Items\JPA 180524\Item 10 - Attachment 3 - FY 18-19 Budget Resolution Option A.doc 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that collection of assessments shall be as follows: 

 
1. Assessments are based upon the tons of material collected and disposed during 

2017, with data provided by the haulers, landfills, and recovery center. 
 
2. Assessments shall be paid in two installments – half of the amount shall be due 

and payable on December 1, 2018; the remaining half shall be due and payable 
on May 1, 2019. 

 
3. Assessments shall be due and payable to the “Marin County Treasurer – Tax 

Collector”, Administration Bldg., Civic Center, P.O. Box 4220, San Rafael, CA 
94913-4220. 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Marin County Hazardous and 
Solid Waste Management Joint Powers Authority held this 24th day of May, 2018 by the 
following vote: 
 
 
AYES:  
  
 
 
NOES:  
 
 
 
ABSENT:  
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Chair 
 
 
 
ATTEST: _____ _______________ 



Item 10. Attachment 4.

A B C D E F G H

2017 DRAFT DISPOSAL (tons) TOTAL
 FY 17/18

Zero Waste State Reporting HHW Total
MSW Haulers MSW & Debris Self-Haul TONS Assessments

Bay Cities Refuse 7,523 N/A 7,523 $88,832 $23,369 $7,643 $38,684 $69,696 

Marin Sanitary Service (MSS) 51,766 N/A 51,766 $613,211 $160,795 $52,590 $266,173 $479,557 

Mill Valley Refuse 20,320 N/A 20,320 $317,638 $63,118 $20,644 $104,484 $188,246 

Recology Novato Disposal 28,286 N/A 28,286 $39,370 $0 $28,736 $0 $28,736 

Recology Sonoma Marin 6,105 N/A 6,105 $64,313 $18,965 $6,203 $31,393 $56,561 
Tam. CSD 1,721 N/A 1,721 $22,829 $5,346 $1,749 $8,850 $15,945 

Total Franchised Haulers 115,722 N/A 115,722 $1,146,192 $271,593 $117,565 $449,584 $838,742 

Landfills
Redwood N/A 218,470 218,470 $1,510,058 $678,610 $221,949 $1,123,343 $2,023,902 

Redwood Landfill N/A 218,470 218,470 $1,510,058 $678,610 $221,949 $1,123,343 $2,023,902 

Transfer Stations
Marin Resource Recovery Center 89,352 89,352 $680,066 $277,546 $90,775 $459,438 $827,760 
Marin Sanitary Services Transfer Station 1,967 1,967 $47,746 $6,109 $1,998 $10,113 $18,220 
Total Transfer Stations 91,319 91,319 $727,812 $283,655 $92,774 $469,551 $845,980 

TOTALS 115,722 309,789 425,510 $3,384,061 $1,233,858 $432,288 $2,042,478 $3,708,623 

JPA Hauler, Landfill & Transfer Station Assessments

FY 18/19

FY 2018-19

1 5/17/2018 4:14 PM



Item 10. Attachment 4.

Expenses 1,224,382$      470,373$           2,392,414$      4,087,169$      
Contingency 122,438$         47,037$             239,241$         408,717$         
Rev Requirement 1,346,820$      517,411$           2,631,656$      4,495,886$      

Interest 1,000$              500$                   2,000$              3,500$              
State Oil Payment 85,000$           85,000$           
Assessments 1,233,858$      432,288$           2,042,478$      3,708,623$      
Carry Over 111,962$         84,623$             502,178$         698,763$         
Revenue 1,346,820$      517,411$           2,631,656$      4,495,886$      

Proposed FY 18/19 Budget

Zero Waste 
Fund

State Reporting 
Fund

HHW Fund All Funds Total

2 5/17/2018 4:14 PM



Item 10. Attachment 4.

17/18 17/18 18/19
APPROVED TOTAL EST BUDGET

BUDGET EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT NAME OBJECT REQUEST VARIANCE NARRATIVE

302,975$      302,975$          Salaries and Wages 511110 $325,632 $22,657 Contract staff wages and benefits.

2,000$          2,000$              Legal Expense 522545 $2,000 $0 JPA legal counsel. 
 $        15,000 15,000$            Construction & Demoltion Debris 522510 $15,000 $0 Contract support related to C& D Program outreach to Member Agencies.

29,750$        29,750$            Member Agency & Community Support 522510 & 
522310

$29,750 $0 City & Town requests for support backyard composting workshops, xmas 
trees recycling promotion, ZeroWasteMarin response to requests 
(brochures, compost pails, fairs & festivals), targeted outreach related to AB 
341 and AB 1826 compliance.

7,500$          7,500$              State, Regional and Local "Wasteshed" Partnerships 522210 $12,000 $4,500 California Product Stewardship Council, Californian's Against Waste, Marin 
Builder's Association, Business Chambers, BayRoc, NCRA, etc.  Suport for 
Extended Producer Responsibility and reduced packaging.

10,000$        10,000$            Professional Development & Individual Memberships 523210 $10,000 $0 Training, conferences & professional memberships. 

 $        15,000 15,000$            School Assemblies & Farm to School Program 522510 $15,000 $0 Contract support related to School Assemblies + Farm to School.

 $      230,000 230,000$          Zero Waste School Program 522510 & 
522310

$230,000 $0 Strategic Energy Innovation plus infrastructure (bins, H20 stations, etc.). 
Includes cost of speed-up.

181,000$      181,000$          Outreach Campaign 522510 $181,000 $0 Recycling Guide updates, ZeroWasteMarin.org improvements, bus 
shelters, banners, cooordination of outreach collateral with haulers, tips to 
Member Agencies on waste prevention, social media and cable TV ads.

19,000$        19,000$            Hazwaste, Zero Waste Awareness Evaluation 522510 $19,000 $0 Public awareness survey

21,050$        21,050$            Special Project 522510 $0 ($21,050) Support and evaluation of kitchen food scraps in Fairfax.

350,000$      335,000$          Zero Waste Grant Program $350,000 Member Agency funds based on population for Zero Waste Programs.

-$              -$                  Truck 522310 $35,000 $35,000 Transportation of recycling bins, bags, and other items

-$              -$                  Refine tools and strategies to maximize resource management, conserve 
landfill and meet the JPA zero waste goals. 

$1,183,275 $1,168,275 Zero Waste Fund Expense Totals $1,224,382 $41,107 

17/18 17/18 18/19
APPROVED TOTAL EST REVENUE REVENUE

BUDGET REVENUE ACCOUNT NAME SOURCE REQUEST NARRATIVE

$1,000 $1,000 Interest 441115 $1,000 Interest
$1,026,160 $1,026,160 Solid Waste Management 461510 $1,233,857.97 Hauler, Landfill, Transfer Station Assessments

$248,941 $253,077 Carry-Over N/A $111,962 Carry-over from prior fiscal year (contingency + unspent)
$1,276,101 $1,280,237 Total Revenue $1,346,820

GENERAL CONTINGENCIES
#REF! Contingency Account 900010 $122,438

Contingency Target = 10% 10%

ZERO WASTE FUND
FY 18/19 (80238601) EXPENSE BUDGET

FY 18/19 (80238601) REVENUE BUDGET

3 5/17/2018 4:14 PM



Item 10. Attachment 4.

17/18 17/18 18/19
APPROVED TOTAL EST BUDGET

BUDGET EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT NAME OBJECT REQUEST VARIANCE NARRATIVE

$363,292 $363,292 Salaries and Wages 511110 $393,982 $30,690 Contract staff wages and benefits.

$7,500 $7,500 Legal Expense 522545 $10,000 $2,500 JPA legal counsel. COI Policy update.
$13,500 $13,500 Outside Acctg & Audit Fees 522585 $17,000 $3,500 Financial Audit + Submittal of GCC & FTR to State 

on behalf of the JPA.
$18,000 $18,000 Insurance 521610 $18,000 $0 Insurance.

$1,000 $1,000 Equipment Repair & Maintenance 521810 $1,000 $0
$16,941 $16,941 Rent 522910 $16,941 $0 Office space

$1,500 $1,500 Training/Professional Development 523210 $1,500 $0 Training specific to AB 901 (Disposal Reporting).
$600 $600 Mileage & Routine Travel 523445 $600 $0 Routine travel.  Same as previous three years.

$5,500 $5,500 Supplies & Reproduction 522410 $5,500 $0 Same as previous three years.
$5,850 $5,850 County Financial Service 522585 $5,850 $0 Pro-rate County Department of Finance's Cost 

Plan.
$50,000 $50,000 Resource Flow Mapping & Capacity 

Analysis
522510 ($50,000) 15 year disposal, organics and recycling flow & 

capacity analysis.

$483,683 $483,683 Admin Fund Operations Total $470,373 ($13,310) Reflects $150,000 from ZW Program Fund.

17/18 17/18 18/19
APPROVED TOTAL EST REVENUE REVENUE

BUDGET REVENUE ACCOUNT NAME SOURCE REQUEST NARRATIVE

$1,500 $1,500 Interest 441115 $500 Interest
$378,390 $378,390 Solid Waste Management 461510 $432,287.52 Hauler, Landfill, Transfer Station Assessments
$145,184 $188,416 Carry-Over N/A $84,623

$525,074 $568,306 Total Revenue $517,411

GENERAL CONTINGENCIES
$84,623 Contingency Account 900010 $47,037

Contingency Target = 10% 10%

FY 18/19 (80218601) REVENUE BUDGET

STATE REPORTING & REQUIRED
FY 18/19 (80218601) EXPENSE BUDGET

4 5/17/2018 4:14 PM



Item 10. Attachment 4.

17/18 17/18 18/19
APPROVED TOTAL EST BUDGET

BUDGET EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT NAME OBJECT REQUEST VARIANCE NARRATIVE

$162,187 $162,187 Salaries and Wages 511110 $208,961 $46,774 Contract staff wages and benefits. 
$161,923 $161,923 HHW Facility Oversight 522510 $166,619 $4,696 San Rafael FD HHW facility oversight + West Marin HHW events. 

$33,739 $33,739 Novato HHW Pass Through 522310 $36,175 $2,436 Novato HHW fee reimbursement.
$2,500 $2,500 Legal Services 522545 $2,575 $75 Legal counsel on Haz Waste contracts and grant agreements 

including Bulb and Battery and Marina programs. 
$135,000 $135,000 Bulb and Battery Program 522510 $160,000 $25,000 Fluorescent bulbs and batteries hazwaste collection. 

$1,523,266 $1,523,266 HHW Facility Operations 522510 $1,632,084 $108,818 CPI-U increase + $64,644 for an HHW Associate staff position. 

$78,500 $78,500 Sharps & Needles Program 522310 $81,000 $2,500 Support for the Sharps and Needles Program via Environmental 
Health Services.

$20,000 $20,000 Rechargable Battery Promotion 522510 $0 ($20,000)
Battery Program Assessment 522510 $20,000 $20,000 Conduct audit of battery recycling in Marin.

$2,117,115 $2,117,115 Operational Budget Subtotal $2,307,414 $190,299

Oil Payment Program 
$82,000 $82,000 Oil Payment Program - Cycle 9

41PWPOPP9 $85,000 $3,000
Countywide used oil motor promotion, marina bilge pad pick ups, 
storm drain medallions, CCC site certifications, bi-lingual outreach.

$82,000 $82,000 Oil Payment Program Subtotal $85,000

$2,199,115 $2,199,115 HHW Fund Total Expenses Total $2,392,414 $193,299

17/18 17/18 18/19

APPROVED TOTAL EST REVENUE REVENUE

BUDGET REVENUE ACCOUNT NAME SOURCE REQUEST NARRATIVE

$2,000 $400 Interest 441115 $2,000 Interest
$85,000 $82,000 Other Aid: State 451970 $85,000 CalRecycle Funds for Used Oil Payment Program

$1,979,511 $1,979,511 Solid Waste Management 461510 $2,042,478 Hauler, Landfill, Transfer Station Assessments
$644,128 $639,382 Carry-Over N/A $502,178 Carry-over from prior fiscal year (contingency + unspent)

$2,710,639 $2,701,293 Total Revenue $2,631,656

GENERAL CONTINGENCIES
$502,178 Contingency Account 900010 $239,241

Contingency Target = 10% 10%

FY 18/19 (80228601) EXPENSE BUDGET
HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE FUND

FY 18/19 (80228601) REVENUE BUDGET

5 5/17/2018 4:14 PM



Item 10.  Attachment 5 

Page 1 of 2 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Agenda Items\JPA 180524\Item 10 - Attachment 5 - FY 18-19 Budget Resolution Option B v.doc 

 
MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT  

JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-01-OPTION B 
 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING ASSESSMENTS FOR 
INTERGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT PLANNING  

AND IMPLEMENTATION OF PROGRAMS FOR FY 2018/19 
 
 WHEREAS, the Marin County Hazardous and Solid Waste Management Joint 
Powers Authority (Authority) was established to prepare, adopt, and administer 
hazardous and solid waste plans; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority may impose assessments based on the types and 
amounts of solid waste for costs, among other things, related to the preparation and 
adoption of a Regional Integrated Waste Management Plan (AB 939); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority established the assessments at its regular meeting on 
May 24, 2018; and 
 
 WHEREAS, these assessments are set and imposed for FY 2018/19 only; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Novato is not participating in the Authority’s household 
hazardous waste collection program or zero waste programs; the City, in conjunction 
with the Novato Sanitary District, will offer its own household hazardous waste collection 
program and zero waste programs; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following assessments are 
imposed for FY 2018/19 and shall be collected from the organization specified herein; 
 
 

Redwood Landfill $2,023,901.61  
Marin Resource Recovery Center $827,759.68  
Marin Sanitary Transfer Station $18,220.42  
Bay Cities Refuse $69,695.99  
Marin Sanitary Service $479,557.39  
Mill Valley Refuse $188,246.02  
Novato Disposal $28,736.21  
Recology Sonoma Marin $56,560.85  
Tamalpais Community Service District $15,945.19  

TOTAL $3,708,623.34  
 
 

 



Item 10.  Attachment 5 

Page 2 of 2 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Agenda Items\JPA 180524\Item 10 - Attachment 5 - FY 18-19 Budget Resolution Option B v.doc 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that collection of assessments shall be as follows: 

 
1. Assessments are based upon the tons of material collected and disposed during 

2017, with data provided by the haulers, landfills, and recovery center. 
 
2. Assessments shall be paid in two installments – half of the amount shall be due 

and payable on December 1, 2018; the remaining half shall be due and payable 
on May 1, 2019. 

 
3. Assessments shall be due and payable to the “Marin County Treasurer – Tax 

Collector”, Administration Bldg., Civic Center, P.O. Box 4220, San Rafael, CA 
94913-4220. 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Marin County Hazardous and 
Solid Waste Management Joint Powers Authority held this 24th day of May, 2018 by the 
following vote: 
 
 
AYES:  
  
 
 
NOES:  
 
 
 
ABSENT:  
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Chair 
 
 
 
ATTEST: _____ _______________ 



11 
MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

 
Belvedere 
   
 
Corte Madera 
   
 
County of Marin 
   
 
Fairfax 
   
 
Larkspur 
   
 
Mill Valley 
   
 
Novato 
   
 
Ross 
 
 
San Anselmo 
  
 
San Rafael 
  
 
Sausalito 
 
 
Tiburon 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Date:  May 24, 2018 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re: Delegate Signature Authority to the Executive Director for 

Contracts Exceeding $50,000 
 
The FY 18/19 JPA Budget contains certain activities which necessitate 
contracts over the JPA’s $50,000 Executive Director signature authority.  
Depending on what version of a FY 18/19 Budget the Board adopts – the 
following contracts are anticipated for FY 18/19: 
 
1. Used Oil Payment Program implementation: up to $85,000 
2. Zero waste schools assistance: up to $100,000 
3. Hazardous waste bulb and battery collection: up to $160,000 
4. Zero waste outreach services: up to $181,000 
5. Disaster Debris Management Plan: up to $150,000 
6. Zero Waste Plan Update: up to $200,000 
 
Due to the need to proceed with these efforts in a timely manner and the 
frequency of JPA Board meetings, it is requested to continue with past 
practice and delegate authority to enter into contracts for these services 
to the Executive Director.  The first four items are for ongoing services, 
consistent with recent years.  For both of the “new programs,” the 
Disaster Debris Management Plan and the Zero Waste Plan Update 
would be the result of a request for proposals (RFP) process – with 
involvement of the Board of Directors – through appointed Board 
Subcommittee Members, if the Board elects to proceed with these 
projects.  If they are not funded in the budget process – then they will not 
be executed by the Executive Director. 
 
Recommendation 
Adopt a motion granting the Executive Director signature authority to 
enter in to contracts for the specific services, outlined above, if included 
in the FY 18/19 Budget. 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Agenda Items\JPA/180524\Signature Authority.doc 
5/18/2018 12:59 PM 



12 
MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

 
 
Belvedere 
 
 
Corte Madera 
   
 
County of Marin 
   
 
Fairfax 
  
 
Larkspur 
   
 
Mill Valley 
  
 
Novato 
   
 
Ross 
   
 
San Anselmo 
   
 
San Rafael 
   
 
Sausalito 
   
 
Tiburon 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Date:  May 24, 2018 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re: Elect Board Chair and Vice Chair 
 
Section 7.3 (b) of the JPA Agreement specifies that the Chair and Vice 
Chair shall be a member of the five person Executive Committee. 
 
The current composition of the Executive Committee is: 
 
County of Marin:  Hymel/Eilerman 
City of San Rafael:  Schutz/Alilovich 
City of Novato:  Candelario 
Ross Valley Rep:  Toy 
Southern Marin Rep: Dependent Upon Item No. 5 in this Agenda 
 
Both the Chair and Vice-Chair can be any member of the Executive 
Committee.  The term of the Chair and Vice-Chair shall commence at 
the conclusion of this meeting. 
 
The current Chair is Garrett Toy and the Current Vice-Chair is Jim 
Schutz/Cristine Alilovich. 
 
RECCOMENDATION 
1. Adopt a Motion appointing a Vice-Chair. 
2. Adopt a Motion appointing a Chair. 
 
 
 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Agenda Items\JPA 180524\Item 12 - Elect Chair and Vice Chair.doc 
5/18/2018 1:01 PM 



13 
MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

Belvedere 
 
 
Corte Madera 
 
 
County of Marin 
 
 
Fairfax 
 
 
Larkspur 
 
 
Mill Valley 
 
 
Novato 
 
 
Ross 
 
 
San Anselmo 
 
 
San Rafael 
 
 
Sausalito 
 
 
Tiburon 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date:  May 24, 2018 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re: Appoint Two Member Subcommittee to Assist with a Disaster 

Debris Plan 
 
Due to the relative infrequency of JPA Board and Executive Committee 
meetings, Staff is requesting the Board appoint two members of the 
Executive Committee to be available to work with staff on helping in the 
Request for Proposals/vendor selection process, and other matters, if 
need be, for development of a Disaster Debris Plan for Marin County. 
 
Staff anticipates that the members of this Subcommittee would sit on an 
interview panel aiding in the selection of a vendor whom would be 
charged with developing the plan and potentially be involved in a 
stakeholder, kick-off meeting. 
 
Recommendation 
Appoint no more than two Members of the FY 18/19 Executive 
Committee to a Disaster Debris Plan Subcommittee. 
 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Agenda Items\JPA 180524\Item 13 - Disaster Debris Subcommittee 
Appointments.doc 

5/18/2018 1:02 PM 



14 
MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

Belvedere 
 
 
Corte Madera 
 
 
County of Marin 
 
 
Fairfax 
 
 
Larkspur 
 
 
Mill Valley 
 
 
Novato 
 
 
Ross 
 
 
San Anselmo 
 
 
San Rafael 
 
 
Sausalito 
 
 
Tiburon 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date:  May 24, 2018 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re: Appoint Two Member Subcommittee to Assist with the Zero 

Waste Plan Project 
 
Due to the relative infrequency of JPA Board and Executive Committee 
meetings, Staff is requesting the Board appoint two members of the 
Executive Committee to be available to work with staff on helping in the 
Request for Proposals/vendor selection process, and other matters for 
the Zero Waste Plan Project. 
 
Staff anticipates that the members of this Subcommittee would sit on an 
interview panel aiding in the selection of a vendor whom would be 
charged with developing the plan, select stakeholder meetings and 
coordination with the Local Task Force. 
 
Recommendation 
Appoint no more than two Members of the FY 18/19 Executive 
Committee to a Zero Waste Plan Subcommittee. 
 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Agenda Items\JPA 180524\Item 14 - Zero Waste Plan Subcommittee 
Appointments.doc 

5/18/2018 1:02 PM 


	Agenda5.24.18
	Item 1 - Open Time for Public Comment
	Item 2. 18-01-25
	MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE
	MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
	Board of Directors Meeting
	Thursday, January 25, 2018
	Central Marin Police Authority
	250 Doherty Drive, Larkspur
	9:00 – 9:30 AM
	MINUTES
	MEMBERS PRESENT
	Cristine Alilovich, San Rafael
	Regan Candelario, Novato
	Todd Cusimano, Corte Madera
	Greg Chanis, Tiburon
	Joe Chinn, Ross
	David Donery, San Anselmo
	Jim McCann, Mill Valley
	Dan Schwarz, Larkspur
	Garrett Toy, Fairfax
	MEMBERS ABSENT
	Dan Eilerman, County of Marin
	Craig Middleton, Belvedere
	Adam Politzer, Sausalito
	OTHERS PRESENT
	Kathy Wall, Marin Sanitary Service
	Michael Frank, MGSA
	Celia Furber, Recology
	Garen Kazanjian, Recology
	John Maher, Maher Accounting
	Fred Stemmler, Recology
	STAFF PRESENT
	Steve Devine
	Ernest Klock
	Casey Poldino
	Call to Order

	Item3. Minutes 18-04-24
	MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE
	MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
	MINUTES

	Item 4 - Southern Marin LTF Seat
	Item 4 - Attachment 1 - Letter 
	Item 4 - Attachment 2 - Resume
	Item 5 - Southern Marin Board Rep
	Item 6 - SR Fire HHW Annual Report
	Item 6 - Attachment 1 - HHW Report FY 16-17
	Item 7 - MFCA SR
	Item 7 - Attachment 1 R3 Transmit
	Background
	Findings
	Recommendations
	Landfill Capacity
	Assembly Bill 901 Preparedness
	Attachments


	Item 7 - Attachment 2 Organics Generation and Capacity Memo
	Item 7 - Attachment 3 Landfill Capacity Memo
	Item 7 - Attachment 4 DRS Tool and AB 901 Memo
	Item 7 - Attachment 5 Tonnage Scenario Tool Memol
	Item 7 - Attachment 6 Infographics
	Landfill_Infographic_ZWMarin_4-16_revisions
	Organics_Infographic_ZWMarin4-18_revised

	Item 8 - Update from LTF SR
	Item 9 - Update LTF Procedures to Reflect New Attendance Policy SR
	Item 9 - Attachment 1 - LTF Item SR
	Item 9 - Attachment 2 - LTF Member Attendance Log
	Item 9 - Attachment 3 - Proposed LTF Procedures & Attendance Policy
	Item 10 - FY 18-19 JPA Budget SR
	Item 10 - Attachment 1 - SR Fire HHW Budget Request FY 18-19
	Item 10 - Attachment 2 FY 18-19 Budget Option A Fina
	Item 10 - Attachment 3 - FY 18-19 Budget Resolution Option A
	Item 10 -Attachment 4 FY 18-19 Budget Option B Final
	Item 10 - Attachment 5 - FY 18-19 Budget Resolution Option B v
	Item 11 - Signature Authority
	Item 12 - Elect Chair and Vice Chair
	Item 13 - Disaster Debris Subcommittee Appointments
	Item 14 - Zero Waste Plan Subcommittee Appointments



